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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bf R E

2015 Changes
HK$'m %
B AT B
Loss for the year Attributable to PAN/NCTE = N SN
Owners of the Company &8 (35) (66) (47%)
Total Assets BEMRE 10,736 11,295 (5%)
Equity Attributable to Owners of RNR AR AEM R
the Company 6,357 6,790 (6%)
Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank EIRIRITER  IRITHER
Balances and Cash K& 737 490 50%
Changes
Key Performance and Liquidity FEZEERER HK$ HK$ %
Indicators: R RIEE BT BT B
Basic Loss Per Share BRAREE (0.015) (0.029) (48%)
Net Assets Per Share (Note 1) BREEFEMZ) 2.76 2.95 (6%)
P/E Ratio (Note 1) MEE(MF1) (55.8x) (35.5x) 57%
Return on Capital Employed (Note 2) R&ZARREIZRZE (Hit2) (0.6%) (1%) (40%)
Return on Total Assets (Note 3) BEERWRE(MFESI) (0.3%) (0.6%) (50%)
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BELEAT4) 48.9% 38.4% 27%
Adjusted Gearing Ratio (Note 5) KRR EEL R (Mi75) 37% 31% 19%
Current Ratio (Note 6) mENL K (it 6) 1.3x 1.1x 18%
Interest Coverage (Note 7) FIBERLEMET7) 1.0x (0.2x) 600%
Notes: B

1. Based on 2,304,849,611 shares issued and fully paid as at 31
December, 2016 (2015: 2,304,849,611 shares) and the market
closing price of HK$0.85 (2015: HK$1.03) per share.

2. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company over equity attributable to owners of the Company.

3. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company over total assets.

4. Calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

5. Calculated as net borrowings over equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

6. Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.
7. Calculated as loss for the year before finance costs and

taxation over finance costs.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 1#%& %

Board of Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Silver
Grant International Industries Limited (the “Company”) as at
the date of this report are set out below:

Executive Directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)

Ma Yilin (appointed on 20 January 2017)
Gu Jianguo (resigned on 20 January 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Wu Songyun (Chairman) (appointed on 20 January 2017)
Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman) (resigned on 20 January 2017)
Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)
Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Liang Qing
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

Audit Committee

Hung Muk Ming (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing
Zhang Lu

Remuneration Committee

Zhang Lu (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing

Nomination Committee

Wu Songyun (Committee Chairman)
(appointed on 20 January 2017)

Chen Xiaozhou (Committee Chairman)
(resigned on 20 January 2017)

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 1t%& 8

Company Secretary
Chow Kwok Wai
Company Lawyer
Tung & Co. Solicitors
Legal Counselor
Tung Tat Chiu, Michael
Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Citic Bank International Limited
Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

(Tel: 29801888 Fax: 28610285)
Registered Office

Suite 4901, 49th Floor,

Office Tower, Convention Plaza,

1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(Tel: 28770030 Fax: 28029506)
Company Website
http://www.silvergrant.com.hk

Stock Code

171

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Review of Results

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$35.1 million (2015: HK$65.8 million). Basic
loss per share was HK$0.015 (2015: HK$0.029).

The loss attributable to owners of the Company in 2016
recorded a significant decrease of approximately 47% as
compared with that of last year. The main reasons were
detailed below:

The increase in the Group’s major source of income in
2016 was approximately HK$94.5 million in aggregate
(including increase in fair value gain on investment properties
amounting to approximately HK$33.1 million, increase in
gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments amounting
to approximately HK$27.4 million and increase in fair value
gain on loan receivable with embedded derivative amounting
to approximately HK$34.0 million) was not enough to
compensate the significant increase in the loss of Tai Zhou
United East Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ United
East”).

In the current year, TZ United East recorded a prominent
increase in after tax loss to approximately HK$357.8
million (2015: HK$185.2 million). Increase in loss was
mainly attributable to the fact that TZ United East was still
in a non-producing condition for a majority time during
the year, significant operating loss was thus incurred due
to accumulation of operating expenses in the absence
of revenue generated from production. Moreover, the
construction of the 1.6 million tons per year heavy oil
production facility (the “Binjiang Project”) by TZ United East
was completed and transferred to fixed asset in the current
year, the cessation of capitalising loan interest and certain
direct expenses in respect of the qualifying assets and
commencement to provide for depreciation in respect of the
assets had further increased TZ United East’s total losses in
the current year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Outlook

A slower China growth coupled with the expectation that
United States will continuously raise its interest rates and will
adopt protective policies to encourage domestic economy,
Hong Kong and China will continue to stay in the stage of
adjustments, particularly in the high-end retail sector and
the real estate sector. The Board expects the money and
the stock market will remain volatile. Year 2017 will face
a challenging macro outlook and will be another year of
continued adjustments.

The Board believes the China authorities have appropriate
tools to support growth and the financial system if necessary
for the purpose of maintaining the target economic growth
rate. In a tough operating environment in 2017, the Board
will continue to focus on execution of its business plans and
strategies.

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items:

Property Management Fee Income

Increase in property management fee income was mainly due
to the management fee income increased upon renovation
of certain management projects. Moreover, the Group has
carried out an extensive review on property management
operations to cope with the replacement of business tax by
value-added tax policy which took effect from 1 May 2016.

Rental Income

The increase in rental income was mainly due to continuous
improvement in occupation rates and increase in rental rates
upon renewal of tenancy agreements. Moreover, the Group
has carried out an extensive review on rental operations to
cope with the replacement of business tax by value-added
tax policy which took effect from 1 May 2016.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items: (Continued)

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Decrease was mainly due to decrease in interest income from
loan receivable amounting to approximately HK$24.5 million
as a result of reduction in average loan balance following
partial repayments and reduction in interest rates.

Administrative Expenses

Increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
administrative expenses of TZ United East in current year. The
increased expenses mainly include increase in depreciation
amounting to approximately HK$30.0 million resulted from
the transfer of the Binjiang Project to fixed asset, increase in
staff costs amounting to approximately HK$30.5 million as
a result of increase in number of staff and the cessation of
capitalising certain staff costs and increase in electricity and
steam expenses amounting to approximately HK$37.4 million
which was not qualified for capitalising in construction in
progress.

Change in fair value of loan receivable with embedded
derivative

Loan receivable with embedded derivative represent the
exchangeable bond issued by China Uranium Development
Company Limited (“CUDC”) to the Company on 1 June
2012 with a term of five years and coupon interest at 5%
per annum and is exchangeable into certain quantities of the
listed shares of CGN Mining Company Limited (Stock code:
1164) upon fulfillment of certain conditions (the “Bond”).
CUDC early redeemed all the principal amount outstanding
under the Bond on 6 May 2016 in cash, thus a fair value
gain of approximately HK$76.0 million was recognised by the
Company.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items: (Continued)

Finance costs

Increase was mainly due to increase in average loan
outstanding balance and payment of handling charges
amounting to approximately HK$2.5 million in aggregate
in respect of new bank loans raised during the current
year. Moreover, TZ United East ceased to capitalize the
relevant bank loan interest following the completion of the
construction of the Binjiang Project which had caused a
significant increase in interest expenses during the year.

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates change from a net loss in last
year to a net profit in current year. The main reason was profit
contribution from Zhong Hai You Qi (Taizhou) Petrochemical
Company Limited (“Zhong Hai You Qi”) for the current year
was approximately HK$29.0 million which amount exceed the
aggregated loss of the other associates. Profit contribution
from Zhong Hai You Qi in last year was only approximately
HK$5.9 million which was not enough to compensate the
aggregated loss of other associate.

Taxation

Increase was mainly due to additional provision on deferred
tax made in respect of increase in the fair value of investment
properties and the withholding tax on dividend income
received from a PRC subsidiary.

Non-controlling interest

Decrease was mainly due to sharp increase in loss shared by
the minority shareholders of TZ United East during the year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Changes in Iltems on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position:

Investment properties

Decrease in carrying value was mainly due to the exchange
loss recognised amounting to approximately HK$157.7 million
upon the change in exchange rates, which was deducted
directly in reserve was larger than the increase in the fair
value in current year amounting to approximately HK$70.0
million.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Decrease in carrying value was mainly due to exchange loss
recognised amounting to approximately HK$248.4 million
upon the change in exchange rates, which was deducted
directly in reserve.

Interests in Associates

The increase was mainly due to the capital injection, on a pro
rata basis, to an associate Zhong Hai You Qi amounting to
approximately RMB136.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$158.9 million) made by the Group during the year.

Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

The loan receivable with embedded derivative has been early
redeemed by the issuer on 6 May 2016.

Held-for-trading Investments

Increase was mainly due to acquisition of new shares which
are listed in Hong Kong during the year for short term trading
and hold until the end of the reporting period.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

The increase was mainly due to the advance of HK$100.0

million to a business partner as working capital during the
year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Changes in Iltems on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position: (Continued)

Loan Receivables

These were loans made to certain independent borrowers
for the purpose of utilising a portion of the Group’s idle
funds for better returns and to increase interest income
in the prevailing low deposit rates era. The increase was
mainly due to advance of US$20.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$155.5 million) short-term working capital
to an independent third party which is guaranteed by non-
controlling shareholder of TZ United East by the end of the
year.

Trade and Bills Payables

Decrease was mainly due to settlement of the bill payables
amounting to approximately HK$142.3 million in respect of
raw materials acquired from an associate by the end of 2015
during the year.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other Payables

Decrease was mainly due to partial settlement of the retention
money and balances of payment in respect of the Binjiang
Project made by TZ United East during the year. At 31
December 2016, the carrying balances of the retention money
and balance amounted to approximately HK$289.0 million in
aggregate, decreased by approximately HK$218.8 million as
compared with that of 2015. Moreover, receipts in advance
at the year end of 2016 was increased by approximately
HK$75.1 million as compared to that at the year end of
2015, which partially compensated the effect of settlement of
retention money and balance of payment.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Changes in Iltems on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position: (Continued)

Borrowings

REVBRRRNE 288 - (&)

E&

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE FET

Carrying balances under non-current ERHEBEE NERAS
liabilities 1,487,075 1,236,320
Carrying balances under current liabilities  JREI B (&8 | BR M 4584 1,621,026 1,369,567
Total FEkE 3,108,101 2,605,887

Increase in total borrowings was mainly due to the Group had
obtained new banking facilities during the year and utilized it
to finance the working capital needs of TZ United East.

Business Review

Property Investments, Management and Development

Property Leasing

Rental income of Beijing East Gate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing East Gate”) for the current year amounted to
approximately HK$120.3 million (2015: HK$86.1 million).
Rental income increased by approximately 40% was mainly
due to continuous improvement in occupation rate and
increase in rental rates upon renewal of tenancy agreements
of East Gate Plaza. The occupation rates of the commercial
portion and the residential portion of East Gate Plaza in the
current year was approximately 98% (2015: 89%). Moreover,
the Group has carried out an extensive review on rental
operations to cope with the replacement of business tax by
value-added tax policy which was effective from 1 May 2016.
The property leasing segment recorded a significant increase
in segment profit to approximately HK$143.4 million (2015:
HK$68.7 million). Apart from the aforesaid reasons, fair value
gain on revaluation of investment properties in current year
increased to approximately HK$70.0 million (2015: HK$36.9
million) has made further contribution to segment results.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Property Investments, Management and Development
(Continued)

Property Management

Property management fee income of Beijing Yinda Property
Management Limited (“Yinda”) for the current year amounted
to approximately HK$252.5 million (2015: HK$220.4 million),
representing an increment of approximately 15%. Segment
results recorded a profit of approximately HK$6.0 million
(2015: loss of HK$19.1 million). The main reason was that the
management fee income increased upon renovation of certain
management projects. Moreover, the Group has carried out
an extensive review on property management operations
to cope with the replacement of business tax by value-
added tax policy which took effect from 1 May 2016. At 31
December 2016, there were 26 projects (2015: 27 projects)
under the management of Yinda, with managed gross floor
area in excess of 4.0 million square meters (2015: in excess
of 4.0 million square meters).

Property Development

Cinda Jianrun Property Company Limited (“Cinda Jianrun”)
is a 30% owned associate of the Group. In 2014, there was
a downward adjustment trend in the real estate market in
China as both prices and floor area of commodity houses
sold declined over the previous years. In the second half year
of 2014, there were signs of improvement in the real estate
market after the local governments (except Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou and Shenzhen) gradually loosened the restrictions
on mortgage lending and purchase. In addition, as the
authority to take austerity measures on the real estate market
was delegated from the central to the local governments
and with the full liberalization of financing to the real estate
industry and mortgage loans for home purchases, it will
provide the impetus for recovery of the real estate market.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Property Investments, Management and Development
(Continued)

Property Development (Continued)

In addition, due to the fact that Cinda Jianrun need more
time to realise its short-term and medium-term investments at
appropriate price levels, the Board decided not to close the
operations of Cinda Jianrun in 2014 and continue to retain
Cinda Jianrun as a vehicle company. When the operating
environment of the real estate sector have signs of further
improvement, the Group will re-consider to invest in and/or
develop medium to high grade real estate projects.

During the current year, Cinda Jianrun was principally
concentrated its effort in realizing its investment projects.

Financial Investments

The Group strategically invested in certain PRC enterprises.
These enterprises have good potential for separate listing.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying value of these
strategic investments was approximately HK$288.9 million in
aggregate (2015: HK$310.2 million) with individual allocation
(unless otherwise explained, changes in the carrying balance
as at both year ends were due to changes in exchange rates)
detailed below:
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BRA - FEABMEDSHELERRHR
E—FPRENRR  AEEBEFEERE
&/ SERT  SEFMERER -

RAFEEAR FERBENERTHEEEFR
ERHEKEER -

TRRE

AEBERBEEHMEERETHRELE - %5
TEAFBYL EMZ2EN - K2016F 12 A
31H ZEXMEREZEEDERENA
288,900,000 7T (2015 £ : 310,200,000 #
) EEEmME(RIESEHRE - MEF
ERREA RSB T EEREE )7
LN

2016 2015

HK$ million HKS$ million

BEET A&

JC International ST SR B B 124.6 124.6
Beijing TeraSolar JKF5 e 2 64.7 69.3
CUP Hh B SR 50.3 53.8
Kema Yinxiang RIS EI& 21.2 22.7
Hejing Zhongdao AP E 22.5 —
SINOMA SRl gh) - 34.2
Others Eb 5.6 5.6
288.9 310.2
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

JC International

The Group invested RMB100.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$124.6 million) for an indirect equity interest
of 10% in Jiangxi Copper International Trading Co., Ltd. (“*JC
International”). JC International is 60% owned subsidiary of
Jiangxi Copper Company Limited and is principally engaged
in the trading of copper on both the spot and futures market.

Beijing TeraSolar

Beijing TeraSolar Photothermal Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing TeraSolar”)is a high-tech enterprise providing
complete solution for solar thermal electric system
specialising in research and development, manufacture
and marketing services of solar mirrors, concentrating
collectors, thermal storage systems, solar tracking devices
and supporting structures. It is further supported by a strong
technical team of experienced experts, with doctor and
master degrees who have been focusing on the research
and development of concentrating solar thermal (“CST”)
technologies and products for over 6 years. In the PRC,
it has been granted with 57 patents in total, including 12
invention patents and 45 utility model patents. It also has 35
patents pending for application in total, including 32 invention
patents and 3 utility model patents. On the other hand, the
Beijing TeraSolar devotes itself to comprehensive utilisation
and development of renewable energy. With its advanced
technologies, rich experience, foreseeing idea and continuous
technical innovation, Beijing TeraSolar is well positioned to
play an important role in new product’s development, quality
assurance and service system, and promote the CST industry
in the PRC and the world.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

Beijing TeraSolar (Continued)

In May 2015, the Group entered into an agreement to invest
RMB116.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$129.5
million) in cash to Beijing TeraSolar for an equity interest of
8.29%. During the year of 2015, the Group paid RMB58.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$64.7 million) as partial
payment in accordance with the terms of the agreement, the
remaining balance was initially agreed to be payable on or
before the end of year 2016, which has been revised to be
paid in accordance with the actual funding need of Beijing
TeraSolar.

Beijing TeraSolar has utilised its patent technologies in
core technology in solar thermal power generation system
to construct a photothermal power station with a 15MW
capacity and is progressing at a steady pace as scheduled.

cup

CUP is the largest bank card association and credit card
issuers in the Mainland China having a very bright business
prospect. At 31 December 2016, the Group beneficially owns
7.5 million shares in CUP.

Kema Yinxiang

Kema Yinxiang Industries Limited (“Kema Yinxiang”) is a
construction material supplier specialized in providing all-
round bathroom solutions to customers. Its business is
the design, manufacture and wholesaling of ltalian Style
bathroom products in its own brand name of “RBIHEEIS”. The
core product is bathroom suite known as the “CubiX” series.
CubiX series are pre-made modules of bathroom structures
capable of being combined into different stylish and tailored
bathrooms.

Annual Report 2016
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

Hejing Zhongdao

In the second half year of 2016, the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiary established a partnership venture with independent
third parties by investing approximately RMB20.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$22.5 million) to Beijing
Hejing Zhongdao Technology Investment Partnership (“Hejing
Zhongdao”) for a partnership interest of approximately
18%. The partnership purpose of Hejing Zhongdao is to
invest unlisted entities engaged in high and new technology
sectors such as information technology, new energy and new
materials industries.

SINOMA (Hong Kong: 1893)

The Group has an effective interest in approximately 23.1
million foreign domestic shares in the share capital of China
National Materials Company Limited (“SINOMA”), which can
be freely transferred after the application to be made to the
China Securities Regulatory Commission. In the second half
year of 2016, the Group has disposed the entire interest in
SINOMA to realize cash amounting to approximately HK$62.4
million and recognised gain on disposal amounting to
approximately HK$28.2 million.

Petrochemical Products

TZ United East

TZ United East is a 66.77% owned subsidiary of the Group.
TZ United East’s principal business is the manufacturing
and trading of organic solvent methyl ethyl ketone. After
the completion of the Binjiang Project, the current annual
production capacity of TZ United East has been increased
from 110,000 tons to 1,600,000 tons.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued) ¥EKEIEE)
Petrochemical Products (Continued) AHREIERE)
TZ United East (Continued) FEMEBETL (E)
The operating results of TZ United East are summarized FMEBME TR SEERESOT
below:
Changes
2015 &
Tons %
w B K
Raw material processed (Note) RN T (22) - 378,500 (100%)
Products sold (Note) EmEE (i) 13,100 263,100 (95%)
Changes
=
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B &ET B2
Revenue WA 48.8 30.8 58%
Net loss FEE (357.8) (185.2) 93%
Note: The quantities of raw material processed and products sold Bzt : 2015 ERMMIMNERSEHEY ARR
in 2015 were derived from the data of the test-production A EHREG 2 Uk -
period.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE# KEIRE

Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

TZ United East (Continued)

TZ United East was still in a non-producing condition for a
majority time during the year. As there was limited formal
production activities during the year, there were only limited
quantities of raw materials being processed and products
being sold during the year. Revenue for the both years
represented the revenue received from the direct selling of
the raw materials acquired through previously contracted
supply contracts. As the revenue from sale of raw materials
in both years was limited, it was not capable of covering
all the operating expenses during the year. Therefore, TZ
United East incurred a net loss in both years. Moreover,
the construction of the Binjiang Project by TZ United East
was completed and transferred to fixed asset in the current
year, the cessation of capitalising loan interest and certain
direct expenses in respect of the qualifying assets and
commencement to provide for depreciation in respect of the
assets had further increased TZ United East’s total losses in
the current year.

The OPEC had reached an agreement to reduce crude oil
production in December 2016. Moreover, Russia also agreed
to freeze her production. Together with arbitration activities
of investors, international crude oil prices rose and continued
to fluctuate in the range of US$45-55 per barrel in the first
quarter of 2017. The Board believes that international crude
oil prices has basically stabilized at the current prices and
the possibility for a further significant drop is relatively low.
The production cycle of TZ United East is approximately one
month, a long-term stable or a continuous rising international
crude oil prices is most beneficial to the operation of TZ
United East.

TZ United East cooperated Zhong Hai You Qi and resumed
production by the end of the year by way of joint production.
The Board expects that after resuming production, the
loss pressure originated from TZ United East will ease off
prominently and it will significantly improve the Group’s
profitability in the future.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi

Zhong Hai You Qi is a 23.03% owned associate of the Group.
Its principal business is the manufacturing and trading of fuel
oil, basic lubricant oil and heavy duty bitumen. The current
annual production capacity of Zhong Hai You Qi is 4.5 million
tons.

The Integration Project undergone by Zhong Hai You Qi was
completed in September 2016 and commenced production
in December 2016. The Integration Project is a renovation
project aiming at expanding production capacity and
extending products line. The renovation project composing
a portfolio of nine principal production devices, a storage
and transportation system and the related supporting public
engineering system, amongst which the major production
devices include an oil refinery device with a 3,000,000 tons
per year capacity, a fuel oil device with a 1,700,000 tons per
year capacity, a hydrocracking device with a 1,500,000 tons
per year capacity and a lubricant oil device with a 600,000
tons per year capacity. The Integration Project will enable
Zhong Hai You Qi to produce a full range of petrochemical
products including liquid gas, lubricant oil, fuel oil (diesel) and
solvent oil, covering over 90% of the products output with an
output volume over 4,000,000 tons per year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi (Continued)

The operating results of Zhong Hai You Qi are summarized

EBOEE)

AL TERE)

FERR(E)

FEHRHGERERENT

below:
Changes
2015 &
Tons %
al ¢ B
Annual production capacity FERE 4,500,000 1,500,000 200%
Crude oil processed FomAnT 1,332,100 1,501,300 (11%)
Changes
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEETT A&E5T F5H
Revenue A 2,978.1 5,103.4 (42%)
Net profit e 87.7 17.8 393%
Profit contribution before ISR A2
non-controlling interests st A B2 B 29.0 5.9 392%
Silver Grant International Industries Limited REEBREEXEBR AR



MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi (Continued)

During the past two years, international crude oil prices has
dropped continuously and significantly. In the first half year
of 2015, international crude oil prices were fluctuating at the
range of approximately US$50-70 per barrel and suddenly
dropped significantly to approximately US$40 per barrel by
the end of 2015. In the first half year of 2016, international
crude oil prices were basically fluctuating at the range of
approximately US$30-40 per barrel. Thereafter in the second
half year of 2016, crude oil price increase again to the range
of approximately US$40-55 per barrel. Severe fluctuation
in crude oil prices has seriously affected the production
stability and profitability of Zhong Hai You Qi. In addition, the
slowdown in economic activities in the mainland market had
caused a sharp decrease in the retail prices of petrochemical
products and affected the sales revenue. Thus, Zhong Hai
You Qi inevitably incurred operating loss for both years
under review. Having made application to the government
for government subsidies, Zhong Hai You Qi maintained its
annual results at a profitable position for both years.

Despite revenue dropped significantly, Zhong Hai You Qi was
able to record a significant increase in net profit in the current
year. The main reason was due to the fact that increase in
crude oil prices during 2016 resulted in increase in gross
profit margin.

Distressed Assets Business and Sales of Properties
There was no material operating activities for the distressed

assets business segment and the sales of properties segment
for both years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Annual Report 2016
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Growth Strategies

To expand its existing investments in power and
petrochemical products production remain the growth
strategy of the Group. The Group is also actively searching
and identifying investment and/or merger and acquisition
opportunities which is capable of generating enormous profit
and ample cash flows to the Group. The Board remains
to focus on executing its business plan and strategy in
2017. The Board believes that these growth strategies will
eventually result in extending the sources of recurring income
and expanding the magnitude of recurring income.

Power Aspect

The Group has made further investment in renewable energy
sector. On 8 October 2015, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary Taizhou Yinjian Energy Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Taizhou Yinjian”) entered into a joint venture agreement with
six other parties (including two connected parties). Pursuant
to the joint venture agreement, the joint venture shareholders
agreed to co-invest in construction and operation of the
concentrated solar power stations in Zhangbei, Hebei in
two phases with a total installed capacity of 100MW by
establishing Zhongxin Zhangbei Solar Energy Thermal Power
Generation Co., Ltd (“Solar Energy Thermal Power”). Due to
the advantageous geological location, the Zhangbei county
area is selected by the PRC Government as one of the key
districts for developing solar power generation.

The total investment of the concentrated solar power
stations is expected to be RMB3,400.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,794.6 million), of which RMB1,800.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,008.9 million) shall
be applied to its first phase of the construction of a 50MW
demonstration power station with a construction period of 24
months. Whereas the second phase of the construction of
a 50MW commercial power station shall proceed only after
the demonstration power station is to be proven to meet the
expected technical indicator. The construction period of the
second phase is 18 months. The registered capital of Solar
Energy Thermal Power is RMB1,000.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,116.1 million). Taizhou Yinjian shall
contribute RMB150.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$167.4 million) for an equity interest of 15% in Solar
Energy Thermal Power.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Growth Strategies (Continued)
Power Aspect (Continued)

The proposed establishment of Solar Energy Thermal Power
and the investment in the construction of the concentrated
solar power stations was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 19 February 2016. On 13 September 2016,
the National Energy Administration announced China’s
first batch of 20 accredited solar power projects. The
concentrated solar power stations project was selected
as one of the on-list projects. Accordingly, Solar Energy
Thermal Power will proceed with the construction works of its
demonstration power station being the first phase of the CSP
Project and will make further investments in accordance with
the terms of the shareholders’ agreement.

Petrochemical Products Aspect

The Integration Project undergone by Zhong Hai You Qi
and the construction of the Binjiang Projects by TZ United
East has been completed and transferred to production
use. TZ United East cooperated with Zhong Hai You Qi
and resumed production at the same time by the end of
2016 by way of joint production in order to achieve the
purpose of centralizing the processing of resources, reducing
logistic costs, consolidating complimentary advantages and
enhancing the economics of scale and synergy effect.

The Board is currently investigating the feasibility of a
collective capital restructure of the Group’s petrochemical
investments located in Tai Zhou to aim at achieving a more
efficient and effective operation model.
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Financial Review
Exchange Exposure

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments
are denominated in HKD and RMB. Moreover, the Board
is capable of maintaining a net monetary asset position
denominated in RMB for the Group. Therefore, the Board
is confident that the Group’s exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations in respect of RMB will not have material adverse
effect on the financial position of the Group given that the
RMB to HKD exchange rate is maintained at a relatively stable
range. In addition, the Board does not anticipate that there is
any material exchange exposure in respect of other currencies.

In the opinion of the Board, the one-time small scale of
depreciation of the RMB exchange rate in early August
2015 and the subsequent widening of RMB exchange rate
fluctuation do not have material adverse effect on the financial
position of the Group. However, the Board will closely monitor
the future development of the RMB exchange rate and will take
appropriate measures as necessary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no material
liability denominated in other foreign currencies other than
RMB. There was also no hedging transaction contracted for by
the Group during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged certain investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings, land use rights and
factory, plant and machinery with an aggregate carrying value
at the end of the reporting period of approximately HK$2,205.2
million (2015: HK$2,294.0 million), HK$200.5 million (2015:
HK$195.0 million), HK$182.5 million (2015: HK$199.6 million)
and HK$719.8 million (2015: nil) respectively to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group, other loan and other
payable to an independent third party.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group also pledged
approximately HK$1.7 million (2015: HK$30.0 million)
bank deposits to secure settlements for certain of Group’s
purchase of raw materials (2015: raw materials).
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Financial Review (Continued)

Working Capital & Borrowings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$3,108.1 million
in aggregate. The composition of these borrowings is
summarized below:

MO E)
EEESNEER
RABREMR AEBEZ2BERBOR

3,108,100,00078 T ° % & f& & K9 A0 Ak 48 45
W

HK$ million Percentage

B AT AL

Short term borrowings REEE 1,621.0 52%
Long term borrowings REEE 1,487.1 48%
Total B 3,108.1 100%

Interests for all borrowings were charged at fixed and floating
rates ranging from 2.30% per annum to 7.00% per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and
bank balances (included pledged bank deposits) was
approximately HK$736.7 million in aggregate. The Group’s
net borrowings was approximately HK$2,371.4 million. The
Group’s net current assets was approximately HK$802.1
million. In addition, the Group has unutilised banking facilities
of approximately HK$935.4 million in aggregate. Based on the
foregoing information, the Board is confident that the Group
has adequate working capital to meet daily operations and
to finance future expansion. Despite this, the Board will seek
to dispose short and medium term investments to replenish
funds in order to further increase the Group’s working capital
to a stronger level.

At the end of the reporting period, the Gearing Ratio
(calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company) and Current Ratio (calculated as
current assets over current liabilities) of the Group were
48.9% (2015: 38.4%) and 1.3x (2015: 1.1x) respectively.
Both ratios are maintained at good level.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Capital Structure

At the end of the reporting period, the shareholders’ fund
of the Group decreased by approximately HK$433.1 million
to approximately HK$6,357.1 million (2015: HK$6,790.2
million), representing a decrement of approximately 6%. The
decrease was mainly due to the loss for the year amounting
to approximately HK$35.1 million and the depreciation of
RMB resulted in exchange loss amounting to approximately
HK$411.1 million upon translating PRC subsidiaries and
associates.

Human Resources

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed 1,453
(2015: 1,399) employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC.
The Group offers its employees competitive remuneration
packages, which are consistent with the prevailing market
practices. The Group’s remuneration policies remain
unchanged during the year. Total staff costs for the year was
approximately HK$222.9 million (2015: HK$191.1 million).
Total staff costs increased by approximately 17%. The main
reasons were that the number of staffs in TZ United East has
increased by 75 headcounts and the cessation of capitalizing
certain staff costs in the cost of construction in progress and
the effect of annual increment in salaries in current year.

Final Dividend

In light of the loss incurred for the year, the Board has
resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil). The Board will
endeavor to resume payment of dividend soonest possible.

Compliance with the Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS EE#KERE

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to those resigned Directors for
their past contribution and service to the Group and give
my warmest welcome to those newly appointed Directors
for joining our Group. Moreover, | would like to express
my appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders for their
support and all the Group’s employees for their hard work
and dedication in carrying out their duties and in achieving
the Group’s business goal.

By order of the Board of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Gao Jian Min
Executive Director & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/

Executive Directors
Gao Jian Min Managing Director

Mr. Gao, aged 57, was appointed as an executive Director
and served as the Managing Director of the Company on 22
June 1993. He was also appointed as a director of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Gao is also an executive
director of Jiangxi Copper Co., Ltd (“diangxi Copper”) (Stock
code: 358). Up to 24 March 2017, Mr. Gao was an executive
director of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (“Qingling Motors”)
(Stock code: 1122). The H shares of Jiangxi Copper and
Qingling Motors are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Gao
graduated from the Qing Hua University with a bachelor
degree in engineering. He has over 25 years of experience
in finance, industrial investment and property investment and
development.

Liu Tianni Deputy Managing Director

Mr. Liu, aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director on
26 May 2001. Mr. Liu is the Deputy Managing Director of the
Company. Mr. Liu was also appointed as a director of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Liu is currently an executive
director and the chairman of Wonderful Sky Financial Group
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1260), which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He graduated from the Beijing
Normal University with a master’s degree in science in
1990. Mr. Liu is also an independent non-executive director
of Qingling Motors (Stock code: 1122) and Luoyang Glass
Company Limited (stock code: 1108), the H shares of which
are all listed on the Stock Exchange. Up to 5 June 2015, Mr.
Liu was an independent non-executive director of Chongging
Iron and Steel Company Limited (Stock code: 1053), the H
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Liu
has over 15 years of experience in corporate administration
and trade businesses, in the financial investment sector as
well as the financial public relations sector. Mr. Liu also has
extensive experience in capital markets, post-listing corporate
financings, and mergers and acquisitions.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/N

Executive Directors (Continued)
Ma Yilin

Mr. Ma, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director on
20 January 2017. Mr. Ma is currently the Managing Director of
China Cinda (Hong Kong) Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda
Hong Kong”), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of China
Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”). He is an
intermediate economist. Mr. Ma graduated from the graduate
school of the China University of Political Science and Law with
a master degree in law. Commencing 2011, Mr. Ma had held
various positions successively in Cinda Hong Kong, including
senior manager, head of legal affairs, investment controller,
assistant to general manager, deputy general manager, general
manager and director of Cinda Hong Kong. Mr. Ma has
abundant experience in assets management and legal affairs.

Non-executive Directors
Wu Songyun Chairman

Mr. Wu, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and chairman of the Board on 20 January 2017. Mr. Wu is
currently a Vice President of the China Cinda. He was accredited
as a senior economist by China Construction Bank (“CCB”)
in December 1997. Currently, Mr. Wu is also a non-executive
director and the committee chairman of the Risk Management
Committee of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited. Mr. Wu had
held various positions successively in CCB, including officer in
the Construction and Economic Department from July 1986
to August 1994, officer in the Second Credit Department
from August 1994 to April 1996, and deputy director of the
Credit Management Department and deputy director of Credit
Risk Management Department from April 1996 to April 1999.
Mr. Wu joined the China Cinda in April 1999 and had served
successively as senior manager and deputy director of the
Creditors’ Rights Management Department until February 2005,
general manager of the Asset Management Department from
February 2005 to April 2009, general manager of the Assets
Operation Department from April 2009 to September 2011, and
Assistant to the President from February 2011 to June 2013.
Mr. Wu graduated from Tianjin University in July 1986 with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering and graduated from Tsinghua
University in January 2012 with an EMBA degree. Mr. Wu has
abundant experience in risk management and debt and assets
management.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/

Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hui Xiao Bing Vice-chairman

Mr. Hui, aged 63, was appointed as an executive Director and
was elected vice-chairman of the Board on 22 June 1993. He
was redesignated as a non-executive Director on 1 September
2006. Mr. Hui was the deputy managing director of China
Everbright Financial Holdings Limited and was also the president
of China Construction Bank, Shenzhen Branch. He previously
worked for the Research Centre for Economic Development of
the State Council of the PRC and China Investment Consultancy
Company. He has over 25 years of experience in banking and
finance. Mr. Hui graduated from the Inner Mongolia Industrial
University with a bachelor degree in engineering. Mr. Hui is
currently the chairman and chief executive officer of Huiheng
Medical, Inc. (Stock Code: HHGM.OB) which shares are traded
on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of the Nasdaqg in the
USA.

Chen Qiming Vice-chairman

Mr. Chen, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and vice-chairman of the Board on 15 February 2012. He
is a senior engineer. He obtained a bachelor of science in
engineering from the Anhui University of Technology (formerly
known as Maanshan Iron and Steel Institute) in 1984 and a
master degree in economics from the University of International
Business and Economics in 2003. Mr. Chen joined China
General Nuclear Power Corporation. (Formerly known as China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co.,Ltd.) (“CGNPC”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, in 1996 and served
various positions including head of the construction contract
division of Ling Ao Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
CGN, manager of the contract procurement department of
Liaoning Hongyanhe Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., manager of the
contract and procurement department of China Nuclear Power
Engineering Co., Ltd. and the deputy general manager and
general manager of the capital operation department of CGNPC.
Mr. Chen is currently the general manager of CGN Capital
Holdings Co., Ltd. During the period from 5 December 2013 to
29 June 2016, Mr. Chen was a non-executive director of CGN
Mining Company Limited (“CGN Mining”)(Stock code: 1164).
During the period from 9 March 2012 to 12 July 2016, Mr. Chen
was a non-executive director of CGN New Energy Holdings
Co., Ltd. (“CGN New Energy”)(Stock code: 1811). The shares
of both CGN Mining and CGN New Energy were listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in
the power industry.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/N

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 4 May 2000. He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhang graduated from the Sichuan International Studies
University in 1979. He was the General Manager of CITIC
Central Tanshi Money Brokering Company Limited, which is
a joint venture of CITIC Trust Co., Ltd. engaged in the money
brokering business for financial institutions. From 1987
to 2000, Mr. Zhang was the executive vice president and
treasurer of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited, responsible for both
the Treasury and International Business. From 1974 to 1987,
he worked for Bank of China and CITIC Industrial Bank. Mr.
Zhang has engaged in the banking sector for over 35 years.

Liang Qing

Mr. Liang, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 28 February 2014. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Liang is also currently an executive director
and an independent non-executive director of Jiangxi Copper
(Stock code: 358) and Sinotruck (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Sinotruck”) (Stock code: 3808) respectively. The H shares
of both Jiangxi Copper and Sinotruck are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Liang graduated from Beijing Open University
(formerly known as Beijing Radio and Television University)
in 1985, where he studied Chinese language and literature.
Mr. Liang was a director and the general manager of China
Minmetal H.K. (Holdings) Limited and has now retired. Mr.
Liang has abundant experience in international trading and
investment.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 December 2004. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Hung is a
Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and is a Fellow CPA
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. He is also a Certified Tax
Adviser and a member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Hung received his bachelor degree in social
sciences from the University of Hong Kong in 1990, and a
master degree in corporate governance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2008. Mr. Hung is an independent
non-executive director of Cinda International Holdings Limited
(“Cinda International”) (Stock code: 111). Mr. Hung was also
appointed independent non-executive director of Century
Sage Scientific Holdings Limited (“Century Sage”) (Stock
code: 1450) and China Animation Characters Company
Limited (“China Animation”) (Stock code: 1566) on 13 June
2014 and 12 March 2015 respectively. The shares of Cinda
International, Century Sage and China Animation are all
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung has over 20 years of
experience in the accounting and audit sector.
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PROFILE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT SR EEAERBN

Chen Yongcun

Mr. Chen, aged 52, re-joined the Company on 1 May 2016.
Mr. Chen is one of the Deputy General Managers of the
Company. He is currently the legal representative and the
Managing Director of Beijing East Gate Development Co.,
Ltd., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Chen is responsible for the Group's property development
and investments in the mainland China. Mr. Chen previously
worked with China Construction Bank and China Cinda.
During the period from 25 October 2000 to 27 February
2008, Mr. Chen was an executive Director. Mr. Chen
graduated from Qing Hua University with a bachelor degree
in engineering and a master degree in business management.
He has over 20 years of experience in finance and
investment.

Chow Kwok Wai

Mr. Chow, aged 50, is one of the Deputy General Managers
of the Company. He is responsible for the finance and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr. Chow joined the
Company in October 1993 and was an executive Director
during the period from 20 April 2004 to 28 December
2013. Mr. Chow was appointed company secretary of
the Company on 28 December 2013. Mr. Chow has
worked in Price Waterhouse, which is now known as
PriceWaterhouseCoopers and has accumulated valuable audit
experience there. Mr. Chow received his bachelor degree in
social sciences from the University of Hong Kong in 1990.
Mr. Chow is a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Certified
Tax Adviser and a Fellow Member of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, financial management and corporate finance.
Mr. Chow is also an independent non-executive director of
SSY Group Limited (formerly known as Lijun International
Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co., Ltd.) (Stock code: 2005) which
H shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and Youyuan
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2268) which
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-
executive director of Cinda International (Stock code: 111)
which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE BiE - 2R ES

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursue this business approach by managing our
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group maintains a continuous dialogue with
stakeholders that include customers, employees,
regulators and the public. The Group seeks to balance
the views and interests of these various stakeholders
through constructive conversations with a view to charting
a course for the long-term prosperity of the Group and the
communities.

Customers

Customer feedback plays an important role in the operation
of the Group. Various channels are established to maintain
interactive communications between tenants and the Group.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone
of a company. The Group treasures its loyal and industrious
staff members. In addition, it adopts non-discriminatory hiring
and employment practices and strives to provide a safe and
healthy workplace.

Government & Public

Tough efforts are exerted to ensure compliance with the
laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. The public at large is also an important stakeholder
of the Group. A stable and prosperous community is
important to the steady growth and long-term future
prospects of the Group.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

AR BE N e R T RFELE M RET
BER - ARESNTHEEEIES ¥
FRDINTERBORE - UEB R TS
B -

KoERE

rEBEERNE  BREF B8 EE
BBRARATIREBFEZTHE - XEE
FRAZRENBR  BHAVFEERIEN
ERNANG  tMAXAKEEMELRETE
RIBWERTF -

gF

AEEEREFHEHEENER - A5H
ERV TRRERFEATEASEZENE
B3]

]

PEMBINEERAFTNES - AEEE
BEOHBENET - I NREBRMAIFL
BOREBEERTR YR H "R R E
PR TEIRE

BFEARAL

AEEISNETEBMAE BRI ARE
Bl BEANBTA/ARBNEZRHDE -
MBEERNTREHAKENREER LR
REEBEERTOER -



Workplace Quality

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 1,453 staff
members. Total employee costs for the year ended 31
December 2016, including directors' emoluments, amounted
to approximately HK$222.9 million.

The quality of the employees of the Group is crucial to
maintaining a competitive position in the market. With this
in mind, the Group seeks to attract and retain talented
individuals committed to achieving goals and objectives in
a work environment that nurtures values such as fair play,
respect and integrity. The Group sees career development
an important aspect of its staffs and provides ongoing
training, according to the needs of the Group. Compensation
packages are competitive, and individuals are rewarded
according to performance plus an annually-reviewed
framework of salary, working conditions, bonuses and
incentive systems. Benefits include medical cover, provident
funds, share options scheme.

The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees and complying with all
applicable health and safety laws and regulations. Health
and safety considerations are incorporated into the design,
operations and maintenance of the premises of the Group.
Employees are provided appropriate job skills and safety
training and are educated with regard to their responsibilities
for achieving the health and safety objectives of the Group.
The Group also communicates with its employees on
occupational health and safety issues.

Environmental Protection

Energy saving measures are enforced in the Group's offices
and commercial premises for the purpose of achieving
reduction of electricity consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions.

The Group adopted policies to promote recycling and use
of eco-friendly stationery, plus a series of measures to save
paper and energy, resulted in more efficient use of resources,
as well as reduction of waste.
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Operating Practices

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical
standards. All employees are given a Code of Conduct
to which they are required to adhere. The Code explicitly
prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting or offering
bribes or any form of advantage. The Code also outlines
the Group’ s expectations on staff with regard to conflicts
of interest. All managers are expected to communicate and
instill a culture of good corporate governance to their staffs.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company engaged external professionals to review the
Environmental, Social and Governance policies of the Group
and issue a Environmental, Social and Governance report for
the Board’ s consideration. Upon finalising the Environmental,
Social and Governance report, the Company will published
the Environmental, Social and Governance report on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange only in
due course on or before the month end of June 2017. No
hardcopy of the Environmental, Social and Governance report
will be printed and mailed to shareholders of the Company.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

EE-HERERNBEZE TGRS
BHMNEEBTHE ISR - SFAIPAHES
?H CEXRIREHBR R EMER
7 o SPRIJRSIBA AN & B B T pE an{a] iR 12
ﬂ SR TABEABNENES TEBI
WHEERIFNREERNE °

5 HERERRE

ARAEFIFEXZRBERAEE 2R
B HERERABRRAMBEEESEMHN - F
TRZMERE e REAREER  ARQF
E%@@ﬁﬁi%mw$6ﬂ$ﬁum%%
B HEgRERRSE LERN AR R MR
AU o ZIIRE %té?li%§/u$&%§ﬂﬂ7ﬁé§ﬁ%
BRI kT E® e FARBMBR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &AL

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to establish and maintain a
standard of corporate governance that is consistent with
market practices. Except for the deviation specified below,
the Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the code mandatory provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Provision A.1.1 stipulated that Board should meet regularly
and board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year, a total of
two regular meetings of the Board were held across the year.
The Board considers that the two meetings were sufficient
to deal with matters of the Company. Apart from Board
meetings, consent of Directors on issues was also sought
through circulating written resolutions.

Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Chen
Xiaozhou, the Chairman of the Board was out of town and
did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 23 May 2016. The Chairman will endeavor to attend
all future annual general meeting of the Company unless
unexpected or special circumstances preventing him from
doing so.

The following summarizes the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.
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Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Board led by the Chairman, steers the Group’s business
direction. The management, led by the Managing Director,
which is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, is
responsible for the Group’s management and operations.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Managing Director are clearly established and set out in
writing. The role of the Chairman and the Managing Director
are separated and are performed by different persons to
avoid concentration of authorities to one single person.

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence
of an effective internal control system. The independent
non-executive Directors serve the important function of
ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework.

The current Board comprises three executive Directors, three
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, which composition is set out in the section headed
Corporation Information on page 3 and the biographies of
the Directors are set out on page 28 to 32. The number of
independent non-executive Directors represent no less than
one-third of the board members.

Members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise and
skills to discharge their duties.

The Company’s Directors, Messrs. Wu Songyun and Ma Yilin
are also directors and/or senior officers within the group of
China Cinda, Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni are also
directors and shareholders of Silver Grant Group Limited (“SG
Group”) and Mr. Chen Qiming is also a director and/or senior
officer within the group of CGNPC. China Cinda, SG Group
and CGNPC are substantial shareholders of the Company.
Save for the aforesaid, there is no relationship between
members of the Board, in terms of financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to fulfil
the requirements of the CG Code, three standing board
committees were set up under the Board: Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. When
it become necessary, the Board will set up ad hoc board
committee to handle specific issues and report back to the
Board.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required
by the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
confirming his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There are established procedures for
directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a director arise, the matter
will be discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed
to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present
at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.

Independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified
in all corporate communications containing the names of
the directors. An updated list of directors identifying the
independent non-executive Directors and the role and the
functions of the Directors is maintained on the website of the
Company at www.silvergrant.com.hk and the website of the
Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of service no
longer than three years. They are also subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with Article 102 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The full Board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy and to
monitor the operations as well as the financial performance
of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all
Directors in respect of full board meeting and the Directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and the accompanying board papers in respect of
full board meeting are sent out in full to all Directors no less
than three days before the meeting. Minutes of full board
meeting and meeting of board committee are properly kept.
All Directors have access to relevant and timely information.
They also have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company, who is responsible
for providing the Directors with Board papers and related
materials. Where queries are raised by the Directors, prompt
and full responses will be given if possible.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

During the year, two board meetings were held and the

attendance of each Director is set out below:

Name of Directors

EsgR

Number of Meeting attended/held

ExgE)

EEEARGE)

RERN - HEFAMAEZREESH
FHHFEEREIMT

HESEAE  2BTHIE

C BRE

Attendance rate

HE =R

Executive Directors
HITEE

Gao Jian Min

RER

Liu Tianni

EIPN

Gu Jianguo

FzE

Non-executive Directors
HPITEE

Chen Xiaozhou

PR E

Hui Xiao Bing

BhE

Chen Qiming

PR X B

Independent non-executive

Directors
BUFBITEE
Liang Qing
RE
Zhang Lu
SR
Hung Muk Ming

HAREH
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Board has the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
The Director so appointed shall hold office until the next
general meeting (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or
until the next annual general meeting (in the case of new
addition to the Board) following his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election. In other cases, all Directors,
including the Chairman, Vice Chairmen and Managing
Director, shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years at annual general meetings and be eligible for re-
election.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August 2013.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement
the board diversity policy, where selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives as set
out above, and the ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the
Board.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

An analysis of the board diversity based on a range of
diversity perspectives is set out below:-

AHE

Exg(®)
EsgsnitBEAE)

B—ZiZ BB AREEELE 2 EFTEN
BZ I EomEINMT -

9

8 Executive

Directors

’ HiTES
6
Number of 5
Directors 4

EE2E
3
2
1
0
Designation Age Group
i 4V FhRAE R

Corporate Governance Committee

The CG Code recommends listed company to set up a
corporate governance committee to look after issues relating
to corporate governance. However, the Board consider that
it is more appropriate and more efficient for the Company
to retain in the Board the function of overseeing corporate
governance issues. The Board will continuously review
and improve the Company’s and the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure that business activities and
decision-making processes are regulated in a proper and
prudent manner.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
corporate governance duties performed by the Board were
mainly set out below:

—  reviewed the corporate governance practices;

—  reviewed the continuous professional development and
training of the directors;

— reviewed compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conducts regarding directors’ securities transactions.
All Directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by relevant employees (as defined in
the CG Code) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has written terms of
reference that conform to the provisions of the CG Code. The
written terms of reference is set out in detail on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The current Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Muk Ming
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Liang Qing and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk
management and the effectiveness and objectivity of the audit
process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s external auditors in
matters coming within the scope of its terms of reference and
keeps under review the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit Committee
includes the review of the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2015, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for 2015 and the interim results for the
period ended 30 June 2016. On 27 March 2017, the Group’s
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016 have
also been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
risk management system and considered that it is effective
and adequate for the time being.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out below:

ExgE)

BEREEE(E)

ERZBRFAABRAMREH  SKEZ
HFE RN

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended/held Attendance rate
BEEHA HESBAE 2BERRH HE =
Hung Muk Ming 2/2 100%
HERER

Liang Qing 2/2 100%
Zhang Lu 1/2 50%
SR

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted a written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the CG
Code. The terms of reference was revised on 15 February
2012. The written terms of reference is set out in detail on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
current Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu (Committee
Chairman) and Mr. Liang Qing.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to ensure that there is no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration and that the
Company has an equitable and competitive remuneration
policy to attract and retain talent persons to serve the
Company. The Board has adopted the model where the
Remuneration Committee performs an advisory role to
the Board (i.e. make recommendations to the Board on
the remunerations packages of individual director and
senior management). The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
managements’ remuneration and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors.

The remuneration package for each employee is structured
according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration
package will contain a combination or modification of some
or all of the following four main components:

1. Basic salary

Basic salary ranges for each position are established with
reference to the responsibilities and the duties attached
to the position. The actual salary for the person filling
the position is determined based on the experience and
ability of the individual selected for the position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison
to comparable positions at competitors in the relevant
industry. The actual salaries of employees are reviewed
annually and may be adjusted from time to time based
on the cost of living and financial performance of the
Company.

Salaries are base remuneration and not intended to
reward performance, either individually or corporately.
Performance is rewarded through the other components
of the remuneration plan.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

2.

Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee
is determined with reference to his position and his/her
performance during the year.

Share option

Share options to subscribe for shares in the Company
are granted to employees from time to time at the
discretion of the Board, in order to retain valuable
employees and to motivate future performance of the
employees.

Share options granted to individual employee
are determined with reference to his position, his
performance and his ability to contribute to the overall
success of the Group.

However, the Group does not have any Share Option
Scheme in force for the time being.

Other benefits

The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement
scheme, employee compensation and medical
insurance, paid annual leaves and child education
allowance, with reference to the prevailing practices in
relevant jurisdictions.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review the

Company’s human resources matters and remuneration

policies. During the year, two

Remuneration Committee

meetings was held in the presence of all committee members.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the approval of the annual
salary adjustments for the year 2017 and the payment of
discretional performance bonus and director fees to the
executive and non-executive directors for year ended 31
December 2016 after taking into consideration the results
of the Group, the performance of the directors, the senior
management and the employees and the prevailing market
practices.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 15
February 2012 (the “Nomination Committee”) and adopted
written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee. The
written terms of reference is set out in detail on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The current
Nomination Committee comprises the chairman of the Board
who also act as the chairman of the committee and two
independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu
and Mr. Hung Muk Ming.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of directors either to fill casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company, any director
appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until
to the next general meeting or as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until to the next annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least every three years and shall be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitably qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for its consideration. The process for selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria are based
mainly on the assessment of their characters and their
professional qualifications and experience relevant to the
Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board periodically,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment and re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors.

On 20 January 2017, Mr. Wu Songyun and Mr. Ma Yilin were
nominated and appointed as non-executive Director and
executive Director respectively.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was
held in the presence of all committee members for the
purpose of reviewing the Board structure and the diversity of
Board members.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to

indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is
provided with a director’s induction package to ensure that he
has a proper understanding to his duties and responsibilities.
The director’s induction package include an overview of
the Group’s business operation and governance policies,
the director’s responsibilities and duties, relevant regulatory
requirements and briefing with the senior management of the
Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
year, all Directors had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending
training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities. All
directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they have complied with the continuous
professional development requirement of the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Annual Report 2016

ExgE)

BB E I

BUHFREZES TWENTHIFA
1T EZ-EEFHBEANTURRECH
EHANEEBERET ZOESHBEN
BRASENKEERGRERERBROHM
L EFETABE AHENEEREUAR
HEARERREEENER

RIEEXERTUNHRE  FEESHFE
SHESEEXRR  BRYFHEAB LI
Bt NHERHEEBCEAB2EEMLIAM
FENBATHESTSHFLER - R FIA
EFHOERMFEBII L/ KFERLRF
G REERE NEEABOMH2EE
ENRESRRREY - KAQFAREH
% MBAEFYUCERNFNELL2016%F
12 A31 HIEFEREBTREEATRIREN
HEEXERENR -

—E-RFFRW

51



52

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &AW E

Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training (Continued)

The training attended by each Director of the current Board

during the year is summarized below.

Type of trainings (Note 1)

ExgE)

BB R IE ()

HEgEES
BT o

REREISESEERNT N

Training matters (Note 2)

Name of Directors EEHA BINFR AT 1) EINBBEWZ2)
Executive Directors HITEE
Gao Jian Min SER a, b i i, iv
Liu Tianni PN a, b i, i, iv
Gu Jianguo el a, b i, i, il iv
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Chen Xiaozhou BRZ JE a, b i, i, i, iv
Hui Xiao Bing BN a, b i, i, iv
Chen Qiming PR AR a, b i, i, i, v
Independent non-executive BV HHITESE

Directors
Liang Qing 2E a, b i, i, i, v
Zhang Lu ok 3% a,b i, i, iv
Hung Muk Ming HEAK AR a, b i, i, il
Note 1: Biat -
a:  attending seminar or training session a: HEHEERIFIRE
b:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to economy, b: BFEELE —REFAEFBEIETE

general business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc.

Note 2:
corporate governance
i regulatory

finance and accounting

iv: managerial

The Company also received confirmation from the Company
Secretary that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during the year.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company has
effective risk management and control systems. The Board
evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least annually.
During the year, a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems was conducted.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather
than eliminate risks, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Company has employed a bottom-up approach for
identification, assessment and mitigation of risk.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems include the establishment of
a risk register to track and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing new risks. The
identified risks will be recorded in the risk register which will
be reviewed regularly. After considering the control measures
against risks, a risk matrix is adopted to determine risk rating
(L=low risk, M=medium risk, H=high risk) after evaluation of
the risk by the likelihood and the impact of the risk event.

Process Used to ldentify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk owner
of departments and major subsidiaries are required to capture
and identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement
of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according
to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the risk
response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again.
The risk register with the risk responses and residual risks
is reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee,
acting on behalf of the Board, evaluates the effectiveness of
the systems. The highest category of residual risks is subject
to the Board’s oversight.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Board has outsourced the internal audit
function to an independent consulting firm (the “Internal
Auditor”). The Internal Auditor has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.

Inside Information

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. In order to ensure that the market
and shareholders are fully and promptly informed about
the material developments in the Company’s business, the
Board has adopted the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
regarding the procedures of proper information disclosure.
Release of inside information is subject to the approval of
the Board. Unless duly authorised, all staff members of the
Company shall not communicate inside information to any
external parties and shall not response to market speculation
and rumours. In addition, all external presentation materials
or publications must be pre-vetted before release.

Report to Audit Committee

The Internal Auditor reported directly to the Audit Committee
and the Audit Committee is satisfied that there has been no
major deficiency noted in the areas of the Company’s risk
management and internal controls systems being reviewed
after implementation of recommendations of the internal
control defects reported by the Internal Auditor. Accordingly,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective.
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RERXE

General Meetings

FR ARFEAR_ABRERRGERBER
RBFAE® - SEFHFEBEREAIIAT -

During the year, the Company has convened two general
meetings including the Annual General Meeting. The
attendance of each Director is set out below.

Number of general meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of Directors EENS HERRAZAE, HAERE HER
Executive Directors HITEE
Gao Jian Min RER 2/2 100%
Liu Tianni 2R 0/2 0%
Gu Jianguo =l 0/2 0%
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Chen Xiaozhou eI 0/2 0%
Hui Xiao Bing BN 0/2 0%
Chen Qiming 2 0/2 0%
Independent non-executive BV HHITESE

Directors
Liang Qing 2E 0/2 0%
Zhang Lu o 3% 1/2 50%
Hung Muk Ming AR EA 2/2 100%
Auditor’s Remuneration ZE A &

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2016, were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) at a total fees of HK$2.8 million. The
said audit fee was approved by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board. In addition, the Group also paid
fees of not more than HK$150,000 in aggregate to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for the provision of taxation services during
the 2016.

The Audit Committee considers that the taxation services did
not (in terms of the nature of the services and the amount of
fees paid in relation to the audit fees) affect the independence
of Deloitte.
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Remuneration of Senior Management

The emolument paid to senior management was amongst
the five highest paid individuals of the Group and is set out in
note 9.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the
state of the affairs, results and cash flow of the Group for
that year in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure
provision of the Listing Rules.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis. Up to the date of this report, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties that will seriously
affect the going concern basis of the Group.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Group. The Directors
also have general responsibilities for setting up an appropriate
internal control system, which is mainly to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities. The Directors have reviewed the internal
control system of the Group and are satisfied that the internal
control system of the Group is functioning properly.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirements under the
CG Code.

Convening General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) may request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to
568 of the Companies Ordinance.

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from members of
the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meeting. Such requests must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include
the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing
at the registered office of the Company at Suite 4901, 49th
Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in
electronic form (by email: cs@silvergrant.com.hk); and must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it. In
accordance with Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the
date on which they become subject to the requirement under
Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance and such meeting
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date
of the notice convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for a day not more than
28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
extraordinary general meeting is given, the shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene an extraordinary general meeting, provided that the
extraordinary general meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Convening General Meeting on Request (Continued)

The extraordinary general meeting convened by shareholders
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the
directors of the Company.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders can raise enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of
the Company at Suite 4901, 49/F, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings

To put forward a resolution at an annual general meeting,
shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and
procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies
Ordinance.

Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (a) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at
least 50 members who have a right to vote on the resolution at
the annual general meeting to which the requests relate. Such
requests (a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
(by depositing at the registered office of the Company at Suite
4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or
in electronic form (by email: cs@silvergrant.com.hk); (b) must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; (c) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) must
be received by the Company not later than () 6 weeks before
the annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (i) if
later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting. Section
616 of the Company Ordinance provides that the Company
that is required under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the
Company’s own expense to each member of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting (a) in the
same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same
time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives
notice of the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Proposing Director for Election at General Meetings

In respect of proposing a person for election as a Director at
general meetings, please refer to the procedures available on
the website of the Company at www.silvergrant.com.hk.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there is no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency of
shareholders’ voting in general meeting, separate resolutions
are proposed at general meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual director
and all resolutions are voted on by poll. The Company will
engage external scrutineer to count the vote. The poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange at a later time on the same business
day. In addition, the requirement for resolutions to be
voted by poll is stated in the circular or annual report to be
despatched to shareholders. Moreover, at general meeting
but before voting, the chairman of the meeting will explain to
shareholders the described procedures for conducting a poll.

The Company has maintained a website at http://www.
silvergrant.com.hk which enables shareholders, investors and
the general public to have an open access to the information
of the Company. Financial information and all corporate
communications of the Company are made available on the
Company’s website and are updated regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901, 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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The Board present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and
engaged in property investment and securities trading. The
Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
property investment, other investments, distressed assets
business and production and trading of petrochemical
products. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the Group’s associates are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 85.

In light of the loss incurred for the year, the Board has

resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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EBRESR

Business Review

AEEHE2016F 12 A1 B ILEENEK
ERDAIELT

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

Section in the Page No. of the

Annual Report Annual Report

HIRER 2 B0 FHHEH
a. Fair view of the Company’s business Managing Director’s Statements 5to 27
HARREBNT SRR BEERLERSE 5227
b. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing Directors’ Report 62 to 63
the Company EEeWmE 62 £ 63
HARNTEENEERR R THAREZMHHEL
C. Particulars of important events affecting the Company that ~ Directors’ Report 72
have occurred since the year ended 31 December 2016 ~ EE&®E 72
EHZE2016F 12 A31 HILFEREBREER - HARAE
FEMNERNSHNFE
d. Indication of likely future development in the Company’s Managing Director’s Statements 22 10 23
business EERKERS 22%E23
AAREBHEE AT ANRRERNEBR
e. Analysis using financial key performance indicators Financial Summary 2
ERNBBERRAETRETHON MBHER 2
Discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and Environmental, Social and 34 to 36
performance Governance 34 % 36
HARRANRBERE RRRNRA RE #HEgRER
g. An account of the Company’s key relationships with its Environmental, Social and 34 to 36
employees, customers and suppliers and others that have Governance 34 % 36
a significant impact on the Company and on which the RIR - HERER
Company’s success depend
ARvEEES BELMERNEZBERNIAUARER
RERMFENTHANEMATHEZBENHA - ZAT
HARRBEATE  MARANERERZAL
h. Discussion on the Company’s compliance with the relevant ~ Managing Director’s Statements, 5 to 27,
laws and regulations that have significant impact on the Corporate Governance Report, 37 to 59,
Company Directors’ Report 60 to 72
HARRETHARRBEAZENEWEERAOINERL EFERLERE - 5&27
B R CEERRE - 37 £ 59
BEeRt BOET72
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Key Risk Factors

The following paragraphs list out the key risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and
there may be other risks and uncertainties further to the key
risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual report does
not constitute a recommendation or an advice for anyone
to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult their own
investment advisors before making any investment in the
securities of the Company.

Risk Pertaining to the Property Market on the Mainland

The Group has material interests in residential and
commercial property investment on the mainland and
is therefore subject to the risks associated with China’s
property market. The Group’s operations on the mainland
may also be exposed to the risks of policy change, interest
rate change, demand-supply imbalance, and the overall
economic conditions, which may pose an adverse impact
on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk
factors distinctive to direct investment, property investment
and property related businesses. Default on the part of
our buyers, tenants and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of
negative impact on the results of operations. Additionally,
accidents may happen despite systems and policies set up
for their prevention, which may lead to financial loss, litigation
or damage in reputation.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Policy Risks

The Group’s principal operating activities are in the mainland
China. The mainland market operates a system of planned
economy. New laws and regulations are launched from time
to time to regulate and/or promote economic activities. The
enactment of any new regulatory policies may have various
levels of negative impact on the results of operations.

International Crude Oil Prices Risks

A principal operation of the Group is the manufacturing
and sale of petrochemical products. Crude oil is the
critical raw material for production process. Significant
fluctuations in international crude oil prices and persistent
drop in international crude oil prices will have a material
adverse impact on the operating result in respect of sales of
petrochemical products.

Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operation of the Group
as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.
This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual result
may also differ materially from expectations discussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group
nor the Directors, employees or agents of the Group assume
any obligations or liabilities in the event that any of the
forward-looking statements or opinions does not materialize
or turns out to be incorrect.
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Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at 31
December 2016. Surplus on revaluation of the leasehold land
and buildings amounted to approximately HK$14,608,000
has been credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

During the year, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties at 31 December 2016. The net increase in fair
value of investment properties, which has been charged
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
amounted to approximately HK$69,995,000.

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group at 31
December 2016 are set out in the section under “Summary of
Investment Properties” of this Annual Report.

Charitable Donations

Donations to charitable organisations by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to RMB1,081,000
(equivalent approximately HK$1,263,000).

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2016 comprised the
retained profits of approximately HK$446,865,000.

Equity Linked Agreements

No equity linked agreements were entered into during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)

Ma Yilin (appointed on 20 January 2017)
Gu Jianguo (resigned on 20 January 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Wu Songyun (Chairman) (appointed on 20 January 2017)
Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman) (resigned on 20 January 2017)
Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)
Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Liang Qing
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

The term of office of each Director, including the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors,
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs. Ma Yilin and Wu Songyun who were
appointed as Directors on 20 January 2017 will hold office
only until the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs.
Liu Tianni, Liang Qing and Hung Muk Ming shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and they,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The remaining
Directors shall remain in office.

Directors of Subsidiaries

Other than the Directors named in the section headed
“Directors”, the persons who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report included Mr. Gao Jian Min, Mr. Liu
Tianni, Mr. Sung Yeung Leon, Mr. Chow Kwok Wai, Mr. Kwok
Chung Lun, Mr. 57, Mr. Chen Yongcun, Ms. Fu Bo, Ms.
gRMEE, Ms. Wong Wa, Mr. @78, Mr. sREM, Mr. EEfEE,
Ms. RIERF, Mr. FRFIF, Mr. #532E, Mr. BRIE, Mr. Ma Hon
Yeung, Mr. BifzmEE, Mr. ZEEsR, Mr. £, Mr. %25, Ms.
ZE, Mr. =&, Ms. FEEE, Ms. {#¥F, Mr. Lu Chuan and
Ms. Zhu Feng.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION” below, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Change in Profile of Directors

During the period from 30 August 2016 (as the date of
approval of 2016 Interim Report of the Company) to 27
March 2017 (as the date of approval of the 2016 Annual
Report of the Company), change in Director’s biographical
details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rules
13.51(2) and 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, is set out below:

Gao Jian Min

With effect from 24 March 2017, Mr. Gao Jian Min ceased
to act as executive director of QingLing Motors Co. Ltd.
(stock code: 1122) which H shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Liang Qing
With effect from 30 August 2016, Mr. Liang Qing was
appointed independent non-executive director of Sinotruck

(Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 3808) which H shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Directors’ Interest in Shares

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company nor any of its associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register
as required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the
directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had been granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporation, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debenture of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company
nor any of their spouse or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION” below, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entities had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any part
of the Company’s business was entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to
the statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereon. The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify its directors and officers in respect of
legal actions against the directors.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2016, persons other than a director or
chief executive of the Company having interest in 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 are set out below:

EEEHN

EARFER - REEBEAMNIN  AAFALE
REBREBIEPEAERRNRITXNTA
BEENMITHAR -

BESFZRERX

BREAAFRzAHEIRMA  SREFHE
B ERNTERUAEEERZBE
REXABRHB A ZBRIERE
T BEARRRHEEETRE - AQFE
ZHEEEERBRARSEHERNERFR
MEENEEABFHBERE -

FERR

R2016F 12 A31 B - RARRIRIEES K
HERPIE 36 KBMEAETFENELME
SFTETR  BARARIZEFERESTTHAE
N BEEEARRBI B BT A% A 1
HAALTWT ¢

R2016F 12 A31 8 » RARQ A KM KIEEH
e T

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity ordinary shares  Total interests EE2BeRT

TERRER 54 ERRRHEE A BREBAL

Silver Grant Group Limited Beneficial owner 277,114,022 277,114,022 12.02%
REEERRAA ERBEBA (Note i)
(Hiiti)

China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd  Interest of controlled corporation 438,056,000 438,056,000 19.01%
hEEEEEEERNBRAR REtEE RS (Note ii)
(Hstii)

China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding  Interest of controlled corporation 364,140,000 364,140,000 15.80%
Co., Ltd. REHEE S (Notes i and v)
(now known as: China General Nuclear (Wrzzii % iv)

Power Corporation)
HEERGERERR AR
(BBA  PEEREEEARAR)
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni, both of whom are
directors of the Company, each has a 30% interest in Silver
Grant Group Limited as at 31 December 2016.

i. The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of the
Company held by China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd:

FERRGE)

Hist
BEREERBIRGRE  WEHR/ARF
E% N2016F12 A1 HBEEHARES
EHERAR30%#Es -

i. MHUTRTEEFEEEEEERNARARMARF
BARRAZ R EEANED

Total interest in shares

BR 7 R 2 A8 Y
Name of controlled Name of controlling Percentage Direct Indirect
corporation shareholder of control interest interest
SEEEER ERERRERE ZEHES = HiEEn mEER
Well Kent International China Cinda Asset Management 100% - 438,056,000
Investment Company Limited Co., Ltd
FERBERRERRAT PEGEGEEEEERNARAR

Regent Star International Limited Well Kent International
EREBRBERAA Investment Company Limited
EZHFIRERRAF

iii. The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of the
Company held by China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding

Co., Ltd.:

Name of controlled Name of controlling
corporation shareholder

ZEEEER ERERREE

100% 438,056,000 —

i MT%$I RZEEBBRAGMFAR
AR Z B S ARED -

Total interest in shares

ROEREH
Percentage Direct Indirect
of control interest interest
ERES = HiEER REER

CGNPC International Limited China Guangdong Nuclear

R EZERER AR Power Holding Co., Ltd.
(now known as: China
General Nuclear Power
Corporation)

PEERZEEEFRAR

(RBER: PEEREEER
YNGID!

iv. As notified by China General Nuclear Power Corporation, its
percentage of control in CGNPC International Limited has been
changed from 99.99% to 100%.

Other than as disclosed above, the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2016.
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Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Connected Transaction

A service agreement dated 28 December 2004 was entered
into between Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”) and the Company.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions set out therein, the
Company agreed to employ and Mr. Gao agreed to serve the
Company as a Managing Director by providing the Company
with the services as described in the service agreement for a
term of three years from 28 December 2004 to 27 December
2007, which term shall continue thereafter until determined
by either party giving to the other not less than 3-months
prior written notice.

Buy-Back, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries bought back, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at
Boardroom 3 & 4, Mezzanine Floor, Renaissance Harbour
View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Tuesday, 23 May 2017 at 10:30 a.m. (the “Annual
General Meeting”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, during
the year and up to the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue comprises rental income from leasing
of properties, dividend income from listed and unlisted
securities, income from property management and income
from production and trading of petrochemical products.

The accumulated amount of purchases and revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases
and revenue for the year.
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Closure of Register of Members

To ascertain shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Thursday, 18 May 2017 to
Tuesday, 23 May 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Share Registrar
of the Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 May 2017.

Event after the Reporting Period

No significant event occurring after the end of the reporting
period.

Auditor
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting

to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

By order of the Board
Wu Songyun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

EENERNBFER

AETHROERERFASREEZR
AR BER2017ESA1SH(EHM)
HEZ2017F5 A23H(E2 8 =) L RE(E
EMABREEN)EEHEARARMDBRS
BRFE BTSRRI MHERE - A
BREEERHERITAFRERRE
BGER - FTEEZ 2 BRDBE X ERB B
E . REBEAR01I7TFSAITH(ZEH=)T
TR =ZF+2REARRBRMDBEFER
B EEREFBAERAR MU ARES
ERER183FAEMA L2242 o

RBEEHRER

BRABREHRIBREENFA -

D

BREREY  MERS ST AARTA
R ORBRENRRBFAGRES -

EEEEMm
FTE
NS

E8 20173 H27H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B & EiiRsE

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SILVER GRANT INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”)
set out on pages 85 to 218, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Making another century of impact
EHEFE MANLCT
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENNEEFARETSEHE

Valuation of investment properties and leasehold land and building under property, plant and

equipment

¥ BERREEATREYEUAREEL M REFZ1EE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
and leasehold land and building under property,

plant and equipment as a key audit matter due to

the significance of the balances to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
significant judgments associated with determining

the fair value. As disclosed in notes 14 and 15 to

the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s
investment properties and leasehold land and

building amounted to HK$2,355,619,000 and
HK$277,407,000 respectively as at 31 December
2016. Fair value changes on investments properties of
HK$69,995,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year then ended and
the gain arising on revaluation of leasehold properties
of HK$14,608,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended.

B E - BERREBEETREYEUARBE TR
BFZHEBMNRBREATE  REARZSEHRELR
EMBREERBIEEN  MEBEARBERMALIRZ
BERHE o WANARE P IERARM T 14 KA PHE - B
201612 A31H BEBEZREMEALBET MR
BF 5 5% 2,355,619,000 7% 7T & 277,407,000 & 7T ©
REWMEZ N EFE)69,995,000 BT EREZEZA
ILFEZFaEaRAER  MEGBEEMEEE 2K
7 14,608,000 B TERBZZ B ILFE 26 1BR K
N oA 2 K a8 2k AV BERR o

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties and leasehold land and building included:

BRERREDEHELEL N EETZREFEHE

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
property valuers;

FHMEBE Y BEYEMEMBERE  #EHRE
Bt

° Obtaining an understanding from the
independent professional property valuers about
the valuation techniques, the performance of
the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted, critical judgmental areas, key inputs
and data used in the valuations;

TREN BEYEMEMHERN - WETS
RE - W EARR - BREAEESE - EM
RAzwABEREE

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs
used in the valuations by comparing the rentals,
capitalisation rate and transactions for valuation
with other similar properties; and
FRICBRHMBUMERAGEZEE - XML
MERRZS  sHEEEMAZEERABZEE
MR
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Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENNEEFARETSEE

Valuation of investment properties and leasehold land and building under property, plant and

equipment (Continued)

¥ BERREEATREWEUAREEL M REFZ1EE ()

The Group’s investment properties and leasehold
land and building are carried at fair value based on
valuation performed by independent professional
property valuers. Details of the valuation techniques
and key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed

in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements. The valuations are dependent on certain
key inputs that involve the management’s and
independent professional property valuers’ judgments,
including capitalisation rate, market rent, and adjusted
transaction price of similar properties.
EEBREMEARBE T RIEFIIRBE T HE
MEMBERETZEERAAEYER - HERBZAE
Bl s ANERF B ARG PR M s 14 R 15 #ER -
HERARS R ERERBELEXYEGEM B2
ETFERAB(BEEUDEZEREFE - m5HHE
EREHABRZFHE) °

Assessing the integrity of information provided
by the management to the independent
professional property valuers by comparing
details of rentals on a sample basis to the
respective underlying existing lease agreements.
FREHEEFIEEEMREHETEHEMEL
B ARBERERAB L EEYELEMRECE
Btz ERENE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B & E iR E

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENNEEFARETSEHE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment in respect of production and trading of

petrochemical products segment

BHIETEREERHETEZY¥ » BMERREZBETG

We identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment in respect of production and
trading of petrochemical products segment as a key
audit matter due to its complexity and significant
judgement exercised by the Group’s management

in determining the recoverable amount. For the
purposes of impairment assessment, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment in

respect of production and trading on petrochemical
products segment as at 31 December 2016 was
HK$3,439,063,000 as disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. As detailed in

note 5 to the consolidated financial statements,
HK$213,951,000 loss was incurred by this segment
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

B AREIERGEERBEED B WE - BERK
W ERN AR RAREFFE  REARHEMIEE
&k EXEETEEHMHENERSETE CEAAE -
S EERMMEE - BHE2016F 12 A31 8 @ FilR
FEMBHRERMT15  ERMEIEREERFEED
B - BRE KA RE 258 4 38,439,068,000 7
TC ° HANERE ISR s st - At TERAE
ERHEDBRBE2016F12 A HILFEEESE
/518 213,951,000 % 7T °

Our procedures in relation to assessment impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment in
respect of production and trading of petrochemical
products segment included:

BT E ML IEREEREES R 2WE - BE
KRB BE L ELE

° Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including the valuation
model adopted, the CGUs allocation,
assumptions used and the involvement of
independent valuer appointed by the Group;
TR BESEERENRER - BEKAEE
B BeELBUSR  FAZKRRE 5%
ERE B EERM 28

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
model used to calculate the recoverable amount;
AHEARGTERIKRE e MEEX 2 EE T

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the budgeted
revenue and gross margin by considering the
approved financial budgets, the managements
business, entity-specific information the available
industry and market data;
FRERSURMBRE  BEERETE -
FRTER  ATRTERTISER - FHLHETR
BERENEZEEM

° Re-performing sensitivity analysis on the key
inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their impacts
on the recoverable amount of the CGU.
BXEERE NI A BB ETEURE ST - WG
HMEHNREEMFAIKREEENTERE -
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Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENNEEFARETSEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment in respect of production and trading of

petrochemical products segment (Continued)

BRI EREERFESEZYE  BERREZHETE(E)

The recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment in respect of production and trading on
petrochemical products segment is derived from the
value in use of this cash— generating unit (“CGU”),
and the Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to perform such valuation. As detailed in note
17, the value in use is determined based on the cash
flow projection for this CGU discounted to its present
value based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering a five-year period
taking into account management’s expectations for
the market development involve key assumptions,
including the discount rate, growth rate, budgeted
revenue and gross margin.

AR TEMEEREEDMBZYE  BERRBZR
BEeBAGFARKSEEHADBREELEL([IR
SEABNU)ZFERABETE BESEREZEBEIHHE
HEMETZEEFBHIINME17) - REELE
Lz EREBERReEFEMANZRERETRAITER
EHREET  KEBELAREEELE RBARMERR 2%
BRE  HEEERENEEMISER 2EEE - #iix
BMERFHZ WBREA -

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the financial
budgets prepared by management by comparing
the historical financial budgets with the actual
performance;
FRGBEMBREEERRRIELR © fHEE
BRERR MBRE 2 BEERN

Evaluating the appropriateness of the discount
rate used and terminal growth rate by comparing
with the available industry and market data; and
FREBRABTERTSEIE  fHEEA TR
EREIHERE A - &

Re-performing sensitivity analysis on the key
inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their impacts
on the recoverable amount of the CGU.
BXEBERENE ABBETEURES T - UG
HEHRNBEEMPAIRESENTERE -
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Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENNEEFARETSEHE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment in respect of production and trading of

petrochemical products segment (Continued)

BRI EREERFESEZYE  BERREZHETE(E)

The management of the Group determined that there
was no impairment recognised with respect to the
property, plant and equipment of production and
trading of petrochemical products segment during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

EEEERERTE BE2016F12 831 BILF

B AmtIEREERHEED T Z2YWE - BE KRB
I 2 HERRE ©

Valuation of loan receivables and amounts due from associates

PR B R FE W Bt A R K2 (A 1B

We identified the valuation of loan receivables

and amounts due from associates as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balances

to the consolidated financial statements as a

whole combined with the significant judgement in
determining whether objective evidence of impairment
exists and the related estimation uncertainty in

the measurement of individual impairment losses.

The loan receivables and amounts due from
associates amounted to HK$ 407,682,000 and
HK$1,140,253,000 as at 31 December 2016
respectively.

TAMT R FE W R R P M i R R (B B R B S
AEE REARSERUGREUBEBRRERCEE
M BERSFERECTBERR CBAEGKRETE
ERREBE 2 BAGFT TRERER - BRKERKER
Bt N AP 2016 £ 12 A 31 B 5 51l &% 407,682,000 78
JtM 1,140,253,000 /8 7T °

Our procedures in relation to valuation of loan
receivables and amounts due from associates
included:
BMBEBERWERREREERR R HEZRFE
&

o Understanding through enquiry with the
management the established policies and
procedures on credit risk management of the
Group and assessing and evaluating the process
with respect to identification of indicators
of impairment and the measurement of the
impairment loss;

BRAMEEESH TH BEEECERRERE
Z BEE BUR K A2 Fr DA R AT AZ M st A4 B BB E 1813
ZHETE B SR ERR B ZBIE
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Key audit matter

HEEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENNEEFARETSEE

Valuation of loan receivables and amounts due from associates (Continued)

EWERREWREE AR HEE)

The management of the Group determines that there
was no impairment recognised with respect to the
loan receivables and amounts due from associates
after assessing the value of the pledged equity
interest, subsequent settlement, the financial strength
and repayment ability of the borrowers as detailed in
notes 4 and 22 during the year ended 31 December
2016.
EXETEERT HE2016F12A31BILFE -
EHEFRENEE - HRER  URERAREEN
TER e N TR R - BUCE TR B U E A B
REHRRBE(FIBEHTINM T4 K 22) -

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Evaluating the financial strength and repayment
ability of the borrowers by reference to

the financial information of the borrowers,
subsequent settlements and the recoverable
amount of collaterals; and
BDEBRANMBER - BRERER R
WEEH - AeHEEBANKSBEE HMEREE
VAR

Checking the existence and accuracy of

the recoverable amount of the collateral

and subsequent settlements, to supporting
documents;

AR T IR S B R ERZ FT Bl £ %R 2 177
R HETE M DA 2 AR RA SO
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2016
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Annual Report 2016
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wan Chi Lap.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2017

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #reigm 3k

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
2016 2015
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
HtaE FET FET
Property management fee income MEEBEBIA 5 252,450 220,376
Rental income HelA 5 120,280 86,107
Sales of petrochemical products AHtbEIERHES 5 48,814 30,759
421,544 337,242
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A AN (223,723) (228,997)
197,821 108,245
Dividend income from listed and EmkIELEMEHRELA
unlisted securities 5 5,216 2,796
Other income, gains and losses Emug A - Wis & EE 6 79,151 118,923
Change in fair value of held-for-trading F{EEERE R EE
investments (12,189) (41,956)
Administrative expenses THER (370,328) (297,833)
Other expenses HhE A 11 (22,318) (19,124)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & At &R & Wz
investments 28,190 758
Impairment loss recognised on AHEERERR L
available-for-sale investments BIEEE - (4,323)
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEE
properties 14 69,995 36,893
Change in fair value of loan receivable HHEBRARITETLA 2 BKE
with embedded derivative R DR EEE 23 75,778 41,822
Finance costs 7% & 7 (173,161) (47,990)
Change in fair value of structured mBUEREF I ARE
finance securities 2 103 73
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMBRARZERE = (5,856)
Share of results of associates )N 12,917 (12,384)
Loss before taxation BT Bl B 18 (108,825) (119,956)
Taxation AL 10 (42,284) (9,861)
Loss for the year FREE 11 (151,109) (129,817)
Loss for the year attributable to: FABEEN
Owners of the Company RRBHERA (35,122) (65,777)
Non-controlling interests FEfEfl R = (115,987) (64,040)
(151,109) (129,817)
Loss per share (in HK dollar) BRREE(AUBTIIR)
— Basic — HXK 12 (0.015) (0.029)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £4B#RREM 2 EUER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Loss for the year FRNEE (151,109) (129,817)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hih2mkz=(HZH)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or T A[EA Bz Ko HE -
loss:
Gain arising on revaluation of leasehold BHEEMEEE 2 K=
properties 14,608 12,659
Exchange differences arising on translation MmEEAVER =% (424,732) (397,163)
Income tax related to items that will not be NRAI &SR B 2 BT EH
reclassified (1,432) (1,020)
(411,556) (385,524)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently — AIREI1EEBA 187522 B H -
to profit or loss:
Fair value gain (loss) arising on revaluation AN EREEGHEE S
of available-for-sale investments A EkE(EE) 28,173 (19,102)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At ERERERBE
investments recycled to profit for the year 5] 48 2= 6 N £ - 4,323
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal RO E N ERERE
of available-for-sale investments FHEHZK (28,190) (758)
Share of other comprehensive expense of BAEHE N F]
associates Hih 2 mESTH (5,573) (10,535)
(5,590) (26,072)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FRHEMEES
(net of tax) (BRTi1&) (417,146) (411,596)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FAZES B (568,255) (541,413)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to: 2 HE X H 4258 fE(L :
Owners of the Company RARER A (433,084) (453,500)
Non-controlling interests R (135,171) (87,913)
(568,255) (541,413)

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 B84t R &

At 31 December 2016
R2016F 12431 H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kiat FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties TEYHE 14 2,355,619 2,443,340
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB kA 15 3,744,918 3,956,367
Land use rights o 3 B A 16 182,465 199,615
Goodwill E2 17 46,463 46,463
Interests in associates Bt N AR 18 865,037 743,526
Structured finance securities EEESRIES 20 6,831 6,728
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 21 288,903 310,179
Loan receivable with embedded WERAXPTET A ZE
derivative IR E 23 - 736,866
7,490,236 8,443,084
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 24 98,928 107,214
Held-for-trading investments RIEEERE 25 146,668 112,998
Trade receivables JiE U BR X 26 18,886 12,950
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENREREM
receivables JE UK 27 697,014 503,776
Amounts due from associates JFE LS BS: 2 N B FR 19 1,140,253 1,149,637
Loan receivables FEUW B X 22 407,682 270,012
Pledged bank deposits IR TIF N 28 1,730 29,988
Bank balances and cash RITER MRS 28 734,988 459,665
3,246,149 2,646,240
Assets classified as held-for-sale TIVESEHE 2 B E 29 - 205,628
3,246,149 2,851,868
TOTAL ASSETS EERE 10,736,385 11,294,952
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & Bt &4k R &

At 31 December 2016
R2016F 12931 H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FET FET
EQUITY IR 2
Capital and reserves EARR#EE
Share capital [EEIN 31 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves s 32 2,730,313 3,163,397
Equity attributable to owners of the RATEB NEERAE
Company 6,357,094 6,790,178
Non-controlling interests FEVE 233,711 370,889
TOTAL EQUITY IR A48 {E 6,590,805 7,161,067
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Borrowings BE 33 1,487,075 1,236,320
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIEE & 34 214,412 196,128
1,701,487 1,432,448
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables FER BRI ik 35 76,571 273,792
Accrued charges, rental deposits EEtER HBEERE
and other payables i AN 3K 36 717,056 838,834
Borrowings (==t 33 1,621,026 1,369,567
Taxation payable FEfSFHIR 29,440 16,828
\ 2,444,093 2,499,021
Liabilities associated with assets DIVERHMESHE 2 BEZ
classified as held-for-sale ETRAE 29 - 202,416
2,444,093 2,701,437
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHAE 4,145,580 4,133,885
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BREREERAE 10,736,385 11,294,952
Net current assets BREBEE 802,056 150,431
Total assets less current liabilities BEABERRBARGE 8,292,292 8,593,515
The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 218 FBEEEF2I8AIRE N HBMARCEES
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZR2017F3H27 BRI R EEREITI L
directors on 27 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: TR RZEZFBRER
Mr. Gao Jian Min Mr. Liu Tianni
BEREE BIR G EE
Director % Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY S4B B REK

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B ZE2016F 12 31 HIFF/Z
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
RAREEAEERE
Asset Investment Non-
Share  revaluation  revaluation  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Bx EEERRE REEHRE B GRE REER Ait FERAER RAAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET TET FET FET
(Note)
(Wit)
At 1 January 2015 201541 A1A 3,626,781 205,344 15,554 874,139 2,637,102 7,358,920 458,802 7,817,722
Loss for the year FRER = = = = (65,777) (65,777) (64,040) (129,817)
Qther comprehensive income FREMPERS ()
(expense) for the year - 11,639 (15,537) (383,825) — (387,723) (23,879) (411,596)
Total comprehensive income FREENE (T EE
(expense) for the year - 11,639 (15,537) (383,825) (65,777) (453,500) (87,913 (541,413)
Dividend (Note 13) RE(HrE13) = = = = (115,242) (115,242) = (115,242)
At 31 December 2015 R2015612A31H 3,626,781 216,983 17 490,314 2,456,083 6,790,178 370,889 7,161,067
Loss for the year FREE = = = = (35.122) (35122) (115987 (151,109)
Other comprehensive expense for ~ FREMREXE
the year = 13,176 (17) (411,121) — (397,962) (19,184) (417,146)
Total comprehensive income FR2ENR ()88
(expense) for the year — 13,176 (17) (#11,121) (35,122) (433,084) (185,171) (568,255)
Dividend paid to non-controling H-RH BRI
interests of a subsidiary EmnZBARE
(Note 43(c)) (B 430) - - — - - — (70,607) (70,607)
Capital injected from non-controling ~ —KHBZA .2 Sl
interests of a subsidiary HERRA = = = = = = 68,600 68,600
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 3,626,781 230,159 — 79,193 2,420,961 6,357,094 233,711 6,590,805

Note: Fair value change of available-for-sale investment measured
at fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until the
available-for-sale investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZA8HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z
2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before taxation FRELRTEE (108,825) (119,956)
Adjustments for: P
Share of results of associates B(hEE AR EE (12,917) 12,384
Depreciation of property, plant and Y B REEITE
equipment 69,424 39,814
Release of land use rights o b {55 R AR 5 4,194 4,487
Finance costs s E R 173,161 47,990
Dividend income from listed and unlisted Rk IEETREBA
securities (5,216) (2,796)
Interest income B WA (77,821) (124,029)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE SR E R
investments (28,190) (758)
Impairment loss recognised on available- A HERERR
for-sale investments WIEEE - 4,323
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKTBRARIMEE - 5,856
Net (gain) loss on disposal of property, LEME  BERZEZ
plant and equipment (Wes) B8 558 (149) 566
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEE
properties (69,995) (36,893)
Change in fair value of loan receivable MEHRAXITETAZEKE
with embedded derivative R AR EED) (75,778) (41,822)
Change in fair value of structured finance EEUEESBMESFZAAE
securities EE) (103) (73)
Change in fair value of held-for-trading RIEEERECANELZH
investments 12,189 41,956
Operating cash flows before movements in 38 & & Z B ATHY
working capital BEXEBREN (120,026) (168,951)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER A (E0) 1,226 (87,438)
Increase in held-for-trading investments BIEEEIREE N (45,859) (154,954)
Increase in trade receivables JFE 5 BR SR 38 0 (6,789) (907)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and e BRI EM
other receivables FE UL FRIE N (130,133) (101,074)
(Decrease) increase in trade and bills FE BR IR R 248 (Rt 2> ) 35 40
payables (179,192) 166,087
Increase in accrued charges, rental JEETER - HBiEe Rk
deposits and other payables oAt & AT SR8 A0 87,092 12,521
Cash used in operations KEXEKAZRE® (393,681) (334,716)
Dividend received B AR S 5,216 2,796
Interest paid BEFLE (158,787) (47,990)
Tax paid [ERNEEN (3,387) (9,866)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBAAZFRE
ACTIVITIES (550,639) (389,776)

Silver Grant International Industries Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &Z48 B & RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ20164F 12 H31 HIFF/ZF
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEWR
Addition of available-for-sale investments EANA M ERE (22,500) (69,295)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment &A% - E KR (50,128) (54,378)
Settlement of construction costs payable SENFES DN (228,446) (892,394)
Interest received B2 W F B 10,968 33,043
Interest income received from loan BUWHERARITETLAZ
receivable with embedded derivative FEUE A B U A - 38,800
Payments received for assets classified as  JIEIFEEEE 2 B WA
held-for-sale - 127,180
Repayment from an associate — X E RN AER - 23,478
Advance to an associate Y —REE N E)FRIE (18,878) (273,622)
Advance to third parties B E= (100,000) (106,332)
Repayment from a third party BRT—RE=H 22,321 12,582
Advance of loan receivables AW E R (155,450) —
Receipt of loan receivables L B i U B 3R - 482,676
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and H&E¥WE « =& EREHS
equipment O] 668 58
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale ~ HER[fHHERE
investments FriS k18 62,350 25,371
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHTB R B TS 5KE - 56,394
Proceeds on redemption of loan receivable 1ZRIEERIMERARTETEZ
with embedded derivative FEWE SR 2 FT{S 5/I8 812,644 —
Capital injection to an associate m—XKEERE 2 EAREA (158,926) (225,984)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits TREERIRI TR 26,283 3,774
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING REXKFEB(FA)ZHRE
ACTIVITIES 200,906 (818,649)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AE R
Other loans raised HEMERME 1,053,346 573,105
Repayment of other loans EREMER (371,275) (488,949)
Bank loans raised RITEHREE 1,395,344 1,499,339
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (1,404,443) (1,438,443)
Dividend paid BT E - (115,242)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of $—RIEZEHRBZHBARZ
a non-wholly owned subsidiary e h R 2 BRI R (70,607) —
Capital injection from non-controlling H—RIELEHRBNMBARZ
interest of a non-wholly owned subsidiary JEIEHI R F B AN RA 68,600 —
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RMEXBRBFRS
ACTIVITIES 670,965 29,810
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASH H&RRESZSEEMORD)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEE 321,232 (1,178,615)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERFASEEFIEE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 459,665 1,685,638
Effect of foreign currency rate changes N SR A B 2 & (45,909) (47,358)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ReRASEEFERHE
THE END OF THE YEAR 734,988 459,665
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RERASEEEHRIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash SRrTERNES 734,988 459,665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

1.

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the subsidiaries of the Company
operate. For the convenience of the financial statements
users, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), as the
Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading
and investments. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in property investment, other investments, the
distressed assets business and production and trading
of petrochemical products. Details of the principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and the Group’s
associates are set out in note 43.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of

interests in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 and

HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer plants

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2012 — 2014 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers and
related amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
measurement of
share-based payment
transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 4  Applying HKFRS 9
Financial instruments,
with HKFRS 4 Insurance
contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of
and HKAS 28 assets between an
investor and its associate
or joint venture®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised
losses’

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvement to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016
cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets. HKFRS
9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in
2014 to include the new requirements for general
hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS
9 was issued in 2015 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through
other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

° all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31 December 2016,
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a
material impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-
for-sale investments, including those currently stated
at cost less impairment, will either be measured as
fair value through profit or loss or be designated as
FVTOCI (subject to fulfillment of the designation criteria).
In addition, the expected credit loss model may result
in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “lLeases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing and
operating cash flows respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$1,001,000 as disclosed in note 38. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and
hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
directors complete a detailed review.

Annual Report 2016

FERAFTREET 2EBMBRE
ZR((EBHBREER ) (&)

ERMBREENE16RHEE(E)

REEBEFENFEI7HR  AEED
PREHERHEREELH(ARES
AEBAN)ZENEENKEREENE
AREHERE ERABYBRESE
B 56 16 557 5 42 T A 5 [ B8 08 s 1 fid
BEERKE  HEEREENR —
BEAZIEREEEM A EENLF
BEZONBRELEEES -

HABEASSRERR - BEVBHRE
HRFE16HADHET B S ERE
17 HTEASRRERE - & &
ZRHEABHEDE AL SHENR
AHE -

SN - BEM B RELERE 165 EK
2EMNME -

RNEBR2016F12A31BHEAE T
T8 4R 8 T &K 1,001,000 78 7T 1 K
I8 - SRS RERH
BREBBMBREENFE165RIET
MECER  AUAEEBEREZE
HERRTHAEEERAENEE K
FEBRHERERBESVBREER
F1I6HBEFEAREENTHEE - 11t
SN+ FE FR 3T % BE AT RS B Bk SR AT
22V REEELEE - R RE
EENFARENA - REGHAMBEE
ZEBEFUTER -

— T REFHR

99



100

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values, as appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below:

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Lease”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value
in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date of
the Group gains until the control date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4&&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs of disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the property to derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) and buildings held
for use in production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or revalued amount less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Factory for the use in the production or supply of goods
or services are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. For those leasehold land and buildings used for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued amount,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses and
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end
of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the asset revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
or fair value of property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress less residual value over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Other interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Commission income are recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from the sale of petrochemical products is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles
have passed.

Property management fee income is recognised when
management service is rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight line basis over the term of the leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
three categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4&&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees, points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for financial assets other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for

trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gain or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 46.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from associates/subsidiaries,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Equity securities traded in an active market and debt
securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale debt securities relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for— sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the investment
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables which are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from associates/subsidiaries, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When other receivables, trade receivables, amounts
due from associates/subsidiaries are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade and
bills payables and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Annual Report 2016

EREHBERE)
EEEA

AiE  2EREERBEREER
A—BRERHEREEEEREARLT
MHENEE) MELANEREER
RAEMEBBEE KA  EEE
HEEEAR B AL AIER TR A
BRHER - ERERERAINAE
REERX M AERRER - FIRR
MIRBEBA SR EERBERAFTME -

A EMIEERAREEMEERER
MR °

B RS

BRIERE A IR FEE ANE B A i RL T
2GRS E WA BaL - BRI
BT T HER ©

TSI 8 R T ot N 6 1B 468 55 1) S e B 1
ZHBERAER B 2 BFR AR
HENBGERPHER - ARgms 82
RIFRARERES @& AEM)
AN RBIER B B E < BN FERER &6 B
BRRRARRELRA - LREEH
BEZANERFHAZARRREEE
EERERER - FRRAXHAETELEN
BB E - SRAGE TS BRI
BEPRBHNMER - BERKBEK
A2 BTHE - EREHEAARERER
PR -

—E—RNFFW

121



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before
taxation’ as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4&&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period, except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases, in which case
the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for staff in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), excluding Hong Kong and Macau, and
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for staff in
Hong Kong are defined contribution retirement benefit
payments and are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4&&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revision to accounting estimate
is recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
of HK$2,355,619,000 (2015: HK$2,443,340,000),
representing properties for commercial use are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of these investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to these investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through use.

The remaining investment properties of the Group with
fair value of nil (2015: HK$205,628,000), representing
the Group’s residential properties, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, these properties were held
under a business whose objective is to recover through
sale. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to these
investment properties has been measured based on the
tax consequences of recovering the carrying amounts
entirety through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdiction in various cities in the
PRC. Accordingly, significant judgment is required in
determining the amount of land appreciation and its
related income tax provision. The Group recognised
LAT under deferred taxation, and the provision of the
LAT was included under deferred taxation charged to
profit or loss when the management considered that
the investment properties are ready for realisation
through sale. The Group recognised the LAT based on
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the income
tax expenses and the related deferred taxation in
the periods in which such tax is finalised with the
local authorities when the investment properties were
disposed.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recoverability of loan receivables and amounts
due from associates

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
HK$407,682,000 (2015: HK$270,012,000) and
HK$1,140,253,000 (2015: HK$1,149,637,000)
loan receivables and amounts due from associates
respectively. The Group assesses the recoverability of
the loan receivables and amounts due from associates
on individual basis, when there is objective evidence
of important loss on loan receivables and amounts
due from associates, the Group estimates the future
cash flow of loan receivables and amounts due from
associates for impairment testing purpose. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between loan receivables and the amounts due from
associates’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flow (exclude credit losses that
have not been incurred discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition) where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected a
material impairment loss may arise in future financial
periods.

Fair value of investment properties and leasehold
land and buildings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
are stated at fair value of HK$2,355,619,000 (2015:
HK$2,443,340,000) and HK$277,407,000 (2015:
HK$272,565,000) respectively based on the valuation
performed by independent qualified professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based
on market value basis which involves, inter-alia, certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions.
In relying on the valuation, management has exercised
their judgment and is satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assets belongs. Determining whether impairment
needs to be provided requires an estimation of future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating
units. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation for cash generating units are set out
in note 17.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

In impairment testing, the Group determines the
recoverable amounts of relevant property, plant and
equipment or the respective cash generating units to
which the property, plant and equipment belong, which
is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. If there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, the recoverable amount shall be estimated
for individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group
shall determine the recoverable amount of the cash
generating units to which the asset belongs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the relevant
assets or the cash generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or the cash generating units
for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or there is a downward revision of future
estimated cash flows due to unfavourable changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment are
HK$3,744,918,000 (2015: HK$3,956,367,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ2016F 12431 HILF/E
5. Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue from major products, investments and services
is analysed as follows:

5.

WA R T RBER

BEZEEm  KERRBOHBA ST
T

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Property management fee income YIEEREIA 252,450 220,376

Rental income HE WA 120,280 86,107
Dividend income from listed and unlisted i &IEEmESREWA

securities 5,216 2,796

Sales of petrochemical products AH{tTEMEESE 48,814 30,759

426,760 340,038

The Group is currently organised into six operating
divisions: distressed assets business, investments
(including the results from held-for-trading investments,
available-for-sale investments, structured finance
securities, loan receivable with embedded derivative
and loan receivables), sales of properties, property
leasing, property management and production and
trading of petrochemical products. These operating
divisions are the basis of the internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, in order to allocate resources
to segments and to assess their performance. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly review
segment assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B ZE2016F 12 31 HIFF/Z

5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDEER(E)
Segment revenues and results DERAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AT RASBE WA REEZKLE KR
results by operating and reportable segment: =

Production

and trading

of petro-

Distressed chemical
assets products

business Sales of Property Property RiffT Con-
FREE Investments  properties leasing management EREE  solidated
£ k& NEHE NEHE NEER R#E &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AT AT AT 7ET AT AT

| /E/ ] /E/L

Year ended 31 December 2016 EZ2016512A 318

LEE

Revenue WA - 5,216 - 120,280 252,450 48,814 426,760
Segment (loss) profi AH(EE) AR (1) 113,804 (57) 143,372 5,082 (218,951) 49,149
Other unallocated income, gains~ EHARAEMA «

and losses YisREE 58,546
Corporate expenses NABE (56,276)
Finance costs SBEE (173,161)
Share of results of associates ~ ZEBEATEE 12917
Loss hefore taxation BitAEE (108,825)

Year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015512A 318

LEE

Revenue WA — 2,19 — 86,107 220,376 30,759 340,038
Segment (loss) profi A (BB &7 (4 34,499 (39 68,737 (19130 (150,190) (66,127)
Other unallocated income, gains  EHARZEMA «

and losses WEREE 73,373
Corporate expenses AAER (66,828)
Finance costs SBEE (47,990)
Share of results of associates ~ EEBEATEE (12,384)
Loss before taxation BiAIEE (119,956)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

5.

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results of each
segment without allocation of items which are not
actively reviewed by the chief operating decision maker,
including other unallocated income, gains and losses,
comprising interest income other than those from loan
receivables, net foreign exchange loss, net gain (loss)
on disposal of corporate property, plant and equipment
and certain miscellaneous unallocated income. The
unallocated corporate expenses, finance costs and
share of results of associates are not allocated
into individual segment as they are under central
management. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

5.

WA R EBER(E)

DERBARER(E)

DEENBR)ESDMNESE
BLERRESEIBRANZIAE
RERE - EMARD WA - et M E
1B BEREREFTIAINZ FIEKA
EREEFE LERRYE  BER
e (BB FEEE T ARD B
HRA - ARARTOEARER - #15
ERMBEBERRESE  RERHR
EETNETDERBULNED » EIIFLE
BRABERDBRBFEREELERR
EEWZTE -

Bk H



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4&&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

MBHRME

5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARSIER(E)
Other segment information HitnBER
Production
and trading
of petro-
Distressed chemical
assets products
business Sales of Property Property FfI
TREE  Investments properties leasing  management EREE  Unallocated  Consolidated
£ & hEHE VELiL VES S it FPAR #e
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT FAT AT 7ET 7T i1 7A7T 78T
Year ended 31 December 2016
BEN6E12 3 ALER
Amounts included in the measure of segment proft or loss or segment assets:
BEREEADETA BRI DA AR
Depreciation i - - - (2,581) (2,761) (55,325) (8,757) (69,424)
Release of and use rights HiERER - - - - = (4,194 = (4,194)
Change In far value of stuctured SIS BEAL
finance securies DrBEY - 103 - - - - - 103
Change in fai vaue of loan IR TELAZE
receivable with embedded YERZ A ERS
derivative - 15,118 - - - - - 15,118
Interest income from loan BUESZHBMA
recelvables - 16,755 - - - - - 16,755
Change in fair valug of held-or- -~ #5{EBERELAERH
trading investments - (12,189) - - - - - (12,189)
Gl on disposal of avalable-for- HEF i ERAN
sale investments - 28,190 - - - - - 28,190
Change in fai vaue of RENEMERY
nvestment properties - - - 69,995 - - - 69,995
Net gain (oss) on disposal HENE B RiEE
of property, plant and i g
equipment - - (35) 20 (70) - 34 149
Amounts regularly provided to the chief aperating decision maker:
AR TERERRENEE
Capial additons g5GE
— praperty, plant and — % BERiE
equipment - - - 1,603 5,407 11,557 1,724 92,268
Interest n associates BEnTER - - 4,37 - - 823,680 - 865,087
Share of results of associates BB EL7ZE - - (16,039) - - 2895 - 12917
Annual Report 2016 R RNFFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

MBHRME

5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDHERE)
Other segment information (Continued) Hit 5 HBER(E)
Production
and trading
of petro-
chemical
Distressed products
assels Sales of Property Property RiltT
business  Investments properties leasing  management E@EE  Unalocated  Consolidated
TREERH RE  DERE  DERE hEER ke ATON A
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT FAT AT FAT FAT AT FAT
Year ended 31 December 2015
BENE12AN ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or [0ss or segment assefs:
BEREEABRHERANPER 8%
Depreciation il - = - (785) (1,849) (28,298) (8,886) (39,814)
Release of land userights ~~ TH{EMIERS - - - - - (4,481) - (4.481)
Change in fair value of ERISEERL
structured finance MRS
securities - 73 - - - - - 73
Change in fair valug of loan~~ W&BRASTETE
receivable with embedoed 7 ENEFZ A%
derivative % = 41,822 = = = = = 41,822
Interest income from o~~~ [EMEF 28
receivables BA - 41,300 - - - - - 41,300
Change n fairvalug of held- ~ HEEEREALE
for-trading investments g - (41,956) - - - - — (41,956)
Gain on disposal of avallable-  HETHEERE
for-sale investments b = 758 = = = = = 758
Change in fair value of RENELAEEY
investment properties - - - 36,875 - - 18 36,893
Impaiment loss recogrised ~ WEHERERD
on avallable-for-sale bai
investments - 4,323) - - - - — (4,323
Net loss on disposal of LENE - BER
property, plant and REEEEE
equipment FE = = = (156) (109 = (301) (566)
Amounts reqularly provided to the chief operating decision maker.
EHRELIEEERRANGE
Capital addftions EXRE
— property, plant and =% KRR
equipment & - - - 8 4,236 761,765 - 766,079
Interest n assoclates BELAER = = 60,674 = = 682,852 - 74352
Share of results of associates  EEBENREE = = (18,266) = = 5,882 = (12,384)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDEER(E)
Other segment information (Continued) Hittn BER(E)
During year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no 20166 Kk 2016F 12 A31 HIEFE
single customer accounted for 10% or more of Group’s N AEBWARELRBEE KT
total revenue. BRZMN10% °
Geographical information 35 & R
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and REBEzEEMBERERES - A%
Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue from external ERIMEEERZMARERNAEEZ
customers is based on the location of the Group’s B B LAEL SN A R ZIER BN EE A
operations to derive the revenue and information about M DR E RS AT -

its non-current assets by geographical location of the
assets are detailed below:

Revenue Non-current assets
WA FRBEE

2016 2015 2016 2015
CLCY 0 HK$'000 EEGLEYUM  HK$'000
FET FAET TET TAT

Hong Kong BB 5,847 3,731 294,004 283,499
PRC a3 420,913 336,307 6,900,498 7,105,812

426,760 340,038 7,194,502 7,389,311

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments. Hiat FERBEELEBES/MITA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ20164F 12 H31 HIFF/ZF
6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HflA > WEKEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest income A B UA
— bank deposits — RTTTE 6,034 13,234
— amounts due from an associate — W — KRB E DA 52,258 55,763
— loan receivables — EREK 16,755 41,300
— others — Hfth 2,774 13,732
Commission income A BA 3,095 3,290
Net foreign exchange loss EHEBEFE (3,323) (8,878)
Net gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEWE  BERRE 2 W (EE)
plant and equipment pe - 149 (566)
Government grant (Note) BRATw Bh (A7 7E) 826 1,225
Others H 583 (177)
79,151 118,923

Note: During year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
amount mainly represents for non-recurring reward
received from PRC tax bureau to recognise the Group’s
significant contribution of tax in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EFE 2016 F 12 31 HIFF/E

7. Finance Costs

7. HXEHA

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within 7B FL & RNRHEE R BITER
five years b 123,740 121,416
Interest on other loans wholly repayable within ZBRA A FERNEEREENEMEES
five years A2 49,421 37,755
Total @z 173,161 159,171
Less: Amounts capitalised in the cost of i BAMEBEBEREE
qualifying assets BN = (111,181)
173,161 47,990

Borrowing costs capitalised during year ended 31
December 2015 were specifically related to expenditure

on qualifying assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERTHEARMHE
Remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENSENTEES RITHAHNHE
directors and the chief executive were as follows: mr
2016
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits  contribution Performance
Fees HER BEE bonus Total
e Hi A H®3 RERA ok
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note b)
(Kizth)
Executive directors HTES
Gao Jian Min (Note a) SRR (Hita) 500 4,817 18 630 5,965
Liu Tianni EPN 400 - - - 400
Gu Jianguo (Note c) BB (fc) 400 - - - 400
1,300 4,817 18 630 6,765
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were T EEMEe HE AR AR RAE
for their services in connection with the management of BB AEGEIRREREOME o
the affairs of the Company and the Group.
Non-executive directors F#H{TEZ
Chen Xiaozhou (Note c) BRZR(frxc) 500 - - - 500
Hui Xiao Bing BE 500 - - - 500
Chen Qiming PR 500 - - - 500
1,500 - - - 1,500
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above FRSEITEEMES IV EK BAARE
were for their services as directors of the Company. E7REME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BFE 2016 F 12 H 31 HIEFZ

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (Continued)

Fees

He
HK$°000
FET

8.

Salaries
and other
benefits
HER
Ht3E R
HK$°000
FE

EERTBRERME(#)

2016

MPF
contribution
BES

%
HK$’000
FET

Performance
bonus
REEA
HK$’000
FET

(Note b)

(#fitb)

Total
B
HK$°000
FET

Independent non- BUFHITES
executive directors
Liang Qing 2% 400 - - - 400
Zhang Lu SR 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming HREA 300 - - - 300
1,100 - - - 1,100

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the

Company or its subsidiaries.

B ERTEEME DER /AR
AXEMBAR ZEFT 2 RBME -

Total

3,900

4,817

18

630

9,365
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E
8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERTHARME &)
Remuneration (Continued)
2015
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution  Performance
Fees Hek WS bonus Total
ik Hit @A X FRTEAL o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FHET
(Note b)
(Witb)
Executive directors YTES
Gao Jian Min (Note &) BER(Hita) 500 4,530 18 700 5,748
Liu Tianni ElPNi 400 - - - 400
Gu Jianguo (Note c) BEB(fiic) 400 = = = 400
1,300 4,530 18 700 6,548

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Non-executive directors FHTEE

FIMTEEMES DEAARARRALE
EAEBERGRERGOMSE -

Chen Xiaozhou (Note c) BRZRE(Hitc) 500 - - = 500
Hui Xiao Bing BE 500 - - - 500
Chen Qiming BRSNS 500 - - - 500

1,500 = = = 1,500

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company or
its subsidiaries.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERTTHARME &)
Remuneration (Continued)
2015
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution Performance
Fees ek ¥ b bonus Total
e HAiiEH R KA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note b)
(Hztb)
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Liang Qing 25 400 = = = 400
Zhang Lu SR 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming HREA 300 - - - 300
1,100 — — — 1,100
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments LB IERITEEMES IEKAEA
shown above were for their services as directors of the AIENB AR ZEEZREIME -
Company or its subsidiaries.
Total k] 3,900 4,530 18 700 9,148

No directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments in both years.

Notes:

(a) Mr. Gao Jian Min is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

(b) The performance related incentive payments are
determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

(c) Mr. Chen Xiaozhou and Mr. Gu Jianguo resigned as the
director of the Company on 20 January 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z

9. Employees’ Remuneration 9. EIZHE
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included AEEBREERHATEE—(2015
one (2015: one) director and the chief executive, details F: - )REERITHRER  F5®
of whose emolument are set out in note 8 above. B & 5F 18 8 5 P £SO FES o H g4I
The emoluments of the remaining four (2015: four) (20154 : M) ZATHBE T

individuals are as follows:

2016 2015
LLECY Ol HK$'000
TET TAT

Salaries and other benefits e REAMmEF 7,823 16,499
Performance related incentive payments BRBER 2 EZS 2,292 2,100
Retirement benefit costs RIRAE TR A 54 54

10,169 18,653
Their emoluments are within the following bands: BENMENFTIER :

Number of employees

BEA™
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BT E 2,500,000 /7T 2 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & 7T £ 3,000,000 8 7T 2 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,000,001 8 T £ 6,000,000 7T = 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 & 7L & 8,000,000 /8 7T - 1
4 4

e}

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REFBREEFRA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZ20164F 12 H31 HIFF/ZF
10. Taxation 10. #i1E
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Tax charge (credit) comprises: BIEZH(WA)BHE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — current tax AR AT AR — BDHEH 25,358 1,838
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — under(over) FEREMEMSTE — BIFEE
provision in prior year BT 2 (BEEREE) 74 (1,196)
25,432 642
Deferred taxation (note 34): EIEFRTE : (faE34)
— current year — REE 16,852 9,219
Tax charge attributable to the Company ARAwE REKTBAREWN
and its subsidiaries RIEX 42,284 9,861

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong incurred
tax losses.

The taxation charge of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the year has been made based on the Group’s
estimated assessable profits calculated in accordance
with the relevant income tax laws applicable to the
subsidiaries in the PRC.

The withholding tax arising from dividend income
received from PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 5%.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

10. Taxation (Continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

or loss as follows:

10. BIE(#)

FARIBAR EEE
HERWT ¢

MBHRME

Bmk TR ATERE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Loss before taxation Fr 151 Bl S 18 (108,825)  (119,956)
Taxation at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax LR EREMERNE25% 2
rate of 25% I8 (27,206) (29,989)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax — BLE 5 A & NS HURF S ML 7%
purpose mE 17,888 16,742
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax LTS A EARR AT
purpose 8 (46,148) (42,799)
Tax effect of share of results of associates BNEE DR ERNNBEE (3,229) 3,096
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBEENREZE 75,901 54,788
Withholding tax arising from dividend income WX B & A w8 WA Z B
received from PRC subsidiaries HF 8,152 —
Tax effect of change in fair value of REMEEELHNHGEHE
investment properties 16,852 9,219
Under(over)provision in prior year VARTF E R 2 GREEIR ) 74 (1,196)
Income tax expenses for the year FARTERHR S 42,284 9,861

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EFE 2016 F 12 31 HIFF/E

10. Taxation (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the tax effect relating to

other comprehensive income:

10. BIE(#)

UATERREME
#r

2016 2015
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax [EIlocREN Tax Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount
BREAEE BEXl  RE%LE ERERs g Riikes
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7r FE7r FE7r AT AT AT
Exchange difference arisingon ~ ABEAZERZR
translation (424,732) - (424,732) (397,163) - (397,163)
Fair value gain (loss) on available- AT HERE 2 A B
for-sale investments =(BE) 28,173 - 28,173 (19,102) = (19,102)
Reclassification of revaluation R EREHERER
reserve upon disposal of B ZERRE
avallable-for-sale investments (28,190) - (28,190) (758) - (758)
Impairment loss on available-for-  FREEEZ 2
sale investments recycled to HHERERE
profit for the year BE - - - 4,323 - 4,323
Gain arising on revaluation of BHAENREEL
leasehold properties W& 14,608 (1,432) 13,176 12,659 (1,020) 11,639
Share of other comprehensive ~ B{EHERF 2
expense of associates Ht2ETE (5,573) - (5,573) (10,535) — (10,535)
(415,714) (1,432) (417,146) (410,576) (1,020) (411,596)
Annual Report 2016 — T NFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z
11. Loss for the Year 11. FRAEE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging FABBENRGIA) ¢
(crediting):
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B & 2,800 2,800
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense TFE&EKAT AZE 47,947 52,818
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment #% - ME kZxE2ITE 69,424 39,814
Release of land use rights o Hb {5 PR AR A 5 4,194 4,487
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and i REF 2 & EHLHHES
buildings 2,999 598
Staff costs including directors’ and chief BTERABPEHIARWES 2
executive’s remuneration set out in note 8 BEERTHEH NS 222,858 191,114
Rental income under operating leases for WEMFEIE T EEML 2 HB U
investment properties, less outgoings of A IR 5,675,000 %8 7T
HK$5,675,000 (2015: HK$5,572,000) (2015 : 5,572,000 %7t ) (114,605) (80,535)

Other expenses

Starting from the second half of the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group’s subsidiary TZ United East
voluntarily suspended production due to shortage of
raw materials. Direct costs, such as wages, depreciation
expenses, consumables and other direct attributable
costs incurred by TZ United East during this suspension
period were recognised to profit or loss as other
expenses for both years.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
12. Loss Per Share 12. BREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable KRARHEE A EREAREIE TR
to owners of the Company is based on the following BT EEEE RS
data:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FEIT
Loss: 8

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share  FAGTE SR EAEE 2 EE (K
(loss for the year attributable to owners of the A RIEAS AREIGERETE)
Company) (35,122) (65,777)

2016 2015
in in
thousand thousand

F I T

Number of shares: BRGOEHE :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  F A & &R ELAE B 2 INkEFH

for the purpose of basic loss per share 158 B 2,304,850 2,304,850
No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 HZE20164 K2015F 12 A31 H I &F
December 2016 and 2015 were presented as the B BRARR W EEE L ERR
Company has no potential ordinary shares for the year n - B8 B R2016F k20154
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. 12 431 B IEFEIRFRESER

Annual Report 2016 — T NFFR 151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

13. Dividend

14.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2016, nor has any
dividend proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2015: final dividend of 2014, paid HK$0.05 per share,
in aggregate of approximately HK$115,242,000).

13. RE

7 2016 4 A 37 £ K 1 X 2 2 IR 1 AR B
FARQREBBARER - [F A RS H
RENMEFZZEREARE (20155
BT 220145 R H ik 8 & K0.05%
JL  #EEX) 115,242,000 7T) ©

Investment Properties 14. REYE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair Value A RE
At the beginning of the year REH] 2,443,340 2,479,864
Exchange adjustments TN (157,716)  (142,417)
Reclassified from property, plant and WYz - WERFREEA M)
equipment (Note) — 69,000
Net increase in fair value recognised RIBm AR 2 A B0
in profit or loss FER 69,995 36,893
At the end of the year RER 2,355,619 2,443,340
Unrealised gain on property revaluation BiEREBRRMESEHZ
included in profit or loss LIRS 69,995 36,893

At 31 December 2016, the legal title of the Group’s
investment properties with carrying value of
approximately HK$22,790,000 (2015: HK$23,901,000)
situated in the PRC has not been passed to the Group.

Note: A residential property, which was used as staff quarter in
prior years, of the Group has rented out for rental income
during year ended 31 December 2015. Hence, the
residential property was reclassified from property, plant
and equipment to investment property during year ended
31 December 2015. As at date of reclassification, the fair
value of the investment property was HK$69,000,000.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

R2016F 12 A31H » NE B LR A
BR M {8 %Y & 22,790,000 7% L (2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

14. Investment Properties (Continued)

14. REYHE(E)

The carrying value of the investment properties KEYEZREERTE :

comprises:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Held under long-term
lease/land use right:
— situated in the PRC
— situated in Hong Kong

AR EARR A, fs A

FHFE
— AR 30,335 31,637
— L RNEE 73,700 70,000

Held under medium-term

104,035 101,637
PAFR AR 40, + 3 {58 PR 4

lease/land use right: RS -
— situated in the PRC — R E 2,251,584 2,341,703
2,355,619 2,443,340
All the Group’s property interests held under operating FTEASKEEERLN SN FHERE
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation EARNEERENDEREREUAAAE
purposes are measured using the fair value model BRETE - WHERIRAEREYE -

and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZE2016F 12531 HIFF/Z
14. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group
at 31 December 2016 and 2015 have been arrived at
on the basis of valuations carried out on the respective
dates by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”)
and A-Plus Surveyors Limited (“A-Plus”), both are
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. Vigers and A-Plus are members of the
Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong.

The fair value was determined by reference to
comparable sales transactions available in the relevant
market or by investment approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are
assessed and discounted at the market yield expected
by investors for these types of properties. The market
rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions
of similar commercial properties and adjusted to take
into account the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s
investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties measured at fair value
subsequently to initial recognition, are grouped to Level
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value are observable and the significance of these
inputs.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
years.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

14.

Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the management of
the Group works closely with the independent qualified
professional valuer to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs of the
valuation. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to the management of the Group.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair value for investment
properties and the key unobservable inputs used in the
valuation models.

14. REYHE(E)

DREFERMEERF(E)

RBEHR - AEE 2 EEEREBLE
BREXHEMBEZAFEREYL MEE
BEFHERMMFEESR - FEEZR
REAEXREY  HEH I RAKSRF
AEBECERER®W -

BRAEATIRKBRZELETERR
EZEH(FE3HE)

TRETANKRENERAEFEZF
A R AR EEA P EE A HE

mZER -

Relationship
of unobservable
Valuation Range of inputs to fair value
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs FURBEZEER
1H R2ABZARE AR TUHBEZER TIHBEZEREE MMEZBEE
2016 2015 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
A7 &7
Office 23,549 24,373 Investment approach ()  Capitalisation rate 6% 4% Slightly higher the
HAE RERE BREH= capitalisation rate,
slightly lower the fair
value
ERMEHERS - AAE
i
(i) Market rent RMB68 — RMB80 RMB68 — RMB78 Slightly higher the market
[k per square per square rent, slightly higher the
meter per meter fair value
month permonth  THMENE  AAE
BAGYAKAR BAGTARAR W&
%687 — Bes T —
AR 80T AE®787
Carpark 152,902 163,680  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB3,723 — RMB5,053 — Slightly higher the
FER HBAE price RMB7,446 per  RMB7,446 per  adjusted price slightly
ERERGE square meter  souare meter  higher the fair value
BYRKARE BIFRARY EHEEHR ArfE
37287 — 5,0537C — 6
ART 4467  ARET 46T

Annual Report 2016

— T NFFW

155



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

14. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using

14. REYHE(E)

DREFERMEERF(E)

BRAEAT I RBRZERTEBAA

significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued) BEZEH(FE3H)(E)
Relationship
of unobservable
Valuation Range of inputs to fair value
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs FORBEZEER
R M2A31 BZARE Fth TURBRZER TURBEREEEE NfEZBE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Commercial A 948,661 1,015,582  Investment approach ()  Capitalisation rate 4% — 6% 4% — 6% Slightly higher the
mER RER* ERIEH= capitalisation rate,
slightly lower the fair
value
EREAERR  AAE
i
(i) Market rent RMB70 — RMB70 — Slightly higher the market
[iikriika RMB135 per  RMB135 per rent, slightly higher the
square meter  square meter fair value
per month permonth  TEEEHE  ALE
SAGYRX  BABYAK =
ARBIOT—  ARE0L-—
AR%135 T ARB136T
Residential A 1,134,017 1,145,854 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB42,169 —  RMB43,333 —  Slightly higher the
fEEf iGN price RMB46,739 per  RMB47,482 per  adjusted price rate,
TRERSHE square meter  square meter  slightly higher the fair
BYRKARE  BIARARE value
21608 — 43381 — HHEENR DrE
ARM46,730T  ARB4TART W&
Residential B 73,700 70,000 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ HK$21,080 —  HK$18,121—  Slightly higher the
= B A price HK$29,889 per  HK$26,979 per  adjusted price rate,
BHERHE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
S¥AR BEAR value
21,0087 — 1812181 — SHEEHR LrE
29,8897 26,9795 6
Commercial B 22,790 23,901  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB44,444 —  RMB39,167 —  Slightly higher the
BEL HBAE price RMB47,987 per  RMB50,141 per  adjusted price rate,
ERERGE square meter  square meter  slightly higher the fair
SYARARE  BEARARE value
dadm— 39167 —  EEEENER DrE

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B ZE2016F 12 531 HILF/Z
14. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s
investment properties were held under a business
model whose objective is to recover through sale, of
which HK$205,628,000 has been reclassified as assets
held-for-sale upon meeting the conditions for such
classification.

As at 31 December 2015 the fair value of the investment
properties reclassified as assets classified as held-for-
sale was arrived at by reference to the selling price
agreed with independent third parties during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Annual Report 2016

14. REYHE(E)

DREFERMEERF(E)

BRAEAT I RBRZERTEBAA
BZER(FEIF)(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - - BERRZRE

Leasehold
land and Furniture Factory,
buildings Leasehold and Office Motor plantand  Construction
fELH  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
RgF  EEUNREE BRERE HAERE & I HERES HERIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT & AT AT & AT
COST OR VALUATION HAESE
At 1 January 2015 R201551 A 1A 343,829 7,882 15,464 16,024 38,708 209,134 2,982,307 3,613,338
Exchange adjustments Eja% (986) = (797) (803) (1962) (11,853) (173516) (189.917)
Reclassified to investment BJ|ZRENE (Wi 14)
properties (Note 14) (69,000) - - - - - = (69,000)
Addttions AE = = 973 1,715 2,592 173 760,626 766,079
Disposals He - - 079 (1,.214) (1,100) (2,259) = (5,551)
Revaluation gf 4,187 - - - - - - 4,187
At 31 December 2015 R2015512831A 278,030 7,882 14,651 15,722 38,238 195,196 3,669,417 4,119,136
Exchange adjustments EiAE (1,067) (318) (1,247) (1,050) (2,266) (167,627) (87,182) (260,757)
Transferred upon completion 2T {483 - - - 1,431 - 3,465,335 (3,466,766) =
Additions NE = 7,122 3,909 1,916 5,020 1,583 72,738 92,288
Disposals e = - (308) (734) (3.250) = = (4312
Revaluation Bff 6,235 - - - - - - 6,235
At 31 December 2016 R2016512831R 283,198 14,686 16,985 17,285 37,742 3,494,487 88,207 3,962,590
Comprising: i
At cost BRAE = 14,686 16,985 17,285 37,742 3,494,487 88,207 3,669,392
At professional valuation — R016E 7 EEEE
2016 283,198 - - - - - - 283,198
283,198 14,686 16,985 17,285 37,742 3,494,487 88,207 3,952,590
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2015 R20155181A 4,594 7,882 7,632 11,409 22,34 91,270 - 145,111
Exchange adjustments Eif% (2n) - (879 (655) (1,262) (6,190) - 8,787)
Provided for the year FREE 9,614 = 723 1,329 3,662 24,486 - 39,814
Eliminated on disposals R - - (884) (1,09) (990) (1,957) - 4,927)
Eliminated on revaluation SR (8.472) - - - - - - (8:472)
At 31 December 2015 Po015E12 318 5,466 7,682 7,002 10,967 23,734 107,609 = 162,769
Exchange adjustments i (741) (100) (440) (716) 1,369) (8.995) = (12,355)
Provided for the year FEER 9,440 2047 117 1593 3,651 51,322 - 69,424
Eliminated on disposals HEBHH - - (295) (663) 2,839) = = (3.799)
Eliminated on revaluation EEEEE (8.373) - - - - - - (8.379)
At 31 December 2016 R2016512831R 5,791 10,029 7628 11,201 23,187 149,936 - 207,672
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 R2016412 8318 217,407 4,657 9,457 6,084 14,555 3,344,651 88,207 3,744.918
At 31 December 2015 R2015512431A 272,565 - 7,559 4,735 14,504 87,587 3,569,417 3,956,367
Silver Grant International Industries Limited SR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15. Y¥ - BERREE)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on
a straight-line over the following years:

RAEZTIRINALYE  BEEREZ
HERATRZFNABRETE :

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or over HELHRET 50 F 2k LA

the lease term, M A FHALARE A2

whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 3 years HEMEEE 34
Furniture and fixtures 10 years ERTWNET: 104
Office equipment 5 years WAERNE 5%
Motor vehicles 6 — 10 years RE 6 — 104
Factory, plant and machinery 10 — 20 years T B 23 10 — 204

At 31 December 2016, the legal titles of the Group’s
properties and a container terminal with carrying
value of approximately HK$32,233,000 (2015:
HK$33,805,000) and HK$108,610,000 (2015:
HK$106,809,000) situated in the PRC have not been
passed to the Group.

Included in the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
HK$3,439,063,000 belonged to the Group’s production
and trading on petrochemical products segment.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
performed impairment review of these property, plant
and equipment by reference to a valuation performed by
Vigers, which was detailed in Note 17.

The carrying value of the leasehold properties
comprises:

R20164F 12 A31 B » AN & @ i A 7
B MERERBERE L REEN S
32,233,000% J£(20154F : 33,805,000
7 7t ) }%108,610,0007% 7T (20154 :
106,809,000 7T ) Z X ENARBP EAR
£H o

REBZ2ME BRERLBERRE
3,439,063,000 8 L2 BN ALE 2 A
MIETEREERBEED - R2016
F12A3MBFERN  NEEFRZWE -
B E R E2REE S 2 i s (FEEHE
PRI EE17) A TR E R -

HEWMEZREESSE

2016 2015
LLEX M  HK$'000
TET TET

Long-term leasehold properties situated in
Hong Kong

ERBNERHHEEY R

218,250 211,650

Properties under medium-term land use right  7£ R B LA A2 HA + b {5

situated in the PRC

BEHNYE

59,157 61,015

277,407 272,565
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2016 and 2015 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on the
respective dates by Vigers and A-Plus. The valuations
were arrived at using direct comparison method
by reference to sales evidence as available on the
market. The revaluation surplus on revaluation of the
leasehold land and buildings amounted to approximately
HK$14,608,000 (2015: HK$12,659,000) was credited to
asset revaluation reserve.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The leasehold land and buildings measured at fair
value subsequent to initial recognition are grouped to
Level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value are observable and the significance of these
inputs.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
years.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table shows the valuation techniques used

in the determination of fair values for the Group’s major
leasehold land and buildings and the key unobservable

15. Y% - WERRKREE)

BRAEATTHERZESAELR
EZER(E3IR)

TRETARARARAKEZ T EH
L RBF AR ERFEZFERM
ERARFHEEAREETAFERZIE

inputs used in the valuation models. Bo
Relationship
Range of of unobservable
Valuation unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
Description Fair value techniques Unobservable inputs FIHEEL FUPBE2EER
%R MME BatE TIHBEZER EREE MMEZBE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 &%
Office A 32,233 33,805 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB32,000 —  RMB28,000 —  Slightly higher the
N HBA price RMB37,500 per  RMB35,000 per  adjusted price rate,
ERERGE square meter  square meter  slightly higher the fair
BYRKARE  BTARARE value
R000T—  28000m— HBEBENE ARE
ARM3T500%  ARB35,00T &
Office B 200,500 195,000 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ HK$41,922 —  HK$37,474 —  Slightly higher the
HAZL HBAE price HK$52,231 per  HK$44,409 per  adjusted price rate,
ERERGE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
EYHR41,922 BFHR value
Br—52231 34T4Em— MRBENS DAE
B 44,409 %7 6
Residential 37,415 35,331 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ HK$3,390 — HK$3,309 — Slightly higher the
i HBAE price HK$11,303 per  HK$10,321 per  adjusted price rate,
ERERGE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
STHR3,300 EFAHR3,309 value
BT 11,008  Ar—10321 EHBENE ORE
B BT W&
Car park 424 430  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB160,000 — RMB191,158 —  Slightly higher the
FER B AE price RMB170,000  RMB227,000  adjusted price rate,
ERERGE per carpark  per car park slightly higher the fair
space space value
SEFEREN BEFELEL LRRENS ArE
AR®%160,000 AKH191,158  fi&
T — AR¥ T— ARK
170,000 ¢ 227,000t

Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued)

Certain leasehold interest in land cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
leasehold interest in land continues to be accounted for

as property, plant and equipment.

If leasehold properties had not been revalued, they
would have been included at a historical cost basis at

the following amounts:

15. Y% - WERRKREE)

BE2EN(EIR) (&)

JESL XA EAESIRRANT

BRAEATTHERZESAELR

ETHET W ERE RN S ORE
T RBFED Bl HEERK

HK$’000
FET
Cost as at 1 January 2016 AR 201641 A1 B 157,074

Accumulated depreciation and impairment BT E RRERE
losses (113,841)
Carrying value at 31 December 2016 BREER 2016 F 12 A 31 H 43,233
Carrying value at 31 December 2015 BRMEEMR 2015412 A 31 H 52,673

16. Land Use Rights 16. +ihfFE R
HK$°000
FEIT
cosT R

At 1 January 2015 R20156F1 81H 216,309
Exchange adjustments EH (12,207)
Released for the year FEHH (4,487)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31 H 199,615
Exchange adjustments EH AR (12,956)
Released for the year F S (4,194)
At 31 December 2016 R20164 12 A31 H 182,465

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

16.

17.

MBHRME

Land Use Rights (Continued) 16. TifERARE(E)
The land use rights of the Group were held under REE 2 +(FE AR E LA H
medium-term lease in the PRC and released over the HERBIWAEE 50 F#H -
term of the lease of 50 years.
Goodwill 17. B8
HK$’000
TFET
cosT R
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 R2015%1 A1 B & 2015F K&
and 2016 2016412 A31 H 72,987
IMPAIRMENT E
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 R2015%F 1 A1 H&2015F K
and 2016 2016412 A31H (26,524)
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 2015 F k20164 12 A 31 H 46,463

Included in the carrying value of goodwill as at 31
December 2016, HK$7,001,000 (2015: HK$7,001,000)
has been allocated to the CGU for property
management (“Unit A”) and HK$39,462,000 (2015:
HK$39,462,000) has been allocated to cash-generating
units for production and trading of petrochemical
products (“Unit B”).

The recoverable amount of Unit A has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period
based on an estimated growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%)
with a discount rate of 12% (2015: 12%). Cash flows for
further five years are extrapolated at zero growth rate.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculation
is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on the units’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

17.

18.

MBHRME

Goodwill (Continued) 17. BE(E)
The recoverable amount of Unit B has been determined B B 2 7] B U5 & 58 B B S B E A E B
based on a value in use calculation by Vigers. That BEFEETE B EERLERE
calculation uses cash flow projections based on Bz ERETEMBZ £ERE
financial budgets approved by management covering D/{14 70% (20154 : 12.97%) - 8f I8
a five-year period based on the estimated production ERTERNSFHREEMESNESRTE
capacity of Unit B with a discount rate of 14.70% Bl o Hi85F 23 ¢ M E A0(2015
(2015: 12.97%). Cash flows after the five years period F2%)FHEXR - FHEETENS
are extrapolated at zero (2015: 2%) growth rate. —HTERTABEERAREFZE Ty
Another key assumption for the value in use calculation RERBEHMISER 2TEHETE o
is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on management’s expectations for
the market development.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is ARABZEEZERRBRAFRERRL
no impairment required as at the end of the reporting RERBBEZEE -
period.
Interests in Associates 18. & A RHER
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted Et& AR ERANE— JE LT 693,584 579,417
Share of post acquisition profits and other BAKEEENEEMEE
comprehensive income, net of dividends Wz~ H0BRE WAR B
received 171,453 164,109
865,037 743,526

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of
the reporting period are set out in note 43(b).

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

18.

Interests in Associates (Continued)

18.

Summarised financial information of material

associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of

the Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts shown

in the associate’s financial statements prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using

the equity method in these consolidated financial

statements.

BE N T Em(E)

BERNRAMBENBE

AEBBRBERR IV BENBER
T c LT ZMBEERBERRBETR
REERR BRI EBERER
BUBHREERNAMARS -

PR %S 2 R B REA DA A
RAMB®RA -

Zhong Hai You Qi

(Taizhou) Petrochemical
Company Limited
(“Zhong Hai You Qi”)

Cinda Jianrun Property
Company Limited
(“Cinda Jianrun”)

AR (EM) AL FEEBMERARLT
BRAB(FEHR] (K53=3:3:0))

2016 2015 2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET FET F&T

Current assets MENEE 3,598,260 1,914,324 1,288,222 1,380,123

Non-current assets FREEE 7,830,014 4,340,338 32 36

Current liabilities BB E (4,775,148)  (1,283,788)  (1,150,397) (1,177,912)

Non-current liabilities FRBAE (4,157,125)  (2,901,626) - —

Revenue WA 2,978,084 5,103,393 = =

Profit (loss) for the year FRaF (&) 87,742 17,826 (53,459) (60,888)
Other comprehensive (expense) FREAM2E (S H)

income for the year Wz (21,254) (33,182) 4,803 1,384
Total comprehensive income  FERZEWZE(ZH)

(expense) for the year FEk 66,488 (15,356) (48,656) (59,504)
Dividend received from FRUEEEE R 2

associates during the year [ - = - =
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18.

19.

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

18.

MBHRME

The amounts as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are
unsecured, interest-free and are expected to realise
in the next 12 months from the end of the reporting
period, except that as at 31 December 2016, an
amount of HK$363,750,000 (2015: HK$389,391,000)
bears interest at 13.5% (2015: 13.5%) per annum.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

statements:
Zhong Hai You Qi Cinda Jianrun
hEHR REER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
AT T A7 TAT FEn T8T
Net assets FEE 2,496,001 2,069,248 137,857 202,247 2,633,858 2,271,495
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ AEE z R R fI 33.00% 33.00% 30.00% 30.00% N/A N/A
interest (Note) (Note) THEA TER
(i) (#ri2)
Carrying amount of the Group’s REEERREE
interest 823,680 682,852 41,357 60,674 865,037 743,526
Note: Zhong Hai You Qi is an associate of Tai Zhou Dong HieE - Elﬂ;“}ﬁﬁ;%&'i%#%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#%
Thai Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ Dong Thai”), RFE - FMREGLEBRAF((HR
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. During MERDHBEE A7 - 5A2016¢
the year ended 31 December 2016, TZ Dong Thai and 12531\ H Ziﬁj BMRE R
other shareholders of Zhong Hai You Qi made additional @¢77Hﬂ ﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬂpﬁfﬁﬂﬂ{/ﬁgf@'\
capital injection to Zhong Hai You Qi. The additional ﬁz—"&/} ° ﬁd\\\\ﬁiﬁ&j\gﬁ INE
capital injected by TZ Dong Thai was RMB136,879,000 AR 136,&%79,90075(*@ R
equivalent to approximately HK$158,926,000 (2015: #7168,926,000/8 T )(2016% :
RMB189,148,000 equivalent to approximately AR Eﬂéf189,1\487,000;75\*@ B R4
HK$225,984,000). There is no change in proportion of 2\/2\5,984,0907%70 ° REREALR
shareholding after this capital injection. % 7 Atk L 1 2
Amounts Due from Associates 19. BREE QT

Br 12016412 A31H * < ¥E363,750,000
7 JC(20154F : 389,391,000/ 7T ) =& M
& R & 13.5% (20154 : 13.5%) 5t Ik
FESN - R2016F K& 20154 12 A 31
Bz @EHAEER £ 8 RFBENA
HEHRE 1218 B AEE

REBEREZGR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BF2016F 12 A 31 HIFFE/E
20. Structured Finance Securities

The structured finance securities represent a debt
security with interest payments based on the return
from United States Treasury Bond and distribution from
preference shares in a private company which invests
in a portfolio of asset-backed securities. Expected
maturity date of the debt security is Year 2021. The
structured finance securities contain an embedded early
redemption option and the return which is determined
by reference to the distribution from the private
company which is dependent on the annual default
rate of its underlying asset-backed securities and the
return from United States Treasury Bond. The Group
designated the entire structured finance securities as
financial assets at FVTPL at initial recognition.

The fair value of the structured finance securities is
determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the valuation provided by the counterparty
financial institution at the end of the reporting period.
This fair value is determined by reference to the value of
a comparable new issue of the similar structured finance
securities under the market situation as at 31 December
2016 and 2015. The major assumptions adopted for
the valuation of the structured finance securities are as
follows:

(1) the estimation of risk free rate by reference to
the yield of United States Treasury Bond with
same remaining duration as the structured finance
securities adjusted by the issuer’s credit rating;
and

(2) the estimation of the default rate of the underlying
asset-backed securities by reference to the
historical default rate of asset-backed securities
with similar characteristics.

Annual Report 2016
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EZ20164F 12 H31 HIFF/ZF
21. Available-for-sale Investments 21. IHHERE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHBEREETRE -
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted investments: FEHRE :
Unlisted equity securities, JELETRRARFES
at cost (Note a) B AG(Hiita) 285,360 272,459
Club debentures, at cost BATES  RAARE 5,613 5,613
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value IEETRAFZBHILZ AR ER
(Note b) (HtaEb) - 34,177
290,973 312,249
Less: Impairment loss recognised Ji - BERERBEBE (2,070) (2,070)
Total &5t 288,903 310,179
Notes: Kt -
(@)  Unlisted equity investments represent investments in (@) FEEMRAEBELSDERERBLAE

unlisted equity securities issued by private entities. The
business of these companies include, but not limited to
power and financial services (2015: power and financial
services). They are measured at cost less impairment
at the end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
disposed one of its unlisted equity securities to an
independent third party for a total consideration of
HK$62,350,000. A gain on disposal of HK$28,190,000
has been recognised in profit or loss for current year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

()

BT ZIIELMRAES - 25 A
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1T (20155 : EH RS RRETT
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AR ARBEEERRBEAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

22. Loan Receivables

22. EWER

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT

Current: E
Fixed-rate loan receivables (Note a) EBEWER(Hita) 155,450 =
Variable-rate loan receivables (Note b) FERWER(HZDb) 252,232 270,012
407,682 270,012

Notes:

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
US$20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$155,450,000)
was advanced to a borrower. The loan is unsecured,
guaranteed by Z= MM 7 & T § # & £ 2 7], a non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary of the Group,
carries fixed interest rates at 4.5% per annum and
repayable on 30 March 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, an amount of HK$252,232,000
(2015: HK$270,012,000) is secured by the equity interest
of the borrower, carries floating interest rates at 25%
above the PBOC interest rate (2015: 25% above the
PBOC interest rate). During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group and the borrower agreed to revise the
maturity date of this loan. The loan is repayable within
twelves months as at 31 December 2016.

The Group assessed the value of the pledged equity

interest, the financial strength and repayment ability

for the borrowers, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company, the risk of non-recoverability of the amount

is minimum, and no impairment is considered necessary
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

23.

Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Company and China Uranium Development Company
Limited (“CUDC”), a subsidiary of China Guangdong
Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd., a shareholder with
significant influence over the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement,
the Company acquired an exchangeable bond (the
“Bond”) issued by CUDC with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$776,000,000 at a consideration of
HK$776,000,000. The Bond is exchangeable into shares
of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of CGN
Mining Company Limited (“CGN Mining”), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, at the exchange price
of HK$1.41 per share. The Company had the right to
exchange all or any part of the principal amount of the
Bond in amount being not less than HK$1 million and
up to an aggregate of 20 time of exchange prior to the
maturity date. The subscription was completed on 1
June 2012 (the “Completion Date”).

CUDC had an option to pay cash instead of accepting
the conversion in an amount equal to the closing price
as of the date of exercise of the conversion right by the
Company multiplied by the number of shares that would
have been converted into.

The Bond carries fixed interest rate at 5% per
annum and is matured on the date falling on the fifth
anniversary of the Completion Date. The principal would
be repayable on the maturity date if the conversion right
is not exercised. Interest is payable annually in arrears.
The Group designated the entire loan receivable with
embedded derivative as financial assets at FVTPL at
initial recognition.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

23. MEBMARTTETAZERER
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23. Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

(Continued)

The fair value of the Bond as at 31 December 2015 was
determined based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the prevailing market
rate of interest of similar instruments. The fair value of
the embedded options was calculated using binomial
model. The inputs into the valuation of the Bond were

23. MAERAXNITTETIAZERER

(%)

MR2015F 12 A1BEH 2 ARET
BEGFARRRESTEREUTACZE
RIS M EBEIREE - R AXEREZ
AREDNFERZEERGE - FHEES
HAMEHENT

as follows:

2015
Stock price f&(E HK$0.60 % 7T
Conversion price HiE HK$1.41 87T
Risk free rate (Note a) RS R (HFa) 0.288%
Expected volatility (Note b) TEERR IR (A7t D) 69.290%
Discount rate AL 35 = 12.305%

Notes:

(@)  The risk free rate was determined by reference to the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with similar time to
maturities.

(b)  The expected volatility was the average of the adjusted
annualised standard derivation of the continuously
compounded rates of daily return on the daily adjusted
share price of CGN Mining and implied volatility of Hang
Seng Index.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, CUDC fully
redeemed the Bond with cash of HK$812,644,000. A
fair value gain of HK$75,778,000 was credited to profit
or loss.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the
Bond was HK$736,866,000 with a fair value gain of
HK$41,822,000 credited to profit or loss.
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B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z
24. Inventories 24. 78
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Consumables JEAEm 45,105 46,951
Raw materials R 53,823 60,263
98,928 107,214
25. Held-for-trading Investments 25. HEEERE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE&T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, RED ETHRAE 5
at fair value BARER 146,668 112,998
Fair value of listed held-for-trading investments were FEEEREZ AN ERHERMISZ
based on quoted market bid price in the active market. BEAREETE °
26. Trade Receivables 26. EUWERER
The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days to its REBHRTEESRFI0E60HER
trade customers. Hf o
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26. Trade Receivables (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates:

FEW AR (&)

THRZER B BERE L RIFRFER
8 2 WA FRER B B 2 YRR SR A
HEPRZREDT -

2016 2015
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAET

0 to 30 days 0£230H 12,074 1,611
31 to 90 days 31 HE90H 2,432 2,551
91 to 180 days 91 HE 180 H 1,412 5,065
181 to 360 days 181 H£ 360 H 1,403 3,723
Over 360 days {18 360 H 1,565 —

18,886 12,950

The Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired are those debtors with satisfactory credit
quality under the management’s assessment and with
good past repayment records.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$5,530,000 (2015: HK$11,339,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivable is 269 days (2015: 145
days).

Annual Report 2016

AEE 2 RURF BN K2 s &R
fELRERD  EREEEF ERRABS
=ABRIENEREERERGCENE
BA e

AREBZ2REKEXREEDESRRE
5,530,0007% Jt(20154F : 11,339,000
BIL)RAREARE BB REEL
RBIERBEREE - AEE LB HZEA
BRACAER - ZERER 2 FIER
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B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z
26. Trade Receivables (Continued) 26. EWERR (&)
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not FEUR BR TR B B ER(E I R OB E 2 BR B
yet impaired: W
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
31 to 90 days 31HZ=90H 1,150 2,551
91 to 180 days 91H=180H 1,412 5,065
181 to 360 days 181 H£E360H 1,403 3,723
Over 360 days B8 360 H 1,565 —
5,530 11,339
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: HIREH CEE) -
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year RER &R 3,801 4,589
Impairment losses recognised BB E TR RERR - 550
Exchange realignment JEH R (250) (1,338)
Balance at end of the year REREEER 3,551 3,801
As at 31 December 2016, included in the allowance for MR20165F12A31H, BRERER%E
bad and doubtful debts are impaired trade receivables 15 2 BB B W BR 3R 2 42 45 #4 3,551,000
with an aggregate balance of HK$3,551,000 (2015: P 70(20154F : 3,801,000 7)) BRERE
HK$3,801,000) which are aged over one year. BB —F o

pi|
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27.

28.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other

Receivables

27.

BE - ANRRHEMERK

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Value-added tax receivable (Note a) AJ B 2 SRER (AT a) 266,144 278,950
Loan interest receivables &I & TR F B 60,873 47,864
Amount receivable from a third party (Note b) FEW—{UE=EKESE (K1 b) 220,540 152,932
Others HAt, 149,457 24,030
697,014 503,776

Notes: izt -

(@) Amount being the value-added tax recoverable from
the purchase of property, plant and equipment and raw
materials by a subsidiary TZ United East. The amount
will be subsequently utilised to offset the value added tax
generated from sales of goods in the future.

(b)  Amount being the receivable from an independent third
party. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and are
expected to realise in the next 12 months from the end
of the reporting period.

Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and
Cash

The Group’s pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rate with effective interest at an average of 0.30% (2015:
2.57%) per annum and an original maturity of one year
or less. Pledged bank deposits represent deposits
pledged to banks to secure settlements for certain of
Group’s purchase of raw materials.

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise cash
and short-term bank deposits carrying prevailing market
deposit rates with effective interest at an average
of 0.25% (2015: 0.14%) per annum and an original
maturity of three months or less. Included in the Group’s
bank balances and cash at 31 December 2016 was an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$649,742,000
(2015: HK$434,267,000) respectively which was
denominated in RMB and is not freely convertible into
other currencies.
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28.

@ T —RAEAF - N R (TR
B% - BE R R RATE 2 A
CEE TR TS S S
T 36 F A 8 1 R 4 2
B -

o) WH—(IBYF=52REKALEE-
ZeBEeEER - RERBEHARS
IR Z ARK12(EBER -

BERETER RTEHRREAS

RNEE 2 IIFRITIFE AT 0.30% &
B [E 5 F A K5 B(20154F : 2.57%)
RFEEEHE B —FHIANR - HIFRTT
GHRERUMREAEESNBEETR
MEZ B MR FRITZIFR

AEBZRITEHRESBRERS RHA
BEHHBEAZ@EASIAR @ UIRTER
T IS TF R EF 2 0.25% (2015 4F
0.14%)Er B R HRITER - Z&EE
MR2016F12 A1 H 2 iR1T &8 K IR
% B & B #9649,742,0007% 7T(2015
F 1 434,267,000 70 ) 2 A AR &
FHEEAN - WARTREEHRAL B ARM
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 2016 F 12 31 HIFF/ZE

29. Assets Classified as Held-for-sale/Liabilities 20. FIEREHECEE SIESESH
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for ECEERESRERE
Sale

30.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited RERBREERRA

2016 2015
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAET

Assets classified as held-for-sale HIVER R E 2 B E
— Investment properties — REWE - 205,628

Liabilities associated with assets classified as  F|{E&F{ESHE B E 2@

held-for-sale ZBE

— Considerations received — B2 KE - 202,416
Pledge of Assets 30. EEKA
At 31 December 2016, the Group pledged certain R2016F12A31H AEEE & &
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings, RAREHRBFTEAAES LA
land use rights and factory, plant and machinery 2,205,246,00078 7T * 200,500,000% 7T
with an aggregate carrying value at the end of the 182,465,000/% T } 719,823,000 JT
reporting period of approximately HK$2,205,246,000, ZETHREYE HEITHWEEF - +
HK$200,500,000, HK$182,465,000 and WERERIR - BE LSRR IER
HK$719,823,000 respectively to secure general banking AEEER T —RERTRRE KM
facilities granted to the Group (note 33), other loan (note (fF5E33) «~ HMEFK(HIFEI3) k—H&
33) and other payable to an independent third party BN E=FHEMENSR(MIFESS) ©
(note 36).

AA
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31.

EZ20164F 12 H31 HIFF/ZF
30. Pledge of Assets (Continued) 30. EEEKH (&)
At 31 December 2015, the Group pledged certain MN20155F 12 A31H - "EBD B E
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings, RAREMRRFTEREARES IO A
land use rights and loan receivable with embedded 2,294,026,000/% 7T * 195,000,000 %
derivative with an aggregate carrying value at JC * 199,615,000/ JT K& 736,866,000
the end of the reporting period of approximately BLZzETREDE HELHRE
HK$2,294,026,000, HK$195,000,000, HK$199,615,000 F i RAERMBERARSTETA
and HK$736,866,000 respectively to secure general ZRWEFTRBEATNEEER T —RK
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 33) and MERTTREE MR (MR 33) Rk — BB
other payable to an independent third party (note 36). F=F 2 HMENF(HFES6) °
At 31 December 2016, the Group pledged R2016F12A31H A &£ B # H
HK$1,730,000 (2015: HK$29,988,000) bank deposits 1,730,000/ JT(20154F : 29,988,000
to secure settlements for certain of Group’s purchase of WBIT) ZIRTT I IR IR AR R AN S B 8
raw materials (2015: raw materials). AETERME(2015F « B 2 &
Ko
Share Capital 31. X
Number Nominal
of shares value
KRG E ZEE
In thousand HK$’000
Fhg FET
Issued and fully paid EZTREHZRA :
At 1 January 2015 and R2015%F1 A1 HK2015F &
31 December 2015 and 2016 2016412 A31 H 2,304,850 3,626,781

Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z
32. Reserves 32. f#fE
Attributable
to owners of Non-
the Company controlling
PNNG| interests Total
BB AER FERER ok
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Asset revaluation reserve EEEMGRE
At 1 January 2015 ®2015%1A1H 205,344 — 205,344
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties ERHREYENE 12,659 = 12,659
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of EEMENEELEY
leasehold properties EEHEEE (1,020) = (1,020)
At 31 December 2015 R2015% 12 A31H 216,983 — 216,983
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties BEEENEKE 14,608 = 14,608
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of BEMEENEEEL
leasehold properties EEHBEARE (1,432) = (1,432)
At 31 December 2016 #2016% 12831 B 230,159 - 230,159
Investment revaluation reserve REEMhGEHE
At 1 January 2015 ®2015%1A1H 15,554 — 15,554
Change in fair value arising on revaluation of ERAREEREEEL
available-for-sale investments DhER (19,102) - (19,102
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of REETHEERESIZE
avallable-for-sale investments Ba& (758) - (758)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment ~ F RGBS 2 o] ft HEHE
recycled to profit for the year REEE 4,323 = 4,323
At 31 December 2015 R20165 12 A31 R 17 - 17
Change in fair value arising on revaluation of BRI HHEREES
available-for-sale investments NREE 28,173 - 28,173
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of REEFAHHERESHE
available-for-sale investment Bamx (28,190) - (28,190)
At 31 December 2016 M20165 12 A31 R - - -
Translation reserve ERGRE
At 1 January 2015 R®2015F1 818 874,139 34,849 908,988
Exchange difference arising on translation MEEEVERZR (373,290 (23,873) (397,163)
Share of reserves of associates BAEE NERE (10,535) - (10,535)
At 31 December 2015 R20154 12 431 A 490,314 10,976 501,290
Exchange difference arising on translation MEEEVERZR (405,548) (19,184) (424,732)
Share of reserves of associates B {AEE N R (5,578) = (5,573)
At 31 December 2016 2016412 318 79,193 (8,208) 70,985

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

33. Borrowings 33. f&&
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Bank loans — secured RITER — FEM 2,034,867 2,132,782
Other loan — secured HmER — FHEA 664,329 =
Other loans — unsecured HER — EiKH 408,905 473,105
3,108,101 2,605,887
Carrying amount repayable: JEEE RS :
Within one year —FZA 1,416,515 1,112,293
More than one year, but not exceeding —F BB
two years TEB=F 566,763 770,370
More than two years, but not more than —FLAFE
five years TERBERF 406,919 465,950
Over five years iR hF 513,393 =
2,903,590 2,348,613
Add: Carrying amount of bank loans M BERESGER
containing a repayment on demand ES QN EN AT
clause (shown under current liabilities) TEEERZRITERZ
with scheduled repayment set out in the BRESE
loan agreements due: GlERHEE) !
— within one year — —F2ZA 202,830 252,764
— more than one year, but not — — &\ FHEB
exceeding two years BB F 1,681 2,829
— more than two years, but not more — —FUERE
than five years NBBRF = 1,681
204,511 257,274
Less: Amounts due within one year shown JB - R—F 2 AEIERN S A
under current liabilities mEBEL SR (1,621,026) (1,369,567)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilites 3| &3EREBEZ S5 1,487,075 1,236,320
Annual Report 2016 R RNFFW
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33. Borrowings (Continued)

Bank borrowings are secured by certain investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings and land use
rights (2015: certain investment properties, leasehold
land and buildings, land use rights and loan receivable
with embedded derivative). Details are disclosed in note
30.

Bank loans of the Group of HK$200,000,000 (2015:
HK$650,000,000) are denominated in HKD, which
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. The bank loans carry floating
rates at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
plus 2.5% (2015: HIBOR plus 2.0% to 2.5%), i.e.
effective interest rate of 2.89% (2015: 2.553% to
3.351%) per annum. Bank loans of HK$4,510,000
(2015: HK$7,274,000) are denominated in HKD,
functional currency of the relevant group entities, and
carry a floating rate of prime rate minus 2.7% (2015:
prime rate minus 2.7%) per annum or effective interest
rate of 2.3% (2015: 2.3%) per annum. Bank loans
of HK$390,625,000 (2015: HK$238,929,000) are
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entities and carry floating interest rate ranging
from 110% to 118% (2015: 107% to 110%) of the
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) one-year interest rate
or effective interest rate of 4.785% to 5.137% (2015:
4.655% to 4.785%). Bank loans of HK$468,750,000
(2015: HK$794,504,000) are denominated in RMB,
functional currency of the relevant group entities and
carry floating interest rate ranging from 105% to 110%
(2015: 105% to 110%) of PBOC five-year interest rate
or effective interest rate of 4.988% to 5.225% (2015:
4.988% to 5.225%). The remaining bank loans of the
Group are denominated in RMB, functional currency
of the relevant group entities and carry floating interest
rate ranging from 115% to 135% (2015: 135%) of
PBOC over five-year interest rate or effective interest
rate of 5.635% to 6.615% (2015: 6.615%).

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

BE#E)

RITEERETRENE HELHRE
FhEiERERNS: ETRENE -
HELTHREF  TwFAERHFERA
KOTET A 2 BRE RO EER - 15T
K30 o

7N & @ /Y R 17 B 200,000,000 7% 7T
(20154 : 650,000,000 7T ) Ty LA #
TCABEN - ML IEAREE 2 A
Bk BITERNTZBFRIZEHER
TRZEFEM2.5% (20154F : RITR
EIREN2.0%E2.5%) @ BB FFI R
S Bl A2.89% (20154 : 2.553% to
3.351%) c RARQ AN EE AR Z
8 17 B 34,510,000/ J0(2015%F :
7,274,000 7T ) AHE B L E A Rl A9 )
REEE BT AEM - ORI NEEFI R
BERERF X R27%(2015F © &
BEMNEFH2.7%) X ERFFE2.3%
(20154 : 2.3%)5 B - AEBRITE
#0390,625,00078 JT(2015 : 238,929,000
BIT) RAARB REMNSEEEE AR
MTIBE EHE RIE ARRIT—F 2 F8FIE
EIF10%E18% @ (2015 1 EIF7%E
10%) 3k LA B B2 4 F) 3K [& fH] (5 4.785% =
5.137% (2015 4F : 4.655% £ 4.785%) °
iR 1T B 3X468,750,0007% JL(20154F :
794,504,000 70) THAAREE A B0 =
HESBE 2 EE RIEARBITREZ
2 B) A K IF5%ZE 10% (20154F : 5%
Z10%) A B FF R RFH 4.988% &
5.225% (2015 4F : 4.988% £ 5.225%) °
AREBMEKIBTERARBER QA
HIEEBARKABEN  WIRAR
WITAFZZEFE L)ZF15%E35%
& (20154 : £)%35%) A BB F
A = &% 6 B 5.635% £ 6.615% (2015
F :6.615%)5T 8 °
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B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

33. Borrowings (Continued) 33. BE(#&)

As at 31 December 2016, other loan of
HK$664,327,000 (2015: nil) payable to a subsidiary of
a substantial shareholder was denominated in RMB,
functional currency of the relevant group entities, which
is secured by certain factory, plant and machinery
and carries floating interest rate at 110% (2015: nil) of
PBOC three-year interest rate or effective interest rate
of 5.225% (2015: nil).

Other loan of HK$50,781,000 (2015: HK$30,000,000)
was denominated in HKD, which is not denominated
in the functional currency of the Company, and was
borrowed from a shareholder of the Company which is
unsecured, bears fixed interest at 4% (2015: 4%) per
annum and repayable on demand.

The remaining other loans of HK$358,124,000
(2015: HK$443,105,000) payable to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries were denominated in RMB,
functional currency of the relevant group entities, which
are unsecured, bear fixed interest ranged from 5.35% to
7% (2015: 5.35% to 8%) per annum and repayable on
demand.
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MR2016F12A31H E 1 B 3 2
664,327,000 7T(20154F: )X F
—MB ARz —MEBRBEREAAR
MeEf EHESE A AR 2EE
BB WAHET IR - BE RS
KERBARBIT=ZFE2FHANE L
F10% (20154F : % ) ok LA B R 4F F| =&
5.225% (20154 ; )5t 5 o

H b B F 2 50,781,000 7T (2015 4F :
30,000,000/ 7T ) & A B T A EAL - M
PBITWIEAR RN B 2 E M R AR A
B—RBRERMED - WEER - REEF
FRA4%ET B (2015F  4%) R R EE

£ T 2 B fth & 5k 2 858,124,000/ 7T
(20154 : 443,105,000 7T ) X 1 F
FERFIBRZHBRARAIAARKE A
iz MARBER AR ZIhEEK RE
7 AEEIR - 5 RIIEE E F 5% 5.35%
E7% (20154 : 5.35% & 8% ) & E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

34. Deferred Taxation

34.

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and

liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

I FE B R

UFARAEE R EENESD i’
RETHEEERAERENABHR
PRE S Lor

Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of Tax
depreciation properties losses Total
MEB KT E MEEH RBER et
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBTT FAT FAET
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 418 (55) (187,642) 1,808 (185,889
Charge to profit or loss for the year RAREEBHKIHR
(note 10) (#it 10) - (9,219) - (9,219)
Charge to other comprehensive RAEE A2 EKE R
income for the year — (1,020) — (1,020)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F12 A31 R (55) (197,881) 1,808 (196,128
Charge to profit or loss for the year RAEEEHKIGL
(note 10) (Ha#10) - (16,852) - (16,852)
Charge to other comprehensive RAEEE 2 BB
income for the year = (1,432) = (1,432)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12 A31H (55) (216,165) 1,808 (214,412

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$1,002,165,000
(2015: HK$698,533,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$10,957,000 (2015:
HK$10,957,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$1,065,180,000 (2015: HK$687,576,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams and such tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

RARE R - ANEBE A A HR AR K G
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

34.

35.

Deferred Taxation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, TZ
Dong Thai declared and distributed dividend of
RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to HK$233,645,000),
representing its accumulated profit up to 31 December
2015 to its shareholders. Hence, HK$8,152,000
withholding tax was paid by the Group in respect of
the receipt of the dividend. As at 31 December 2016,
the remaining accumulated loss of TZ Dong Thai was
HK$71,462,000.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared to overseas investors in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to HK$2,367,801,000 (2015: HK$2,372,651,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Trade and Bills Payables
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills

payables presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period:

34.

35.

EAERLE ()

HZE2016F12A31HZF RN - FM
B & M2015F12A31 8 2 2 18 %
F 2k & 2 B A R 200,000,000 7T
2 B% B (38 & 7 233,645,000 7T ) F
AR - At AEBEZFRRRKREZ
8,152,000% JL B 1 Tt o R 20164F 12
A31H B THEMNERZEBEEA
71,462,000 7T °

RFETEB X T BH200841H1H
Fita - o BB B R R AT S 0% 7 M 2 R
FTEIMNEERE 2R EFTBKENE -
HRAEEEMER RO EREN
B RRAI RS REREZMEHE
BAEED - B RHPBEKRBRQ
7 #92,367,801,0007% JT(20154 :
2,372,651,0007% 7T ) 2 5% H) 2 8
EZRMEEREERBI ARG ALE M
BHREA ©

ERERRRE

TRIZERAREEZ RNERNE
BN AR E IR Z Bl 24T

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$’000

7z (T

0 to 30 days 0£30H 23,998 40,880

31 to 90 days 31HZ90H 13,424 11,451

91 to 180 days 91 HZE180H 2,772 148,842

181 to 360 days 181 HZ 360 H 2,816 14,236

Over 360 days #8360 H 33,561 58,383
76,571 273,792
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

35.

36.

Trade and Bills Payables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$142,294,000 in relation to
the purchase of raw materials from an associate, which
were non-interest bearing, repayable within one year
and secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
HK$29,988,000.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other
Payables

At 31 December 2016, the balance includes an amount
of HK$42,076,000 (2015: HK$45,042,000) payable to
an independent third party in relation to purchase of
land use right in the PRC. The amount is secured by
certain investment properties of HK$60,156,000 (2015:
HK$61,051,000), bears fixed interest at 4.68% per
annum for both years and is repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2016, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$13,426,000 (2015:
HK$11,320,000) interest payable to five (2015: five)
non-controlling shareholders of two (2015: two)
subsidiaries. These non-controlling shareholders are
able to exercise significant influence over respective
subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2016, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$37,500,000 (2015:
HK$37,500,000) payable to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Company. The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

35.

36.

BARRRRE(E)

M2015F 12 A31H ' BEAHK — R
ENABARMEB cHRBEREELES
%8142,294,0008 T BEF B+ R —
FAERITUARER 2 HIFRTFR
29,988,000 /8 JLIEH I ©

BEER  EBRERAMEMNK

MR2016F 12 A31 B 2 &8 B2 ER P
RIS T R RN T E
= HFRIE - £ 58 /442,076,0007% 7T
(20154F : 45,042,000 7T )° % &
EHET&REYHA60,156,000%
JL(20154F : 61,051,000 JT ) £ &
A MEFEREEFHNEL4.68% L
NMEEKEERTE TERE -

MR2016F 12 A1 B 2% EEE—E
42 5 %8 A 13,426,00078 (20154 -
11,320,000 7T ) < A R (2015 F :
RIWB AR ZAM[E(20154F : AfH)IE
THI IR o L IEIERIR R B4 T11E
BEATETHBERBAR -

R2016F 12 A31 H ' #rEEERSHE
37,500,000 7£ (2015 £F : 37,500,000
BIL) REN S TIEERIRE -
ZEREAERT  REREERERS
FEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

36.

37.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other
Payables (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$289,042,000 (2015:
HK$507,826,000) payable to independent third parties
in relation to construction costs payable for property,
plant and equipment in the PRC. The amounts are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2016, the balance includes
an aggregated amount of HK$101,989,000 (2015:
HK$26,882,000) being receipt in advance from
customers. The amounts are unsecured and non-
interest bearing.

At 31 December 2016, the balance includes an
amount of HK$55,804,000 (2015: nil) refundable
deposit received from an independent third party
for the disposal of an investment held by the Group.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
deposit was refunded in full as the proposed transaction
was terminated.

Disposal of a Subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group disposed of its entire interest in a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Champion Glory Holdings Limited
(“Champion Glory”) (the “Champion Glory Disposal”).
The net loss on disposal of the Group was as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities which control was lost:

36.

37.

BstER  ABRERAEMENK
(%)

MR2016F 12 A31H ' & % & i &
& % 5289,042,0007% JC(20154F :
507,826,000 7T ) JEft T B FE =7
BRAMARP R Y - BEREEZE
NIRBHAN - ZE&BAEEKR 28K
FRMERE —FAEE o

R2016F 12 A31H ' AEBEEESE
101,989,000;8 7T (2015 £ : 26,882,000
BIT)BERE PR BRK - 2B AE
EHRRRE o

MR2016F12H31H ' RBEERESLE
55,804,000/ 7C(20154F : &E)AHE
AREBERFERIRE BB E =77 KE
ZAREBIRS - AREHE - AREZ
RSP UIEMZIREBEREURE -

HE-—XHEQF

REE2015F12A31MBZFE R
AEELEX2EHANNE QA
Champion Glory Holdings Limited
([Champion Gloryl) #) & S =l &
Champion Glory | » H& ZFEH8a0T -

BRENEZEENABE IO
2015

HK$°000
FET

Available-for-sale investments — at cost

AHEHERE — KA

62,250
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37. Disposal of a Subsidiary (Continued) 37. HE—RHMEBAR(E)
Net loss on disposal of subsidiary: HEWB AR Z FER
2015
HK$’000
FEIT
Cash consideration received W B8 & K E 56,394
Net asset disposal of HEZFEE (62,250)
Net loss on disposal & 2 FEE (5,856)

Net loss on disposal of HK$5,856,000 was included in
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Net cash inflow arising from the Champion Glory
Disposal at the date of disposal:

H & 7 % E518 5,856,000 7 T B B R E
GEBaRkEMEEmKER -

M H €& B B H & Champion Glory 5] #
ZHEFRALT ¢

2015
HK$’000
FET
Total cash consideration received g Bl 4837 & K (E 56,394
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal REZE 2015612 A31 H
for the year ended FEAHNEZ
31 December 2015 WEFMA 56,394

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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38. Operating Lease Arrangements

38. EEMNORH

As lessor DHBEAE D

Property rental income earned by the Group during AEBRFABRDAOMERS WA
the year was approximately HK$120,280,000 (2015: #  /120,280,000% JT(20154F :
HK$86,107,000). The properties held have committed 86,107,000/ ) - HEZMEEE
tenants for lease terms ranged from 1 year to 8 years BRIHEE HEHAHEHI1IFESF

(2015: 1 year to 9 years).

(20154 : 1 FEZQF )5 o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RAREHAR - AEEHEBAREFTZER
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum WER TR R xRS

lease payments:

2016 2015
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAET

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

After five years

—FAER 76,177 70,382
E_EFERF

(BREREREMELEAN) 66,632 69,948
RFAE 6,332 2,047

149,141 142,377

As lessee

At the end of reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

LR A & 6

RARERR - RETABENEER
MIAT  ARBFARZRKREEE

SE N
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as DEXUNN
follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —FAER 1,001 2,714
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFERF
(BREEMFENAN) - 1,086
1,001 3,800
— T NFFR
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39. Capital Commitments

39. BAXREE

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital commitments in respect of property, EEREAYE  ME X
plant and equipment: R 7 B A RIE
— contracted for but not provided in the — BEREETARGETH
consolidated financial statements R P = AR 20,409 —
Capital commitments in respect of unlisted BARIELTRAF SR ZER
equity securities: EIE
— contracted for but not provided in the — BESREEI AN E P HREK
consolidated financial statements R (Hfitakb)
(Notes a & b) 232,143 248,507
Capital commitments in respect of an NN AN = EiE S
associate (Note c) (Hiitc) 22,321 —

Notes:

Hiat

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
entered into a shareholders’ agreement with several
parties to incorporate a jointly-controlled entity, namely
Zhongxin Zhangbei Solar Energy Thermal Power
Generation Co., Ltd. (“Solar Energy Thermal Power”) to
invest in a solar energy project. Total capital of Solar
Energy Thermal Power would be RMB1,000,000,000
of which the Group has committed to inject
RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$167,411,000)
represents 15% equity interest of Solar Energy Thermal
Power. As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group
has yet to pay its committed amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
entered into a capital injection agreement with Beijing
TeraSolar Photothermal Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing TeraSolar”), which is principally engaged in
construction, management and technical consultancy of
concentrated solar power projects, pursuant to which,
the Group agreed to subscribe 8% of the enlarged share
capital of Beijing TeraSolar for a total consideration
of RMB116,000,000 (equivalent to HK$129,464,000).
As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group has
paid HK$64,732,000 and subscribed 4% of the
enlarged capital of Beijing TeraSolar. The remaining
HK$64,732,000 will be paid upon the request of Beijing
TeraSolar.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

N & E22015F 128318 Ik & &
N AEBEETRARERRITAL
BREBEKILEEDR  AERIEKR
[ e 2025 & A R 2 &) ([ K [5 e &2 3¢
BERARDEERGERETEIHE
B - KGREABTRABERNKEA
R #1,000,000,000 7T * 7N & B & i
& A R #150,000,000 7T (1 & B
167,411,000/ 7T ) * & K [5 68 2 2%
BERAA15% R AEZ o R2015F &
2016412 A31 B » AEB &R E
e -

R B £2016F12A318 It £ &
A AREERFHEZREL TKEE K
BEMAERAR(TIKEE]) » HE
DREER TELEEBMERR
APBRERBRETEIWIAR - AEERE
REKGHBILERBNRE B
%8 A A R 116,000,000 7T (48 & 7
129,464,000/ 7T ) ° R & = 20154
K 2016F 12 31 HILFEER » A&
B 2 {5 64,732,000 7% 7T 58 I 5 5
LB 1% 4% IR #E - E £264,732,000
BB IRIKG AR ERKB LT -
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39. Capital Commitments (Continued)

40.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
incorporated a company, namely CITIC International
Trading Center Co., Ltd (“CITIC International Trading”)
with other two independent third parties. CITIC
International Trading principally engaged in provision
of service for trading of financial instruments and
consultancy service. Total capital of CITIC International
Trading is RMB100,000,000 of which the Group has
committed to inject RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$22,321,000) representing 20% equity interest of
CITIC International Trading. Two out of seven directors
are appointed by the Group. CITIC International Trading
is an associate of the Group. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group has yet injected the committed share capital.

Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group and are held in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to
make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of approximately
HK$12,416,000 (2015: HK$11,663,000) represents
contributions to these schemes by the Group in respect
of the current accounting period. As at 31 December
2016 and 2015, no contributions due in respect of the
reporting period had not been paid over to the scheme.

Annual Report 2016

39.

40.

BEREREE)

(€ MREZE2016F12A31HZFR K
EEEREXBLE=ZFTRKRIL—KD
A BAPEEBRRZFLERAR
([RFEEBERXZ]) - P EEERS
FTERESRTERSRERE MR
B R ERBERFIBLEREARE
100,000,0007T * NEBEAEEFEAR
20,000,000 7T (#8 & 7 22,321,000
BIL)  hHREBEBRR 520% 8% AN
wme tNEEHIMUESTHAER
ZE P EEBERZAEREEZ —K
Bt N o R20165 12 A31H » A&
S B M AR RSB -

RKENETE

AEBRAERBERREANGERET
HIT—IAFTEl - KETEA T ZEEEAR
SEEECHE - YARBEFTALES
NEEHE °

AR B Z KB AR EE Th R B K
FHEERRN@AFTEIZKE - AR
PRI A RHERENRBIRATK
RZIEEBMLAERER  UEBZF
w|A o REEBERRKENGE 2 ME—
RERFHZEEEHR -

RAEF BT ABREE 2K
42 FE #) 512,416,000 JT(2015 4
11,663,000 7T) - REAEERZSF
FTEITE AR - R 2016 F K 2015 4F
12HA31 8 - siiEfARE A - WEZ
EHEET R 2 HFRTEN -

— T REFHR
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41. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

41.

B S X5

FAR - ASEEBRTET RS

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest income from an associate —KEtE QAR EHA 52,258 55,763
Interest income on loan to non-controlling HWB AR THEERTE
shareholders of subsidiaries, which B~ a FEEE SRR
can exercise significant influence over Z BT S A
respective subsidiaries - 4,269
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEHEB AR AIITEEAR
from non-controlling shareholder of a - )= NCTE =
subsidiary which can exercise significant BEME  BEMERE
influence over this subsidiary - 46,250
Interest expense to a substantial shareholder —ZREZERE 2 F 857 H 3,507 9,635
Interest expense to non-controlling BB A BSR4 I AR B < 1) B 32
shareholders of subsidiaries 19,420 4,190
Interest expense to a subsidiary of a —RMBRARNEZREZFE
substantial shareholder s 28,913 —
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders R8N F—KMBRAF <
of a subsidiary FEVE IR R 70,607 —
Purchase of raw material from an associate B— KSR REARME — 1,565,491

Details of balances with related parties and other
transactions with related parties are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and notes

19, 23, 33 and 36.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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42,

Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
HK$42,160,000 (2015: HK$507,826,000) in relation to
the addition of property, plant and equipment was not
settled as at 31 December 2016 and was included in
accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables.
Details are set out in note 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, amount of
approximately HK$52,258,000 (2015: HK$55,763,000)
on relation to interest income generated from loan
advanced to an associate, which was not settled and
was included in amounts due from associates as at 31
December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, amount of
approximately HK$14,595,000 (2015: HK$35,223,000)
in relation to interest income generated from loan
receivable to a third party, which was not settled
and was included in deposits, prepayment and other
receivables as at 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, amount of
approximately HK$19,689,000 (2015: nil) in relation to
finance costs, which were not settled and were included
in accrued charges, rental deposits and other payable
as at 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, property,
plant and equipment was reclassified to investment
property due to change of management’s intention
(detailed in note 14).
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MBHRME

TEFRERS

RE E2016F 128318 EFE A
EBEREME BERRKZHFR 2
42,160,000 JT(2015 £ : 507,826,000
BIC)R2016F 12 A 31 H AR HILE
BIEREFTER  HKiEe REAMmERS
A o BB RHTEESS

REZE2016F 12 A1 HIEFEAN - &
AR T —RKEE A B mELE A BUL
A & %A #752,258,0007% JL(20154F :
55,763,000 7t ) 8 R XS I E 5T AR
20164 12 H31 B 2 F& W Bt & A &) 3k
ﬁq °

® #H ZE2016F12A31H IF & &
N BEEF=-FRKERZF B
A 2 #114,595,0005% 7T(20154 :
35,223,000 7T ) A 2016 12 A 31 A
MASZ N IWEBIEERS - BAREEA
FEUR A

HZE2016F12A831BHILFE - B
B8 A4 %4919,689,00078 7T (2015
& )R 20164F 12 A 31 B i &
WREERTER  A5ike KEMmE
A

REZE20156F 12 A1 HILFEER - ¥

X BEMAREREEBELAMEET
EREME(FBHIINWE14)
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43. MBARIREIE N F]
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) MBAR—RER
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly AR EEXEEFENHEAR
held by the Company at the end of the reporting A BR AR EAREIIAOT ¢

period are set out below:

Country/ Nominal value of
place of issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary i/ BRTERREA/ FARFRACRALERRA/ Principal activities
ARER B%/fiit AMEREE AMEAEELA IBEH
2016 2015
UMM Directly  Indirectly
E# L BE Bk
Beijing East Gate Development Go.,  PRC (Note i) US$100,413,500 - 100% - 100%  Property development and
Ltd. *Beijng East Gate”) mEHiZi) 100,413,500t investment
IRERERERAA(IRER]) NEERREE
Beijing Yinda Property Management ~ PRC (Note i RMB10,000,000 - 90% - 90%  Property management
Limited ("Yinda’) REKi) ARE10,000,0007 nRER
IRSENFERARRALA
(Tgez])
Beijing Ju Fu Real Estate PRC (Note i RMB105,000,000 - 90% - 90%  Property development and
Development Company Limited R El(###1ii) ARE105,000,0007 investment
("Bejjng Ju Fu’) DRERREA
I REREHEREARAR
([RER))
Greenhill Property Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS$1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
ARRIHS 137 REEK
Likesway Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
MEFERAT B AT investment
RANERRE
Real China Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
REERERAA B AT investment
RANERRE
Siver Grant Hainan Investment (BVI) ~ British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 100% - 100% —  Inactive
Limited ABRAES 1% BEXH
Silver Grant Infra-Structure British Virgin Islands ~ USS$1 100% - 100% —  Investment holding
Investment (BVI) Limited RERUEE 157 REER
Ju Fu San Yan Jing Investment Hong Kong HKS2 - 100% — 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited &b 2B REEk

ER=BARARRLT

e}
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43. B A RIREE AT (E)
(Continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MEAR—RERE)
Country/ Nominal value of
place of issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary /R BRTEBRRA/ ADFFBECRTEBRRE/ Principal activities
ARER 8%/ fift AMEREE AfEREELH IERH
2016 2015
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
BE % B ik
Silver Grant International Securities  Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% - 100%  Securities trading
Investment Linited B AT BHER
FRART S RERRAA
Siver Grant Securities Investment  British Virgin Islands ~ USS$1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
(BVI) Limited RERAES 157 RERR
Straight View Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100% = Investment holding
ERREERAT 30 10047 RARR
SYJ Holding Limited British Virgin Islands ~ HK$2,170 100% - 100% = Investment holding
AERNHE 217047 RERR
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
RMEARAT B 28T investment
RANERRE
Winner Property Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EERTHE 1% RERRK
Sun Steed International Investments  British Virgin Islands ~ US$100 100% - 100% = Investment holding
Limited RBRAHE 1007 RERR
REERREERAT
Silver Grant International Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Petrochemical Limited B 10057 RERR
FEARAIERAR
TZ Dong Thai PRC (Note iii RMB420,000,000 - 69.78% - 69.78%  Investment holding and
FHRR RE (Wit i) ARH420,0000007 investment
REBRRRE
TZ United East* PRC (Note iv) RMB463,645,186 - 66.77% - 66.77% Production and trading
FNRBILT wElfE i) AR 463,645,186 70 of petrochemical
products \
FEREERM IER
Platinum Two Limited Mauritius USS$1 100% - 100% —  Inactive
L) 1% EEXH
Silver Grant International Assets Hong Kong HK$100 100% = 100% - Inactive
Investment Limited B 1007 HEE

BRARAERARRLA
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates

43. MBARKBE QTR (%)

(Continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MIBAR—RER(E)
Country/ Nominal value of
place of issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary 2R/Ri BRALERRA/ FARFRACRALERRA/ Principal activities
ARER B%/fEh AMEAEE EMERE AL IEXH
2016 2015
Directly  Indirectly Direcjly Indiregtly
ER S B ik
Xin Jiang Zhong Qing Luan Chuang ~ PRC (Note iv) RMB5,000,000 - 60% - 60%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited ~~ REL(#:2 i) AEE5,000,0007 RERR
_ (Zhong Qing")
nETERANRARAA(RE])
Fast Winner Investments Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1,000 100% - 100% —  Inactive
ABRRES 1,000%7 TRLH
Aesco Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% - 100% = Investment holding
30 20000077 REERK
Beiing Runda International PRC (Note i RMB100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Investment Management Limited R El( 4% /i) AB%100,000,00070 RARR
("Being Runda’)
FREEAREARRARAR
([ErEE])
Long Bright Gapital Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US§100 70% - 70% = Investment holding
REERERAT ABRAES 1007 RERRK
Konson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 70% - 70%  Investment holding
BEREERAT (305 10047 REZR
Fast Growing International Limited ~~ British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
ABRAES 1% REERK
Taizhou Yinjian PRC (Note iii RMB100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Environmental
FNE el (st AR 100,000,007 conservation and
renewable energy
lnvegtment }
REREREEMRRE
Silver Grant International Infra- Hong Kong HKS2 - 100% — 100%  Investment holding
structive Investment Limited B 25T RERR
FRERARRERRAA
Jing Yin International Investment PRC (Note il RMB100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Inactive
Consultant (Befing) Company Ltd R El(#/:2i) AR100,000,0007 THEK
(Jing Yin)
%%ﬁ})ﬁ’%?a}(iﬁ)ﬁ R4
ki

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates
(Continued)

(@) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

A

#

The names in English are for identification only.
Three out of five directors of this subsidiary are
appointed by the Group. The Group control 60%
of the voting right in general meeting.

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise.

It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC. Under the joint venture
agreement, the Group is responsible to contribute
RMB9,000,000 to the registered capital of Yinda
and share 90% of the profits and losses of Yinda.

These subsidiaries are registered domestic
enterprises.

It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the year.

Other than the investment holding companies

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which have

no principal place of operation, and Beijing East Gate,
Yinda, Beijing Ju Fu, TZ Dong Thai, TZ United East,
Jing Yin, Taizhou Yinjian, Zhong Qing and Beijing
Runda which operate principally in the PRC, all other

subsidiaries principally operate in Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2016
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(ivy ZKMIBRBARFEKLZF
INE BB o
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43. B A RIREE AT (E)
(Continued)
(b) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31 (b) AEBEzHZE DQFN2016F &
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: 201512 A 31 HMFFEWT ¢
Place/
country of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ value of issued
Form of establishment  Principal ordinary share capital/
business #R/RT place of Class of registered capital held by
Name of company structure B%%/  business shares held FEEERTEBRRE/  Principal activities
ARER ERAR Frst IEEEHE  FRROER AMEREEL A IBER
Cinda Jianrun Domestic PRC PRC Registered 30% 30%  Property development and
[FERE enterprise # capital operation, property
RELE g management and
construction
MEERREE NEERR
B
Zhong Hai You Qi Domestic PRC PRC Registered 23.03% 23.03%  Production and trading
bty enterprise ~ EL # capital of petroleum and
mEGE AR petrochemical products
EERBERRRARIL
IER

e}
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43. MELATIREE AT (&)
(Continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (c) FHEEARIEZFREZZF2ER
have material non-controlling interests BB AT ZFHE
The table below shows details of non-wholly TRINEGFEERIEEFER 2
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material 2 EHENB AR ZFFE ¢

non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

Place of ownership

incorporation interests and

and principal  voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated

place of non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated

business interests interests non-controlling
Name of subsidiary BRIFERRE FEHEZzREERZ PRFHEHES interests
WEARERE ZEENY LAk REE wA (BR) Rit 2 FEmER

2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 [GICXCUNN HKS$'000 ERIEY000
FEn THET FEn TET

TZ Dong Thai PRC 30.22%  30.22% 2,255 (B00) ~ 173,156 184,808
ENR%E RE
TZ United East PRC 33.23%  3323%  (118,872)  (61528) 41,534 166,076
RNRBLT e

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
FRFEHER 2 ERIFEANBAR 630 (1,712~ 19,021 19,702

233,711 370,586

Summarised financial information in respect of BEBEAEEANEETES 2ASE
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material BEEMBAR 2 BERBES
non-controlling interests is set out below. The AN o AN B E R ER
summarised financial information below represents TNAESIK SR 2 £ 58 o

amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43. B A RIREE AT (E)
(Continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries () BEEAFEGHERZIZERE

that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)

TZ Dong Thai

BB ARz E(E)

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE&T
Current assets MENVE E 231,291 443,431
Non-current assets EMENE E 816,494 679,687
Current liabilities MEA & (474,800)  (505,691)
Non-current liabilities EmEBE = =
Equity attributable to owners of the PN/NCIEZ Z N N
Company (399,829) (432,619)
Non-controlling interest FEfE Sl (173,156)  (184,808)
Revenue WA - —
Other income, gains and losses HEMA - e K EE 40,827 30,826
Expenses i (33,364) (33,475)
Profit (loss) for the year FREM(EE) 7,463 (2,649)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: F R A (B8 B
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZZEDN 5,208 (1,849)
Non-controlling interests PSS 2,255 (800)
Profit (loss) for the year F RN (EE) 7,463 (2,649)
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates

43. MEARKRBE QTR (%)

(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) BEEAFEZ4IEEZIZEE
that have material non-controlling interests EMBRAR =S (Z)
(Continued)

TZ Dong Thai (Continued) BMERFE(E)
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total comprehensive expense FEX HBEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRARHEE A (32,790) (29,484)
Non-controlling interests FEPEHIE R (14,201) (12,770)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRZE S H E%E (46,991) (42,254)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests %3 R 2 IFEHIEF 2 B
of TZ Dong Thai (Note) S (HiaE) 70,607 —
Net cash outflow from operating activities —#8& %7 2 IR & H (22,199) (1,025)
Net cash outflow from investing activites & EKE 2 FH LR (164,994)  (124,590)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BB ER FHEMA 171,042 155,421
Net cash (outflow) inflow FREORE)RA (16,151) 29,806

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016, TZ

KBzt B E20164 12 A31 8 2 &

Dong Thai declared and distributed RMB0.4762
(equivalent to HK$0.5563) per share dividend to its
shareholders, approximately HK$70,607,000 was
distributed to its non-controlling shareholders.

Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43.

(Continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)

TZ United East

MEQRREE QR (E)

(c) FEEAFEHEZZHFZEE
BB ARZFHE(E)

EMEHLT

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

Current assets mEEE 524,695 489,733
Non-current assets EREEE 3,683,972 3,926,161
Current liabilities mEBE (3,230,850) (3,077,833)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (852,812) (838,219
Equity attributable to owners of the NN A AEGRRA

Company (83,471) (333,766)
Non-controlling interest FEIE A (41,534)  (166,076)
Revenue WA 48,814 30,759
Other income, gains and losses HEh A -~ Wz KEiE 1,701 1,925
Expenses g (408,284) (217,865)
Loss for the year FNEE (357,769)  (185,181)
Loss for the year attributable to: FABIEEL

Owners of the Company ZA/NCIE 2SN (238,897) (123,653

Non-controlling interests FEPE i A (118,872) (61,528)
Loss for the year FNEE (357,769) (185,181)
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43. B AR RBE QAT (£&)

(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) BEEARFEHERZIZESE
that have material non-controlling interests RHEARZ#1E (&)
(Continued)

TZ United East (Continued) FEMEBIETL (E)
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total comprehensive expense FEX HBEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRARHEE A (250,295)  (145,759)
Non-controlling interests FEIZEfil R (124,542) (72,528)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRZE S H E%E (374,837) (218,287)
Net cash outflow from operating activities — 48& %7 2 FHE SR (307,885)  (353,212)
Net cash outflow from investing activities ~ & EZEH 2 FIR &R H (365,934) (806,824)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEBER ZFHESRA 433,486 939,445
Net cash outflow FIR S M (240,333)  (220,591)
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44. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves 44, EDQBFEARRRHER
of the Company

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties "EYE 96,490 93,901
Property, plant and equipment LE Y 33,839 35,067
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RERIE LT E AR 735,073 735,073
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE L2 Bt 188 22 B3R 2,345,046 2,344,091
Structured finance securities EREESRES 6,831 6,728
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 2,779 36,957
Loan receivable with embedded derivative WEBRAXITETAEZ
JEH & TR - 736,866
3,220,058 3,988,683
Current assets RENEE
Held-for-trading investments FEEERE 146,668 112,998
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRNREEM
receivables &SR 102,069 711
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE L Bt 188 22 B3R 777,706 869,680
Amounts due from associates e U B & N B R 10,410 10,410
Loan receivable U E TR 155,450 =
Bank balances and cash IRTTEHNMIRS 78,372 17,767
1,270,675 1,011,566
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 4,490,733 5,000,249

]

202 Silver Grant International Industries Limited REFBREEFRA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B iR Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

44. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves

of the Company (Continued)

44. ERBHBMRRRFEERE)

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
EQUITY [N
Capital and reserves BEARR #E
Share capital TN 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves & 533,204 590,324
TOTAL EQUITY RSB E 4,159,985 4,217,105
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities E15 =K
Borrowings BE - 400,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEE E 8,863 8,863
8,863 408,863
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued charges, rental deposits and other ~ fExtE A - AKIES K HAM
payables FET 3R 21,912 34,417
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT KB A R 3K 49,192 59,864
Borrowings 3= 250,781 280,000
321,885 374,281
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHAE 330,748 783,144
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRAEAREEEE 4,490,733 5,000,249
Net current assets BEBREBEE 948,790 637,285
Total assets less current liabilities EEHBBERABERS 4,168,848 4,625,968

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2017

and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Gao Jian Min
SERLE
Director &%

Annual Report 2016
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Mr. Liu Tianni
B RREE
Director &%

=
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BHE2016 F 12 H31 HIFFZ
44. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves 44,

of the Company (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserve

ERBRPBRR R HEERE)

RRBREZRE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EATEE AEM
Asset Investment
revaluation revaluation Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
EEEMRHE REEGHERE REEA &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
(Note)
(Hi72)
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 1A 86,540 15,537 174,730 276,807
Profit for the year FEREA - - 444,277 444277
Other comprehensive income FREME2AKE(TH)
(expense) for the year 19 (15,537) — (15,518)
Total comprehensive income FANEERE ()85
(expense) for the year 19 (15,537) 444277 428,759
Dividend (Note 13) R E (A7 13) - — (115,242) (115,242)
At 31 December 2015 2015 12 A31 H 86,559 — 503,765 590,324
Loss for the year FREE - - (56,900) (56,900)
Other comprehensive expense  FREM 2 E X H
for the year (220) — — (220)
Total comprehensive expense FRZEX H
for the year Fake (220) - (56,900) (57,120)
At 31 December 2016 2016412 H31 H 86,339 - 446,865 533,204

Note:

Fair value change of available-for-sale investments measured
at fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until the
available-for-sale investments are disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

45. Capital Risk Management

46.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits.

Management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risk associated with the capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues and the issue of new debt or the
redemption of the existing debt.

Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

45.

46.

EXEER

REEFBEARKBENEREERE
HREEREEAUREEE RN QAR
ARFERE A RHE L RRERRRE
WAL - NEBEH)ERERAE R LAESF
BHER—2 -

AEE 2 ENEBABREFEBREE
§ HA2FRMREeTERARRK
ARBANBIERAN - P BHEEETR
K FHELRRERMAKX o

AEBEREUFEED R EED
BEAGERIRAKEEESKNAARES
iR AR - AEE RS BETHRD
RETHEBXBRRBEHET A
NI EBENEARERE

E®MITA

SBMITAE>ER

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets EWMEE
FVTPL REERRE AR ERE
— Held-for-trading — FEEE 146,668 112,998
— Designated as at FVTPL — BEERREBERREARER
3 6,831 743,594
Loans and receivables B 7k N e s 2,975,694 2,415,713
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHESREE 288,903 310,179
Financial liabilities ol =K
Amortised cost B SH AR 3,799,739 3,691,632
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
structured finance securities, available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investments, loan
receivable with embedded derivative, amounts due
from associates, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trade and bills payables,
accrued charges, other payables and borrowings. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk from prior year.

Market risks
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 relates primarily to its fixed-
rate amounts due from associates, fixed-rate pledged
bank deposits, fixed-rate loan receivables, fixed-rate
loan receivable with embedded derivative, fixed-rate
other receivables, fixed-rate other payable and fixed-
rate borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 primarily relates to its bank
balances carried at prevailing deposit rate, variable-rate
loan receivable and floating-rate borrowings.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps in order
to mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations
relating to interest cash flows. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated. In addition, the Group has
concentration risk on its floating-rate loan receivables,
bank balances and borrowings which expose the Group
significantly towards the change in HIBOR and PBOC
interest rate.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BB 2016412 531 HILF/E
46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. TEMTIA(#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to the floating-rate borrowings,
variable-rate loan receivables and variable-rate bank
balances at the end of the reporting period and
the reasonable possible change taking place at the
beginning of each year, held constant throughout the
year. The directors of the Company remained using 150
(2015: 150) basis points for assessing interest rate risk
on the above balances (except for bank balances) after
considering the impact of the volatile financial market
conditions. The directors of the Company used 10
(2015: 10) basis points for assessing interest rate risk
on bank balances because they considered that the
fluctuations on the interest rate on bank balances would
be less significant. If interest rates had been 150 basis
points (2015: 150 basis points) higher/lower for the
above balances (except for bank balances) and 10 basis
points (2015: 10 basis points) higher/lower for bank
balances and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on post-tax profit for the year is as
follows:

EREREEEERBE(E)

5 meE (&)

FEE SR EHE ()

AT B SR D AT T E R IR 2 B 7 K5
BHEEREMEMNKT —RWEA A
ZIEEHIARER © RF EF KT B AR
BERRIRZEF R B IRITE R A
HERRNRABURBFFNEENE
BA ALY B HRERAFENERT
BHBREME  c AAREFEZEE
CRMMBRERBECOTEMERK
R 150 (2015 4F : 150) B2 A ERTAZ
LA &8 (SRITE R IN) T KRB -
RNABEFIA10(20154F : 10) E 2k
SZIRITERZAERR - BRERE
FERIRITERREBBORE - WEF
KR Ei 8 (RITE RSN IR 150
EB(2015F : 150E )M EH T
B K10 2h(20154F - 1052 ) & |
Tt/ TR IBITEBRIT R R E M — )R
g HEARBREEINOEBEELEN
T~

2016 2015
HK$°000

HK$'000
TET TAET

Increase in post-tax loss (2015: increase in
post-tax loss) for the year

FABRBIRERIZ (2015 4F :
BRI I& B HRIE )

(24,194)  (26,909)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B SR E M st

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZ2016F 12731 It FE

46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. TEMTIA(#E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies tREREERERBE(E)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) TSR (E)
Interest rate risk management (Continued) FI =7 i & FE (42 )
Foreign currency risk management IR e EHE
The major financial assets and liabilities of the Group NEB RSB AINEE AT EE
are denominated in the functional currency of the UNASETESHEERTHBE -
respective group entities. Other than the items stated BRTMIBEIN  RAREFRAREH
below, the directors of the Company consider that the FTE R INEEXE I AEE - B
Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is SENEZERXSFENSBIYIEEAFN
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions MEEB AR FEM - HEBE 2B ITE
are denominated in the functional currency of each FEHE T

individual group entity. The equivalent amounts of HKD
are set out below:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Bank balances and cash RITEBR KRS
— HKD — BT 72,632 9,134
— Euro — BT 7,452 10,580
— United States dollars — X7 2,846 3,002
82,930 22,716
Loan receivable JEWE TR
— United States dollars — XETT 155,450 =
Other receivable H i GR
— HKD — BT 101,397 711
Borrowings BE
— HKD — BT 250,781 680,000
Other payables H M FERTX
— HKD — BT 24,711 34,417
Silver Grant International Industries Limited REFBREEFRA A
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B 22016 F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. TEMTIA(#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Basis of sensitivity analysis:

Sensitivity analysis is prepared to demonstrate the
effect of foreign exchange differences by 10% change in
exchange rate of the functional currency (mainly RMB)
against the relevant foreign currencies of the Company
and respective subsidiaries, assuming all other variables
were held constant. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit where the functional
currencies weaken 10% against the relevant foreign
currencies of the Company and respective subsidiaries.
For a 10% strengthening of the functional currencies of
the Company and respective subsidiaries, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the loss/profit for
the year.

EREREEEERBE(E)

5 meE (&)

SR B ()

BREDITEE

BREMATSERERZITE  BES
M RINEER 28R B10% NEEE
BEAARBAE)ZERRHEARR R
EEAMB AR - AT ZEREREHE
EREH RN B A RAEEINETS10%
BB FEZ I - EThAEE B AD
a2 M E A T3 10% - & 5| A
FriERFIBEHERRRA R
@,

2016 2015
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAT

Decrease in post-tax loss (2015: increase in NG 12 BB (20154 -

post-tax loss) for the year

BRiI& B HRIE )

5,368 (57,698)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F 1231 HIFF/E

MBHRME

46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. TEMTIA(#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Price risk management

Equity investments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group is exposed to
price risk through its held-for-trading investments (2015:
available-for-sale equity investments and held-for-
trading investments). For available-for-sale investments
measured at cost less impairment, as the fair value
could not be measured reliably, they have not been
included in the sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at end
of the reporting period. If the prices of the respective
available-for-sale investments in listed equity securities,

EREREEEERBE(E)

B E R &

MR2016F12 A31H  REBREH
EEERE (20154 « AJfft u”:'EHﬂ%E?“
BERFBIEEBERE)EGERRR

LxﬁJzZMD/WéﬁEE’\JTL\Hj%&éfﬂz/x
EBRERSBEL N BEAREBELT

CLETEE

Ttﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁif‘;/\$ﬁ%?fﬁ/\\$$&%ﬁlﬁﬂ<2
BAERER o 5 FERE LT AR
A8 77 2 Al ﬁ%&,\ IR ETRANE
MErERFHEREBERE 2 ERIE R

1 10% (20154 = 10%) » R &% E 1 Py
AR BREHF IS BAREFENTFE

certain unlisted equities which measured at fair value
and held-for-trading investments had been 10% (2015:

10%) higher/lower, assuming all other variables were e
held constant, the impact to the Group would be:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Held-for-trading investments: FIEEERE -
Decrease in post-tax profit for the year WA EAREE =T 12,247 9,435
Available-for-sale investments: AHHERE
Decrease in other comprehensive income B H A 2 E A
(net of tax) (BRFi&) - 3,418

10% (2015 4F : 10%) A IZ A 1% & B 1K
RERQRREFHE BRAIEEHIRNES

of the reasonable possible change in price. TE 42

10% (2015: 10%) change in equity investment price
represents the directors of the Company’s assessment

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REFBREEFRA A
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EZ2016F 12 31 HILF/E
46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Equity investments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group is
exposed to concentration risk on the held-for-trading
investments as they comprise equity shares issued by
several companies listed Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

Annual Report 2016

46. TRITR(#)

EREREEEERBE(E)

Bk mREE ()

KRERE (&)

R20164F Kk2015F 12 A31H * A&
EMBEEEREMS - FEBESH
HRER - BZERETDNRES LTHE
FRBIETIRGO R

B EZ R

REERDECAR  AEEERL#
FEEEBRRZ —EKFNESRES
SEEHRAnEEEZERRERES
MKEER2TE - BEBERRETE
REE BRI ARFE 8 T B FRIGRK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B sR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z

46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. TEMTIA(#E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies tREREEEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEEERE(E)
Liquidity tables BB E I
The following table details the Group’s remaining T3l 51) 3% 551 7S 2 B B LA IE 28 FUR
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial K ZITET A RE B ERFIGREH
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The AR ZIKBERETBMBEZTITR
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted BEmMMEERAEFHAHEERKNRREE
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest KERE - FRBENERAEHRS
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The T BB AF AR - NI E L
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. RITH RN ARG BIRFTE ©

To the extent that interest flows are floating-rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

On demand Total

Weighted or contractual

average less than 6 months undiscounted
interest rate 6 months to 1-2 2-5 Over cash flow Carrying
% ERE 1 year years years 5 years KRz value

mEYSNE  HReER  6EAEIE  1EE2E  QFESE BAsE  ReRfE REE
% HKG000  HKS000  HKSDOO  HKBO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKBOMD
AL TAL TAL TAL T TAL TAL

As at 31 December ~ R2016%

2016 128318
Tradeand bils ~ EREHREE

payables NA NER 76,571 - - - - 76,571 76,571
Other payables ~ E-ffEfT3 N/A MR 615,067 = = = = 615,067 615,067
Borrowings [E 536 930,547 824,141 646,042 519,201 606,390 3526411 3,108,101

1,622,185 824,141 646,042 519,201 606,390 4.218,049 3,799,739

Asat 31 December  F2015%

2015 128318
Tradeand bils — EREHEEE

payables NA RER 213,792 - - - - 213,792 213,792
Other payables ~ EftfEf3t NATEE 811,953 - - - - 811,953 811,953
Borrowings &% 593 772,047 708,969 832,669 511,083 — 2825608 2605887

1,868,692 708,969 832,669 511,083 = 3,911,413 3,691,632

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REFBREZARAT
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BB 2016412 531 HILF/E
46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. TEMTIA(#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 6 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2016, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
loans of the Group amounted to HK$204,511,000
(2015: HK$257,274,000). Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such bank loans of the Group will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements in note 33. The aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows of the Group will
amount to HK$205,091,000 (2015: HK$258,070,000).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 2016

EREREEEERBE(E)

mEEEmE(E)

REE LI (E)

BERERERBKXZRITENRG
ALMEBHEBER ST 2[R E kD
Ref A | BB A R2016F 12 A
SIBZEAEERTERZERE
42 %8 5204,511,00078 JT(20154F :
257,274,000 7C) - KEEAREE 2
MR - NRAREEW T AERITA
BEETEEMBRERENFER - A2
AIESREE  ZEXAERRITERE
SRBHAB2IZERBEMHEZ
BEEFBHEE AEEZAER
F B3R & w4858 5 205,091,000 7 7T
(2015 : 258,070,000/ 7T) °
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at the end of the reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is
the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
has significant concentration of credit risk in respect
of amounts due from two (2015: one) associates
of HK$1,140,253,000 (2015: HK$1,149,637,000),
loan receivables from two (2015: one) independent
third parties of total HK$407,682,000 (2015:
HK$270,012,000), loan receivable with embedded
derivative from nil (2015: one) independent third party
of HK$nil (2015: HK$736,866,000), loan interest
receivables from two (2015: two) independent third
parties of total HK$60,873,000 (2015: HK$47,864,000)
and amount due from one (2015: one) third party of
HK$220,540,000 (2015: HK$152,932,000). In order
to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt throughout
the year to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts at the end of the
reporting period. In this regard, the Group considers
that the Group’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds deposited with a few major banks. However,
the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

46. TRITR(#)

ERMIAEZAAEFE

FREBRAAATEHBEEREMEEZ
RAEDREEMEEL R EE

AEERNEREERERBENESE
BEPRRTARAETE - TRIEHW
MEETXFcREENEBREBENAA
ENEEFREHAERANITEREA
EJR

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

fEERERBEREE

Financial assets/ Fair value
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy
EREE/SRER ARER AREZER
2016 2015
HK$°000 [EIEX00
FET FHET
1) Held-for-trading investment 146,668 112,998 Level 1
HIEEERE EF18
2) Unlisted available-for-sale financial - 34,177 Level 1
asset (Note) E£148
FImAHLEeREE ML)
3) Structured finance securities 6,831 6,728 Level 3
BEEHERHES £38
4) Loan receivable with embedded - 736,866 Level 3
derivative £38
WERAXTETLAZ
R ER

Annual Report 2016

Quoted bid prices in an active market
WERTS 2 EARE

By reference to the quoted bid prices in an active
market of the respective listed securities.

2HRBLHRHNERT S EARE -

Valuation provided by counterparty financial
institution. Major assumptions are stated in
note 20.

AR ZEFoRBBREAE - ZE/RRT
FBFFE20 ©

Loan — discounted cash flow method was used
to capture the present value of the expected
future economic benefits that will flow to the
Group, based on an appropriate discount rate;

EX—RARERTRERGRARTEARE 2
TENEONRE  KEBETRETE

Embedded derivative — binominal model. Details
of key inputs are set out in note 23.

BRATSTETE — 215 - BRAXZ7
INGEPRE
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Note: Restricted shares of a company with its other shares

listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

There is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 in the
period.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost using the discounted cash flows
analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The executive directors of the Company are responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data or information provided by counterparty
financial institutions to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available or counterparty financial
institutions cannot provide sufficient information in
relation to fair value, the management of the Group
will engage third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The finance manager reports to management
of the Group semi-annually to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

31 December 2016

EMIAZAAENEE)

RAAENBRIGERESF

ARBZATESARETEANGE
NREZEERMEEAE -

AEBZHNEERARABENENH
WEZEW - At —REEHBEZ
ARER - AEERAARGZAIBRE
MERBEATRHEEBRZIHFREZE
£t WA E|E 1 RBAEXNSBBER
FEHFRERECHBEEIAREBZE
B AEEEEEREAFE =785
HERMAETHE BBEKEREYF
AAKEERERS  BEAHEER
REKSHZRA -

R2016 F N 2015F 12 A31 B A R
BEER -

31 December 2015

120165128 318 R2015%12 831 H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 8 Total
18 %28 %38 g 18 08 238 &%
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT FET AT FET FET AT FET
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ WMEEZEAAEREN
SREE
Structured finance securities & 2EE% - - 6,831 6,331 = = 6,728 6,728
Loan receivable with WERAATETR
embedded derivative LEWET - - - - = - 73866 736,866
Non-derivative financial assets ~ B{EEERA 23R4
held-for-trading LRAE 146,668 - - 146,668 112,998 - - 112,998
Available-for-sale financial ~ A HELHEE
assets
Unlisted equity securities FImkAES - - - - 34,177 = = 34,1477
Total ] 146,668 - 6,831 153,499 147,175 - 743,594 890,769
— T NEEH
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets and financial liabilities

46. TRITR(#)

EIFEREERESMEBZ A NER
C Gk

Loan
receivable
with
embedded Structured
derivative finance
MAEBmARX securities
PTETARZ EEM Total
ERER SRIES B

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET FAET TAT

At 1 January 2015 R201541 H1H8 733,844 6,655 740,499
Total gains or losses: e sk BT R AR R ¢

— Change in fair value (note) — RRERE (K1) 41,822 73 41,895
Coupon interest ZEHE (38,800) — (38,800)
At 31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H 736,866 6,728 743,594
Total gains or losses: Wzs ok BIE1BEE

— Change in fair value (note) — RRERE (K1) 75,778 103 75,881
Redemption f&[el (812,644) — (812,644)
At 31 December 2016 72016412 A 31 B = 6,831 6,831

Note: Changes in fair value are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The total gain for the year
included in profit or loss of HK$75,881,000 (2015:
HK$41,895,000) relates to the loan receivable with
embedded derivative and structured finance securities
held at the end of the reporting period.

218 Silver Grant International Industries Limited

et - RABZESHERLEEBERFBETA -
RAREHEEEEETERNAE
BRARNTET A BIRER R EEHE T
S EES 2 W858 A 75,881,000 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B E 2016 12 31 HIFFZE
Year ended 31 December
HEN2RMALEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million RICHVGMM HK$ Million
AEET BEET BEET BEZT BEAT
Results E
Revenue WA 555.0 400.8 424.2 340.0 426.8
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners N7 A& A E(EE Wi
of the Company fil(EH8) 103.8 65.0 109.4 (65.8) (35.1)
At 31 December
R12A31H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million RICHV[GMM HK$ Million
BEAT BEET BEET BEET FEET
Assets and liabilities BERER
Investment properties and property, plant RENERDE -
and equipment BERE 4.205.0 5,082.4 5,048.1 6,399.7 6,100.5
Land use rights titfE R E 201.2 222.8 216.3 199.6 182.5
Goodwil #Ha 465 465 465 465 46.5
Structured finance securities EEMSRES 6.5 6.2 6.6 6.7 6.8
Interest in a joint venture —ZeEAAER 89.4 = = = -
Interests in associates BENmER 1,457.4 1,458.5 562.4 7435 865.0
Available-for-sale investments HHERE 699.6 480.1 352.3 310.2 288.9
Deposits paid for purchase of land use rights B E T ERERYE -
and property, plant and equipment BEREE RS - 917 = = -
Loan receivable with embedded WERARSTETLAZE
derivative WER 736.2 720.8 733.8 736.9 =
Loan receivables - non-current EWER - E7E 622.5 127.9 570.3 = =
Net current assets FREEE 885.0 1,072.7 1,039.1 150.4 802.1
8,969.3 9,309.6 9,475.4 8,593.5 8,292.3
Share capital B 461.0 461.0 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8
Reserves EL 6,794.2 6,937.5 3,732.1 3,163.4 2,730.3
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ A2 R AEERA 7,255.2 7,398.5 7,358.9 6,790.2 6,357.1
Non-controling interests FEfER 409.8 449.9 4588 370.9 233.7
Non-current liabilities FEHIEE 1,304.3 1,461.2 1,657.7 1,432.4 1,701.5
8,969.3 9,309.6 9,475.4 8,593.5 8,292.3
Annual Report 2016 — T NFEFEH
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES iR EMEHBE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B 22016 F 12531 HIFF/Z
The following is a list of the Group's investment properties at TH AAREBEKR2016F 12 831 HWIEEY)
31 December 2016: ¥5E :
Investment properties in the PRC NRFEZREYE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
I B4 AR A& EEMEE
Sq. ft.
FHR
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level 0 and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, term lease [HE
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC H Hj
FEIE R ERPEHF19OFRIRESHEE  E2E -
RKEK1EES
2. Level 4 to 31 of South Apartment Tower (including 401, Long lease Residential 31,171
402, 408, 405, 406, 407, 408, 501, 502, 503, 505, 506, = B F=
507, 508, 30/F and 31/F) East Gate Plaza, 39 Dongzhong
Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
FEEEmEREBERFPHIOFRIRESHEASE
F4ZE31E(BFE 401, 402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408,
501, 502, 503, 505, 506, 507, 508, 301& & 31 %)
3. Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,993
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, KH (Ea=2
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
FEEEmEEERFHI9FRIRESILEASE
4% 31
4. Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Po Lou, Medium term Commercial 10,540
No. 28 Dong Zhong Jie Jia, lease [EES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC (Note) H Hj
PRI R R R R R 28 ERIEF 255 -
6 & 8EE N (Hiz)
Note: Note: The legal title of the properties have not been passed Biat - WWEYMEZEEMR2016F12 A31 HHAR
to the Group at 31 December, 2016. BETAEH o
Investment properties in the Hong Kong VRBEZIREYE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
i 24 TN ER Jickes EEmEE
Sq. ft.
FIHR
Flat B, 9 Floor, 6A Bowen Road, Hong Kong Long lease Residential 3,007
ABBEEEGCAIEBE B F=
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